10.

11.

12.

11.

Charter Township

OF -
Jnion

BOARD OF TRUSTEES
Regular Meeting
October 12, 2016

7:00 p.m.

CALL MEETING TO ORDER

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

ROLL CALL

PRESENTATIONS

PUBLIC COMMENT: Restricted to three minutes regarding issues on this agenda

REPORTS/BOARD COMMENTS

APPROVAL OF AGENDA

CONSENT AGENDA

Communications

Minutes — September 20, 2016 - regular meeting
Bills

Payroll

Fire Reports

2.5.10 Cash Flow Ratio

mmoow>

BOARD AGENDA

$18k Commitment to Trail Way Project connecting Shepherd to Township

Approve Service Agreement with LSL Planning to assist with Union Township Master Plan Update
Continued Discussion of FY 2017 Budget Development

Set 2017 Budget Hearing and Advertise — Public Hearing to be held on 11/21/16

OOw>

MANAGER COMMENTS

EXTENDED PUBLIC COMMENT: Restricted to 5 minutes regarding any issue

FINAL BOARD MEMBER COMMENT

ADJOURNMENT




CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF UNION

Board of Trustees
Regular Meeting

A regular meeting of the Charter Township of Union Board of Trustees was held on September 28,
2016 at 7:00 p.m. at Union Township Hall.

Meeting was called to order at 7:00 p.m.

Roll Call
Supervisor Alwood, Clerk Henry, Trustee Hauck, Lannen, and Mielke were present.
Excused: Treasurer Rice and Trustee Mikus

Others Present
Mark Stuhldreher, Kim Smith, Pat DePriest, and Jennifer Loveberry

Presentations

Marc Griffis, Director of Isabella County Central Dispatch presented the 911 Surcharge Increase
that will be on the November 8, 2016 General Election Ballot. To view the presentations go to:
www.uniontownshipmi.com/Communitylnformation/PublicAccessTV and access the Union
Township Government Folder.

Public Comment - open 7:24 p.m.

Kathy Tarrant, Citizens in Support of Isabella County 911 - supports 911 surcharge increases.
Margaret McAvoy, Isabella County Administrator Controller— Isabella County supports Central
Dispatch 911 and clarified funding between Central Dispatch and Isabella County.

Reports/Board Comments
Mielke —~Updates from the Planning Commission.

Approval of Agenda
Hauck moved Mielke supported to approve the agenda as presented. Vote: Ayes: 5 Nays: 0.
Motion carried.

Consent Agenda
A. Communications

s EDA Minutes — August 16, 2016 — Regular Meeting
e Planning Minutes — August 30, 2016 — Regular Meeting
s ZBA Minutes — September 7 2016 — Regular Meeting
B. Minutes September 14, 2016 — Regular Meeting
C. Payroll
D. Fire Reports

Lannen moved Mielke supported to approve the consent agenda as presented. Comments were
made by Lannen on Planning Commission and ZBA minutes. Vote: Ayes: 5 Nays: 0. Motion
carried.



BOARD AGENDA

A. 2016 Sanitary Sewer Pump Station #1 Bypass Manhole Rehabilitation
Presented by Kim Smith. Lannen moved Hauck supported to approve 2016 Sanitary
Sewer Pump Station #1 Bypass Manhole Rehabilitation awarded to Isabella
Corporation in the amount of $38,400.00. Vote: Ayes: 5 Nays: 0. Motion carried.

B. Continued Discussion of FY 2017 Budget Development
Discussion was held by the Board of Trustees.

EXTENDED PUBLIC COMMENT - Open 8:04 p.m.
Jim Horton of the 4" District County Commission updated the board on the county government.

FINAL BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS

Alwood — Road Commission updates: Whiteville Road Project to start soon. Isabella Road Traffic
Study has been completed and the Township is awaiting completed reports.

Mielke — Noted he will be attending the intergovernmental meeting 9/29/16 (City of Mt. Pleasant,
[sabella County, and Union Township).

MANAGER COMMENTS
No comments.

ADJOURNMENT

Hauck moved Henry supported to adjourn the meeting at 8:12 p.m. Vote: Ayes: 5 Nays: 0.
Motion carried.

APPROVED BY:

Margie Henry, Clerk

Russell V. Alwood, Supervisor
(Recorded by Jennifer Loveberry)



10/06/2016 12:51 PM CHECK REGISTER FOR CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF UNION Page: 1/1

User: SHERRIE CHECK DATE FROM 09/15/2016 - 10/12/2016
DB: Union
Check Date Bank Check Vendor Vendor Name Amount

Bank 101 POOLED CHECKING

10/12/2016 101 15(S) 00209 ETNA SUPPLY COMPANY 0.00
09/29/2016 101 75 (E) 00146 CONSUMERS ENERGY PAYMENT CENTER 28,420.49
09/29/2016 101 76 (E) 00146 VOID 0.00
09/29/2016 101 77 (E) 00146 VOID 0.00
10/06/2016 101 79 (E) 01105 MASTERCARD 5,722.02
10/06/2016 101 80 (E) 01105 VOID 0.00
10/12/2016 101 18739 MISC SANDY HALASZ 54.97
10/12/2016 101 18740 01501 AWOL 727.50
10/12/2016 101 18741 00020 JAMES ALWOOD 495.68
10/12/2016 101 18742 00043 ARROW UNIFORM 544.21
10/12/2016 101 18743 00066 BILL'S CUSTOM FAB, INC. 161.60
10/12/2016 101 18744 01240 BRAUN KENDRICK FINKBEINER PLC 960.00
10/12/2016 101 18745 00095 C & C ENTERPRISES, INC. 642.03
10/12/2016 101 18746 00791 JANE CHAFFEE 141.90
10/12/2016 101 18747 00722 CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF UNION 6,463.00
10/12/2016 101 18748 00129 CMS INTERNET, LLC 43,254.81
10/12/2016 101 18749 00155 COYNE OIL CORPORATION 712.77
10/12/2016 101 18750 01242 CULLIGAN WATER 36.00
10/12/2016 101 18751 01171 DBI BUSINESS INTERIORS 88.51
10/12/2016 101 18752 00176 PATRICIA DEPRIEST 6.00
10/12/2016 101 18753 00183 DIXON ENGINEERING, INC. 2,100.00
10/12/2016 101 18754 00188 DOUG'S SMALL ENGINE 5.00
10/12/2016 101 18755 00193 DUBOIS-COOPER ASSOC. 31.20
10/12/2016 101 18756 00201 ELHORN ENGINEERING COMPANY 1,299.50
10/12/2016 101 18757 01131 FORD HALL COMPANY 237.91
10/12/2016 101 18758 01221 ANDREW FUSSMAN 8.64
10/12/2016 101 18759 00249 GILL-ROY'S HARDWARE 85.74
10/12/2016 101 18760 00261 GRAINGER 338.28
10/12/2016 101 18761 00324 ISABELLA CORPORATION 42,000.00
10/12/2016 101 18762 00333 ISABELLA COUNTY ROAD COMMISSION 528,953.00
10/12/2016 101 18763 00337 ISABELLA COUNTY TREASURER 1,950.00
10/12/2016 101 18764 00359 KERR PUMP & SUPPLY 24,215.94
10/12/2016 101 18765 00362 KRAPOHL FORD & LINCOLN 584.71
10/12/2016 101 18766 01290 LAKE PAINTING INC. 10,017.00
10/12/2016 101 18767 01506 MCKENNA ASSOCIATES 6,680.00
10/12/2016 101 18768 00402 MEDLER ELECTRIC CO 316.44
10/12/2016 101 18769 00420 MICHIGAN MUNICIPAL LEAGUE 175.00
10/12/2016 101 18770 00422 MICHIGAN PIPE & VALVE 8,399.40
10/12/2016 101 18771 01199 MID MICHIGAN ANSWERING SERVICE 300.00
10/12/2016 101 18772 00437 MIDDLE MICHIGAN DEVELOPMENT CORP 2,500.00
10/12/2016 101 18773 01266 MOREYS LOGO.COM 70.00
10/12/2016 101 18774 00460 MT. PLEASANT AREA CHMB OF COMMERCE 650.00
10/12/2016 101 18775 00494 NORTH CENTRAL LABORATORIES 581.91
10/12/2016 101 18776 01136 OPTO SOLUTIONS, INC 88.00
10/12/2016 101 18777 00525 PICKARD STREET CAR WASH 51.00
10/12/2016 101 18778 00597 SHERWIN WILLIAMS 350.63
10/12/2016 101 18779 01507 LISA SNYDER 40.00
10/12/2016 101 18780 01254 LARRY M SOMMER 384.62
10/12/2016 101 18781 00629 STU'S ELECTRIC MOTOR 745.00
10/12/2016 101 18782 01495 MARK STUHLDREHER 168.48
10/12/2016 101 18783 00637 SWEENEY SEED CO. 543.50
10/12/2016 101 18784 01364 SHERRIE TEALL 154.07
10/12/2016 101 18785 00789 U S BANK, N.A. 158,516.88
10/12/2016 101 18786 01013 USA BLUE BOOK 1,497.66
10/12/2016 101 18787 01314 VERIZON WIRELESS 458.13
10/12/2016 101 18788 01497 VERTALKA & VERTALKA, INC 5,500.00
10/12/2016 101 18789 00703 WASTE MANAGEMENT OF MICHIGAN, INC 1,155.13
10/12/2016 101 18790 01236 WEB ASCENDER 90.00
10/12/2016 101 18791 00723 WINN TELECOM 197.05
10/12/2016 101 18792 01483 XEROX FINANCIAL SERVICES 1,500.76
101 TOTALS:

Total of 60 Checks: 891,372.07
Less 3 Void Checks: 0.00
Total of 57 Disbursements: 891,372.07



10/06/2016 12:58 PM
User: SHERRIE

CHECK REGISTER FOR CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF UNION Page: 1/5
CHECK DATE FROM 09/15/2016 - 10/12/2016

DB: Union
Check Date Bank Check Vendor Vendor Name Description Amount
Bank 101 POOLED CHECKING
10/12/2016 101 15(9) 00209 ETNA SUPPLY COMPANY WATER REPAIRS MISSION WELL SITE 59.98
LEXINGTON RIDGE HOOKUP 80.00
HOOKUP CREDIT (139.98)
0.00
09/29/2016 101 75 (E) 00146 CONSUMERS ENERGY PAYMENT CENTER 1660 BELMONT DR 45.30
1933 S ISABELLA RD 441.86
5537 E BROADWAY RD 40.58
5525 E REMUS RD 50.45
2055 ENTERPRISE DR 256.28
2270 NORTHWAY DR 25.83
5142 BUDD ST 95.94
5144 BUDD ST 26.09
5240 E BROOMFIELD RD 689.30
900 MULBERRY LN 46.15
3998 E DEERFIELD RD 62.17
5369 S CRAWFORD RD 56.91
3248 S CONCOURSE DR 125.09
5076 S MISSION RD 722.44
4795 S MISSION ST 2,482.25
4797 S MISSION ST #BARN 192.06
5228 S ISABELLA RD 6,950.52
4822 ENCORE BLVD 185.12
4244 E BLUE GRASS RD 56.38
2279 S MERIDIAN RD PUMP HOUSE 18.84
2279 S MERIDIAN RD 1,807.59
800 CRAIG HILL RD 41.23
4520 E RIVER RD 89.10
1633 S LINCOLN RD 136.19
5319 E AIRPORT RD 35.80
1046 S MISSION ST 91.26
1605 SCULLY RD 31.95
2188 E PICKARD RD 77.50
1876 PACKARD RD 93.12
2495 E DEERFIELD RD 90.09
2424 W MAY ST 181.65
2010 S LINCOLN RD 745.27
1776 E PICKARD RD 137.95
2180 S LINCOLN RD 26.98
4511 E RIVER RD 12,265.25
28,420.49
09/29/2016 101 76 (E) 00146 VOID
Void Reason: Created From Check Run Process
09/29/2016 101 77 (E) 00146 VOID
Void Reason: Created From Check Run Process
10/06/2016 101 79 (E) 01105 MASTERCARD MASTERCARD CRAWFORD 331.68
MASTERCARD BEBOW 580.15
MASTERCARD ALWOOD 460.00
MASTERCARD WALDRON 5.59
MASTERCARD MCBRIDE 112.94
MASTERCARD WALDRON 5159.OO
MASTERCARD MARTINEZ 30.92



10/06/2016 12:58 PM
User: SHERRIE

CHECK REGISTER FOR CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF UNION Page: 2/5
CHECK DATE FROM 09/15/2016 - 10/12/2016

DB: Union
Check Date Bank Check Vendor Vendor Name Description Amount
MASTERCARD BEBOW 158.38
MASTERCARD STUHLDREHER 625.00
MASTERCARD MARTINEZ 17.88
MASTERCARD DEARING 389.59
MASTERCARD TAYLOR 23.18
MASTERCARD RADAR 42.03
MASTERCARD MCBRIDE 813.94
MASTERCARD MCPHERSON 9.88
MASTERCARD ROCKAFELLOW 91.11
MASTERCARD DEPRIEST 1,843.21
MASTERCARD GALLINAT 27.54
5,722.02
10/06/2016 101 80 (E) 01105 VOID
Void Reason: Created From Check Run Process
10/12/2016 101 18739 MISC SANDY HALASZ UB refund for account: 02968 54.97
10/12/2016 101 18740 01501 AWOTL WATER PLANT CLEANING 187.50
TOWNSHIP HALL CLEANING 540.00
727.50
10/12/2016 101 18741 00020 JAMES ALWOOD ROYALTIES 495.68
10/12/2016 101 18742 00043 ARROW UNIFORM UNIFORMS 189.23
UNIFORMS 44.50
UNIFORMS 72.46
UNIFORMS 72.46
UNIFORMS 44.50
UNIFORMS 48.77
UNIFORMS 72.29
544.21
10/12/2016 101 18743 00066 BILL'S CUSTOM FAB, INC. WATER SHUT OFF WRENCHES 161.60
10/12/2016 101 18744 01240 BRAUN KENDRICK FINKBEINER PLC LEGAL FEES - FIOA REQUEST 960.00
10/12/2016 101 18745 00095 C & C ENTERPRISES, INC. DISINFECTANT / PARKS 70.56
SAFETY GLASSES PARKS 25.63
PARKS EAR PLUGS AND SUPPLIES 57.00
PARKS JANITORIAL SUPPLIES 36.00
SAFETY GLASSES 38.34
HAND WASH FOR DISPENSERS 150.75
JANITORIAL SUPPLIES 82.50
TOWNSHIP HALL SUPPLIES 107.00
TOWNSHIP HALL SUPPLES 74.25
642.03
10/12/2016 101 18746 00791 JANE CHAFFEE FLX MEDICAL REIMBURSEMENT 9/29/16 141.90
10/12/2016 101 18747 00722 CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF UNION 2010 S LINCOLN RD 146.10
5142 BUD ST 193.40
PARK JAMESON WATER SEWER 146.10
2010 LINCOLN RESTROOMS & PAVILLION WATER 146.10
2010 LINCOLN PARK CONCESSIONS WATER SEWE 42.80
WWTP WATER SEWER BILL 4,935.60
2010 S LINCOLN RD 51.50
TOWNSHIP SPRINKLER WATER SEWER 213.00
MCDONALD PARK SPRINKLER WATER SEWER 86.60
MCDONALD PARK SPRINKLER 6349.85

PARKS WATER-1776 E PICKARD 151.95



10/06/2016 12:58 PM
User: SHERRIE

CHECK REGISTER FOR CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF UNION Page: 3/5
CHECK DATE FROM 09/15/2016 - 10/12/2016

DB: Union

Check Date Bank Check Vendor Vendor Name Description Amount
6,463.00

10/12/2016 101 18748 00129 CMS INTERNET, LLC NEW SERVER 42,225.23
UPGRADE PC TO PRO AND JOIN ALL PC'S TO D 485.99

ASSIST BLDG DEPT WITH REMOTE ACCESS 95.00

WORKED ON TREASURER'S HOME CONNECTION 23.75

CMS SERVER & PHONE SERVICE 10/1/16 TO 10 732.34

TECHNICIAN REMOTE SUPPORT 23.75

2010 BACK UP SERVICES (331.25)

43,254.81

10/12/2016 101 18749 00155 COYNE OIL CORPORATION GAS/FUEL 712.77
10/12/2016 101 18750 01242 CULLIGAN WATER WATER 36.00
10/12/2016 101 18751 01171 DBI BUSINESS INTERIORS LABELS & FASTENERS, BLDG DEPT 52.88
CUSTOM STAMP FOR BLDG DEPT 35.63

88.51

10/12/2016 101 18752 00176 PATRICIA DEPRIEST WENT TO COUNTY FOR MORTGAGE DOCUMENTS 6.00
10/12/2016 101 18753 00183 DIXON ENGINEERING, INC. DEERFIELD TOWER INSPECTION 2,100.00
10/12/2016 101 18754 00188 DOUG'S SMALL ENGINE CHAINSAW TOOL PARKS 5.00
10/12/2016 101 18755 00193 DUBOIS-COOPER ASSOC. RAS PUMPS 31.20
10/12/2016 101 18756 00201 ELHORN ENGINEERING COMPANY CHLORINE 1,299.50
10/12/2016 101 18757 01131 FORD HALL COMPANY CLARIFIER #3 BRUSHES/MAINT TREATMENT 237.91
10/12/2016 101 18758 01221 ANDREW FUSSMAN MILEAGE REIMBURSMENT 8.64
10/12/2016 101 18759 00249 GILL-ROY'S HARDWARE REPAIR BOARD ROOM TABLE 14.77
EXTENSION CORDS FOR BALL FIELD SUMP PUMP 70.97

85.74

10/12/2016 101 18760 00261 GRAINGER MOTOR CAPACITORS FOR LIFSTATIONS 338.28
10/12/2016 101 18761 00324 ISABELLA CORPORATION CENTRAL CONCRETE WTR/SWR HOOKUP - REMUS 29,000.00
HOLIDAY INN 8" AND 6" LIVE TAPS 13,000.00

42,000.00

10/12/2016 101 18762 00333 ISABELLA COUNTY ROAD COMMISSION ISABELLA ROAD TRAFFIC STUDY-PROGRESS BIL 3,775.00
BROADWAY RD-ISABELLA TO US 127 OVERPASS 525,178.00

528,953.00

10/12/2016 101 18763 00337 ISABELLA COUNTY TREASURER 2009 WW BONDS-PAYING AGENT FEES 750.00
2010 WATER BONDS-PAYING AGENT FEES 750.00

CONTRACTED BLDG INSP. - COMMERCIAL 450.00

1,950.00

10/12/2016 101 18764 00359 KERR PUMP & SUPPLY EMERGENCY RPAIR ISABELLA SERV PUMP #1 23,725.00
LIFSTATION PUMP PARTS 490.94

24,215.94

10/12/2016 101 18765 00362 KRAPOHL FORD & LINCOLN 2012 SUPER DUTY MAINTENANCE 63.90
2006 F150 - BRAKES 520.81

7584.

71



10/06/2016 12:58 PM CHECK REGISTER FOR CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF UNION 4/5
User: SHERRIE CHECK DATE FROM 09/15/2016 - 10/12/2016
DB: Union
Check Date Bank Check Vendor Vendor Name Description Amount
10/12/2016 101 18766 01290 LAKE PAINTING INC. PAINTING SERVICES 10,017.00
10/12/2016 101 18767 01506 MCKENNA ASSOCIATES BUILDING PLAN REVIEW SERVICES AUG 2016 6,680.00
10/12/2016 101 18768 00402 MEDLER ELECTRIC CO CONTROL PANEL DOOR LIFSTATION 18 316.44
10/12/2016 101 18769 00420 MICHIGAN MUNICIPAL LEAGUE MEMBER DUES 2016 175.00
10/12/2016 101 18770 00422 MICHIGAN PIPE & VALVE HOLIDAY INN WATER HOOKUP/REPAIR PARTS 5,250.40
WATER HOOKUP/ REPAIR PARTS 3,149.00
8,399.40
10/12/2016 101 18771 01199 MID MICHIGAN ANSWERING SERVICE ANSWERING SERVICE-3RD Q 300.00
10/12/2016 101 18772 00437 MIDDLE MICHIGAN DEVELOPMENT CORP CLIENT FEE 4TH QUARTER 2,500.00
10/12/2016 101 18773 01266 MOREYS LOGO.COM LOGO FOR NEW WWTP TRUCK 70.00
10/12/2016 101 18774 00460 MT. PLEASANT AREA CHMB OF COMMERCE LEADERSHIP INSTITUTE - STUHLDREHER 650.00
10/12/2016 101 18775 00494 NORTH CENTRAL LABORATORIES WWTP OPERATING SUPPLIES 343.01
LAB EQUIPMENT & SUPPLIES 238.90
581.91
10/12/2016 101 18776 01136 OPTO SOLUTIONS, INC OPTO 22 MAINT 88.00
10/12/2016 101 18777 00525 PICKARD STREET CAR WASH VEHICLE CLEANING 51.00
10/12/2016 101 18778 00597 SHERWIN WILLIAMS JAMESON BATHROOMS PAINT 211.80
JAMESON BATHROOMS PAINT 44.36
JAMESON HALL BATHROOM PAINT 94.47
350.63
10/12/2016 101 18779 01507 LISA SNYDER REFUND PAVILION RENT 40.00
10/12/2016 101 18780 01254 LARRY M SOMMER FLX DEP CARE REIMBURSEMENT 9/29/16 192.31
FLEX DEP REIMBURSEMENT 10-6-16 192.31
384.62
10/12/2016 101 18781 00629 STU'S ELECTRIC MOTOR BLOWER #4 MOTOR 745.00
10/12/2016 101 18782 01495 MARK STUHLDREHER MILEAGE REIMB - MEDA TRAINING 168.48
10/12/2016 101 18783 00637 SWEENEY SEED CO. GRASS SEED, FERTILIZER, MULCH 321.50
STRAW BLANKET EROSION CONTROL 222.00
543.50
10/12/2016 101 18784 01364 SHERRIE TEALL MGFOA CONFERENCE - MILEAGE / MEALS 154.07
10/12/2016 101 18785 00789 U S BANK, N.A. 2004 SEWER BOND PAYMENT 158,516.88
10/12/2016 101 18786 01013 USA BLUE BOOK CHLORINE OP SUPPLY & SAFETY 1,497.66
10/12/2016 101 18787 01314 VERIZON WIRELESS WIRELESS CELL BILL AUG 16 - SEPT 15 458.13
10/12/2016 101 18788 01497 VERTALKA & VERTALKA, INC APPRAISAL FEES-UNIVERSITY MEADOWS 5,500.00
10/12/2016 101 18789 00703 WASTE MANAGEMENT OF MICHIGAN, INC DUMPSTER SERVICE JAMESON PARK 106.61
DUMPSTER SERVICE MCDONALD PARK 164.21
DUMPSTER SERVICE TOWNSHIP HALL 54.45
DUMPSTER SERVICE 5228 ISABELLA RD 66.40
DUMPSTER SERVICE 4795 MISSION 46.35
DUMPSTER SERVICE 4511 RIVER RD 717.11
1,155.13
10/12/2016 101 18790 01236 WEB ASCENDER WEBSITE (Q4) HOSTING 2016 90.00
10/12/2016 101 18791 00723 WINN TELECOM PHONE BILL 197.05
10/12/2016 101 18792 01483 XEROX FINANCIAL SERVICES LEASE PAYMENT - SEPT 2016 1,500.76
101 TOTALS: 8




10/06/2016 12:58 PM

CHECK REGISTER FOR CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF UNION

Page: 5/5

User: SHERRIE CHECK DATE FROM 09/15/2016 - 10/12/2016

DB: Union

Check Date Bank Check Vendor Vendor Name Description Amount

Total of 60 Checks: 891,372.07

Less 3 Void Checks: 0.00
891,372.07

Total of 57 Disbursements:



Charter Township of Union
Payroll

CHECK DATE: October 6, 2016
PPE: October 1, 2016

NOTE: CHECK TOTAL FOR TRANSFER

Gross Payroll S 50,119.09
Employer Share Med 715.74
Employer Share 55 3,060.35
sul 84.58
Pension-Employer Portion 3,215.94
Workers' Comp 524.66
Life/LTD 577.80
Dental 2,249.91
Health Care 33,575.22
Cobra/Flex Administration -

PCORI Fee -

Total Transfer to Payroll Checking S 94,123.29

NOTE: PAYROLL TRANSFER NEEDED

General Fund S 35,511.38
EDDA .
WDDA -
Sewer Fund 31,778.64
Water Fund 26,833.27

Total To Transfer from Pooled Savings S 94,123.29



Mount Pleasant Fire Department

Fire Experience Report For Union Township/City of Mt. Pleasant

Period - September 19, 2016 through September 25, 2016

Category

Code

Description

Twp

Resp

City

Fire

100

Fire, Other

111

Building Fire

112

Fires in Structures other than a Building

113

Cooking Fire

114

Chimney or Flue Fire

116

Fuel Burner/Boiler Malfunction

131

Passenger Vehicle Fire

132

Road freight or transport vehicle fire

136

Self-propelled Motor Home/Recreational

138

Off-road vehicle of heavy equipment fire

140

Natural Vegetation Fire

143

Grass/Brush fire

150

QOutside Rubbish Fire, other

151

Outside Rubbish Fire, trash or waste fire

154

Dumpster Fire

160

Special Outside Fire, Other

Overpressure Rupture, (No Fire)

251

Excessive heat, scorch burns with no fire

231

Chemical reaction rupture of process vessel

Rescue & EMS Incident

300

Rescue, EMS incident, other

311

Medical Assist to EMS Crew

321

EMS Call excluding Veh. Accident

-—

322

Motor Vehicle Acc. W/ Injuries

323

Motor Vehicle Acc/Pedestrian

324

Motor Vehicle Acc. W/no Injuries

331

Lock-In (If lock out use 551)

342

Search for Person in Water

352

Extrication of Victim (s) from vehicle

353

Remove Victim from Stalled Elevator

360

Water & lce-relaled Rescue, Other

361

Swimming /recreational waler area rescue

3811

Technical rescue standby

Hazardous Condition {(No Fire)

400

Hazard condition other

410

Combustible/Flammable Gas Condition

411

Gasoline or Other Flammable Spill

412

Gas Leak {natural gas or LPG)

413

Qil of Combustible Liquid Spill

423

Refrigeration Leak

424

Carbon Monoxide Incident

440

Electric Wiring/Equipment Problem

441

Heat from Short Circuit

442

Overheated Motor

443

Breakdown of Light Ballast

444

Power Line Down

445

Arcing, shorted electrical equipment

11




451

Biological hazard, confirmed or suspected

461

Building or Structure Weakened or Collapsed

462

Aircraft Standby

463

Vehicle Accident, general cleanup

480

Attempted burning, illegal action, other

4441

Utility Line Down

Service Call

500

Service Call - Other

510

Person in Distress

511

Lock-out

512

Ring or Jewelry removal

520

Water Problem, Other

521

Water Evacuation

522

Water of Steam Leak

831

Smoke or Odor Removal

542

Animal Rescue

552

Police Matter

563

Public Service

561

Unauthorized Burning

571

Cover assignment, standby, moveup

Good Intent Call

600

Good Intent Call, Other

611

Dispatched and Cancelled en route

622

No Incident Found on Arrival

631

Authorized controlled burning

650

Steam, gas mistaken for smoke,

651

Smoke Scare, Odor of Smoke

671

HazMat Investigation, no HazMat

False Alarm & False Call

700

False Alarm, Other

710

Malicious, mischievous false call, other

715

Local Alarm System, Malicious False Alarm

730

System Malfunction

731

Sprinkler activation due to malfunction

732

Extinguishing System Activation - Malfunction

733

Smoke Det. Activation - Malfunction

734

Heat Detector Activation - Malfunction

735

Alarm system sounded due to malfunction

736

CO detector activation due to malfunction

740

Unintentional transmission of alarm, other

741

Sprinkler activation, no fire

743

Smoke Det. Activation - Unintentional

744

Detector activation, no fire

745

Alarm System Act. - Unintentional

746

Carbon Monoxide Activation, NO CO

Severe Weather

813

Wind Storm,Tornado/Hurricane Assessment

Special Incident Type

911

Citizen Complaint

9003

Affidavit Issued

Total Response for Union Twp/City

21

16

12




I Emergency - MPFD

| |Emergency - MPFD Secondary to MMR

-Non - Emergency

13



Policy: 2.5.10 Cash Flow Ratio

Type: Internal
Occurrence: Monthly
Date: August 2016

Policy Wording
He or she shall not fail to maintain an adequate level of cash flow.

Manager Interpretation

Manager interprets this policy to indicate that cash availability for the major funds
(not including debt retirement or special revenue funds) should not fall below a certain
threshold. The threshold amount used for the data and compliance sections of this policy is
as follows: General Fund — 4 months of budgeted expenses for the current fiscal year; Fire
Fund — 3 of the quarterly contract payments due to the City of Mt. Pleasant for fire
protection services; East and West DDA Funds — 4 months of normal operational expenses;
Water and Sewer Funds — 2 months of budgeted expenses for the current fiscal year;

Justification for reasonability

Cash flow for this report is defined as “liquid cash reserves held by a bank or credit
union that can be accessed and utilized on an as needed basis.”

The Township Manager has determined that 4 months of cash reserves is needed for
the General Fund because property taxes are collected in December, January, and February,
and that accounts for 20% of the revenues for the General Fund. State Revenue Sharing
(60% of GF revenues) is received semi monthly thereby giving the township an influx of cash
for operations.

For the Fire Fund, 3 quarterly contract payments are required to meet the obligations
of the July, October, and January payments prior to the collection of the property tax in the
first quarter of each year

For the East and West DDA districts 4 months of cash reserves are needed to meet
the normal operations of the East and West Districts. Project costs are not included because
they are not reoccurring and will be based on the tax capture amount that will be deposited
in the respective funds during the first quarter of each year.

For the Water and Sewer Funds 2 months of cash reserves are needed because 80% of
the water and sewer bills are paid in the first two months of each quarter. Bills are sent in
January, April, July, and October of each year.

Data used from this report is gathered from the BS&A General Ledger system —
report- “Cash Summary by Account for the Charter Township of Union” and is based on the
reconciled cash at the end of the previous month.

Page 1 of 2



Policy 2.5.10 continued

Data
Fund Current cash Amount required for compliance =~ Compliant?
GF Total $ 3,044,946
(Restricted-Const) $ (21,025)
GF Unrestricted $ 3.023.921 $536.487 Yes
Fire Fund $ 1,246,949
(Fire Truck Reserve) $ (350,000)
FF Unrestricted $ 896,949 $501.975 Yes
EDDA $1.,211,530

Projects $ -0-
EDDA Unrestricted $1.211.530 $ 140.950 Yes
WDDA $ 839,824

Projects $ -0-
WDDA Unrestricted $ 839.824 $ 98.533 Yes
Sewer Fund $ 3,442,240

Savings 2004 Bond Reserve (175 871)

Savings 2011 Bond Reserve (30 000)

Savings 2011 Bond RPI Reserve 61,230)

Savings 2013 Bond Reserve 60,000)

Savings 2013 Bond RPI Reserve 10,521)
Sewer Fund Net $3.104.618 $ 364.057 Yes
Water Fund $ 2.826.107 $ 197,998 Yes

Compliance

All funds are found to be in compliance.

Page 2 of 2



10/06/2016 03:11 PM REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF UNION Pag 1/1

User: SHERRIE PERIOD ENDING 08/31/2016
DB: Union % Fiscal Year Completed: 66.67
YTD BALANCE
2016 08/31/2016 % BDGT
ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION AMENDED BUDGET NORMAL (ABNORMAL) USED

Fund 206 - FIRE FUND
Fund 206 - FIRE FUND:

TOTAL REVENUES 695,128.00 706,601.47 101.65
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 695,128.00 669,300.00 96.28
NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES 0.00 37,301.47 100.00

Fund 248 - EDDA OPERATING
Fund 248 - EDDA OPERATING:

TOTAL REVENUES 422,849.00 429,914.40 101.67
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 422,849.00 452,265.54 106.96
NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES 0.00 (22,351.14) 100.00

Fund 250 - WDDA OPERATING
Fund 250 - WDDA OPERATING:

TOTAL REVENUES 595,598.00 450,766.58 75.68
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 595,598.00 257,316.28 43.20
NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES 0.00 193,450.30 100.00

Fund 590 - SEWER FUND
Fund 590 - SEWER FUND:

TOTAL REVENUES 3,113,961.00 1,379,572.09 44.30
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 3,113,961.00 991,766.83 31.85
NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES 0.00 387,805.26 100.00

Fund 591 - WATER FUND
Fund 591 - WATER FUND:

TOTAL REVENUES 1,667,945.00 820, 920.04 49.22
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,667,945.00 761,273.34 45.64
NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES 0.00 59,646.70 100.00
TOTAL REVENUES - ALL FUNDS 6,495,481.00 3,787,774.58 58.31
TOTAL EXPENDITURES - ALL FUNDS 6,495,481.00 3,131,921.99 48.22
NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES 0.00 655,852.59 100.00

16



10/06/2016 02:56 PM REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF UNION Pag 1/1
User: SHERRIE PERIOD ENDING 08/31/2016
DB: Union % Fiscal Year Completed: 66.67
PERIOD

END BALANCE 2016 BALANCE % BDGT

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION 12/31/2015 AMENDED BUDGET DR (CR) USED
DR (CR)

Fund 101 - GENERAL FUND
Revenues
101-000-402.000 CURRENT PROPERTY TAX (282,008.53) 305,187.00 (301,614.13) 98.83
101-000-402.001 PROPERTY TAX REFUNDS-MTT 3,244.14 (10,000.00) 262.601 2.63
101-000-402.002 PILOT TAX (2,927.50) 4,000.00 0.00 0.00
101-000-402.100 PRIOR YEARS PROPERTY TAXES (79.29) 50.00 2,103.68 '4,207.36)
101-000-420.000 DELQ PERSONAL PROPERTY TAXES (389.38) 0.00 (713.54) 100.00
101-000-425.000 MOBILE HOME PARK TAX (2,233.00) 2,250.00 (1,333.00) 59.24
101-000-445.000 INTEREST ON TAXES (19.46) 50.00 1,009.83 '2,019.66)
101-000-446.000 % OR 4% PENALTY ON TAX (3,234.90) 4,000.00 (20,981.00) 524.53
101-000-447.000 ADMIN FEE-PROPERTY TAX (137,379.07) 135,000.00 (115,805.62) 85.78
101-000-447.001 ADMIN FEES-REFUNDS MTT BOR 1,712.03 0.00 202.14 100.00
101-000-447.050 ADMIN FEE-STATE EDUC TAX (SET) (7,800.00) 8,000.00 (7,765.00) 97.06
101-000-447.100 ADMIN FEE-PRIOR YEARS 0.00 0.00 93.85 100.00
101-000-475.000 CABLE TV (80,463.35) 75,000.00 (39,947.33) 53.26
101-000-476.000 BUILDING PERMITS (128,839.00) 75,000.00 (44,142.12) 58.86
101-000-477.000 RENTAL INSPECTION FEES (79,252.50) 80,125.00 (78,244.50) 97.65
101-000-478.000 DOG LICENSE REVENUE (1.00) 15.00 (3.00) 20.00
101-000-479.000 ZONING PERMITS (54,876.00) 40,000.00 (7,120.00) 17.80
101-000-574.000 STATE REVENUE SHARING (1,005,548.00) 994,145.00 (316,971.00) 31.88
101-000-574.100 LIQUOR STATE REVENUE SHARING (11,567.05) 10,000.00 (261.25) 2.601
101-000-574.200 METRO ANNUAL MAINT. FEE (6,100.56) 6,250.00 (7,749.49) 123.99
101-000-626.000 COPIES (14.75) 5.00 0.00 0.00
101-000-627.000 SERVICES RENDERED FOR EDDA (8,007.94) 11,000.00 0.00 0.00
101-000-628.000 LAND DIVISIONS (1,100.00) 500.00 (400.00) 80.00
101-000-630.000 WEED ABATEMENT SERVICES (344.25) 500.00 (950.75) 190.15
101-000-655.000 FINES & FORFEITURES (1,356.76) 1,500.00 (914.10) 60.94
101-000-665.000 INTEREST EARNED (14,712.55) 10,000.00 (14,727.77) 147.28
101-000-667.000 RENT - JAMESON HALL (9,590.00) 4,500.00 (3,740.00) 83.11
101-000-667.100 RENT - McDONALD PARK PAVILION (1,180.00) 1,250.00 (1,360.00) 108.80
101-000-667.200 RENT - JAMESON PAVILION (580.00) 750.00 (420.00) 56.00
101-000-667.300 LEASES (900.00) 900.00 (900.00) 100.00
101-000-671.000 OTHER REVENUE (4,478.20) 750.00 (8,793.69) 1,172.49
101-000-672.400 REVENUE-STREET LIGHTS SPEC ASSESS (17,487.34) 15,000.00 (12,577.17) 83.85
101-000-673.000 GAIN ON SALE OF FIXED ASSETS 0.00 0.00 (6,500.00) 100.00
TOTAL Revenues (1,857,514.21) 1,775,727.00 (990,262.35) 55.77
Expenditures
101 TRUSTEES 90,978.60 115,643.00 60,976.80 52.73
171 SUPERVISOR 27,730.38 28,598.00 22,187.47 77.58
172 TWP MANAGER 40,740.73 34,385.00 34,731.98 101.01
191 ACCOUNTING/GEN ADMINISTRATION 137,063.77 152,637.00 104,070.26 68.18
215 CLERK 27,423.37 31,854.00 31,106.44 97.65
228 INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 33,765.97 45,000.00 25,817.17 57.37
247 BOARD OF REVIEW 3,649.86 5,949.00 4,400.04 73.96
253 TREASURER 33,598.44 31,521.00 17,392.38 55.18
257 ASSESSOR 214,253.16 201,852.00 132,617.04 65.70
262 ELECTIONS 5,268.89 12,620.00 19,168.45 151.89
265 TWP HALL & GROUNDS 56,899.24 62,600.00 40,081.45 64.03
266 LEGAL/ATTORNEY 2,445.00 10,000.00 17,062.85 170.63
330 LIQUOR CONTROL 10,565.92 11,753.00 7,022.84 59.75
371 BUILDING 48,114.60 52,109.00 38,093.93 73.10
372 ZONING 47,179.91 45,663.00 33,156.09 72.061
373 RENTAL INSPECTIONS 157,320.03 171,663.00 94,222.29 54.89
441 PUBLIC WORKS 268,752.87 770,750.00 225,254.23 29.23
721 PLANNING 18,376.35 28,607.00 5,374.69 18.79
722 ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 2,980.46 4,788.00 637.84 13.32
751 PARKS & RECREATION 165,700.13 133,457.00 85,915.47 64.38
901 CAPITAL OUTLAY 62,899.35 174,500.00 33,764.80 19.35
966 CONTINGENCY 0.00 20,000.00 0.00 0.00
TOTAL Expenditures 1,455,707.03 2,145,949.00 1,033,054.51 48.14
Fund 101 - GENERAL FUND:
TOTAL REVENUES 1,857,514.21 1,775,727.00 990,262.35 55.77
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,455,707.03 2,145,949.00 1,033,054.51 48.14
NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES 401,807.18 (370,222.00) (42,792.16) 11.56

17



Charter Township

% o¢ .| ReEQUESTFOR TOWNSHIP BOARD ACTION
Jnion

To: Board of Trustees DATE: 9/30/16

FRom: Mark Stuhldreher, Township Manager DATE FOR BOARD CONSIDERATION: 10/12/16

AcTION REQUESTED: Approve an additional contribution of $18,000 to Mid Michigan Community
Pathway(MMCP) Group to facilitate the completion of a paved, non-motorized pathway between Shepherd
and Mt. Pleasant in Isabella County

Current Action Emergency

Funds Budgeted: If Yes Account # No X N/A

Finance Approval

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

In September, 2014, the Board approved a $25,000 contribution to MMCP Group in support of building a
non-motorized, paved pathway between Shepherd and Mt. Pleasant in Isabella County. A copy of the
Action Plan is attached providing additional details of this project. Also attached is an internal MMCP
Group memo describing the project funding to date.

As noted in the memo, project resources committed to date are approximately $190,000 short (less than
10%) of the project budget of $2,217,000. To help close this gap, representatives of MMCP approached
the Township with a request to increase the previously approved contribution.

SCOPE OF SERVICES

As detailed in the Action Plan the pathway, when completed, will travel approximately 40 miles through
mid-Michigan, will connect with other existing regional trails and will pass through several villages,
townships and cities, including Union Township.

JUSTIFICATION

This project creates linkage with communities, businesses and governments in the area and provides a quality
non-motorized environment for all through safety, health, education, culture and art.

PROJECT IMPROVEMENTS
Board of Trustee’s goals addressed by this project (From Policy 1.0: Global End)

Community well-being and common good

Prosperity through economic diversity, cultural diversity, and social diversity
Safety

Health

Natural Environment

Commerce

oukwnNneE

CosTs




Commitments to date by the Township total $25,000. This request is to increase the previous commitment by
an additional $18,000 bringing the total Township commitments for the project to $43,000 or approximately
2% of the total project budget.

PROJECT TIME TABLE

The portion of the pathway between Ithaca and Alma/St Louis is currently under construction. The portion
between Shepherd and the Township is targeted for completion per the Action Plan in 2017.

RESOLUTION

Authorization is hereby given to commit an additional $18,000 to the MMCP Group to facilitate the
completion of a paved, non-motorized pathway between Shepherd and Mt. Pleasant in Isabella County
with a connection point in Union Township

Resolved by Seconded by

Yes:
No:
Absent:



Mid-Michigan Community Pathways Group
Action Plan

MARCH 2016

20




The Mid-Michigan Community Pathways Group is a collaboration of local, state, and
tribal entities working toward a common goal of the construction of a paved, non-
motorized path network between the cities of Ithaca and Clare in Isabella and Gratiot
Counties (approximately 40 miles of pathway). The group is composed of
representatives and support from:

Alma College

Arcada Township

Central Michigan University

Charter Township of Union

Chippewa Township

City of Alma

City of Clare

City of Ithaca

City of Mt. Pleasant

City of St. Louis

Clinton County Parks & Green Space Commission
Clare County Parks and Recreation Department
Coe Township

Dick Allen

East Michigan Council of Governments

Fulton Township

Gratiot Area Chamber of Commerce

Gratiot County

Gratiot County Community Foundation

Gratiot County Parks and Recreation Department
Gratiot County Road Commission

Greater Gratiot Development Corporation
Isabella County Parks and Recreation Department
Isabella County Road Commission

Michigan Department of Transportation
Mid-Michigan Community College

Mid-Michigan Cycling Club

Mid-Michigan Development Corporation

Mt. Pleasant Area Community Foundation

Mt. Pleasant Parks and Recreation Department
Mt. Pleasant Public Schools

Pine River Township

Saginaw Chippewa Indian Tribe

The Friends of the Fred Meijer Trail

21




The Friends of the Pere Marquette Trail
Village of Rosebush

Village of Shepherd

Vision 20/20 Group of Isabella County

The list of supporters continues to grow with every meeting of the group and as word
spreads of their efforts.

The group is structured similar to that of a municipal council with a President, Vice
President, Secretary, and Treasurer. Below is a list of the members and their positions:

e President, Steve Davidson, DPW Crew Leader — Village of Shepherd

e Vice President, Sue Ann Kopmeyer, Parks and Recreation Director — Isabella
County

e Secretary, Steven Clark, Project Administrator - ROWE PSC

e Treasurer, Pete Little, Parks and Recreation Director — Gratiot County

The group has drafted a Group Charter to maintain focus for the group’s initiatives. The
following document serves as the framework of the group:

Mid-Michigan Community Pathway Group

CHARTER STATEMENT

Develop the Mid-Michigan Community Non-Motorized Pathway starting with the segment
from Ithaca through Clare, promoting partnerships with communities, businesses and
governments in the area.

Long-Term Goal:

Have a separate non-motorized pathway providing a quality non-motorized environment
for all through safety, health, education, culture and art. Provide linkage to businesses
and communities through other routes, including regional tracks.

Purpose:

Create the Mid-Michigan Community Non-Motorized Pathway for the benefit of the public
residents, communities and governments in the area of the path. Elements of the path
include:

Separate non-motorized path

Connection to the communities

Quality family experience

Link to public parking (park & ride, bike) lots

Promote art and cultures

Support education

22




Provide a low-stress quality experience
Link to major trails
Low impact environmentally and socially

Task:

Identify long-term corridors for a separated path.

Encourage short-term solutions and local connections. Support business and
communities to promote a quality experience.

Recognize opportunities for community loops to encourage positive education
and cultural experience.

Identify funding options for path development and connectivity to encourage
a greener lifestyle.

Promote fund raising events for the public and path maintenance. Develop the
path for cyclists, pedestrians and rollerbladers.

Include provisions for handicap users.

Success:

In 20 years, develop a separated pathway connecting Mid-Michigan communities
starting with Ithaca through Clare. Include linkage to regional paths such as the Fred
Meijer and the Pere Marquette trails. Support communities in connecting the non-
motorized system to get individuals to local destinations, creating without use of
motorized vehicles, a quality family experience. Have in place a funding mechanism to
provide maintenance for the next 20 years. Have evidence of a healthier more
sustainable community, both physically and economically.

The MMCP Group is also working on a Public Relations campaign in order to gain the
support and involvement of local, state, and federal agencies and the members of the
travelling public towards this common goal. The individual PR items which are to be, or
have already been created are listed below:

Creation of a MMCP Website: www.midmichpathways.org

Creation of a group Facebook page

Creation of an informational tri-fold pamphlet

Creation of a Powerpoint presentation detailing the groups intentions, factual
information regarding the construction of pathways and their benefits

The MMCP Group has also received numerous letters of support. Those letters can be
found in Appendix A.

The group has divided the path network into six segments as of this time. The
availability of funding will likely define the segments further in the future, possibly

23



http://www.midmichpathways.org/

breaking them down into smaller ones over time. The following is a preliminary list of the
different path segments:

Alma/St. Louis area to Ithaca

Shepherd to Alma/St. Louis area

Mt. Pleasant to Shepherd

Mt. Pleasant to Saginaw Chippewa Indian Tribe
Mt. Pleasant to Rosebush

Rosebush to Clare

As each segment of the path network is completed, there will be a fair amount of
maintenance which will be required to keep the pathways in a safe condition. The group
has formulated the following ideas to raise money to create a “Maintenance Fund” for
the segments of pathway:

Locally designed art sculptures will be displayed along the segments of pathway.
The proceeds from the sale of the art pieces (certain percentage), or the spaces
themselves can be leased to the artist for a certain fee.

Users or the path segments (either individual, or corporate) would become
members of the Users group (i.e.: Friends of the Fred Meijer, Friends of the Pere
Marquette, etc.) and a yearly fee would be collected.

Donations from local organizations would be collected.

Creation of an “Adopt-A-Mile” program will assist will general path maintenance

In order to organize our efforts, and proceed with the construction of each segment of
pathway in a constructive manner, we have assembled this document titled the “Action
Plan” for the MMCP group. The document is structured in the following manner:

l.
Il.
[I.
V.
V.

Path Segment Description
Map of Project Area
Estimated Project Costs
Funding Options

Project Schedule

The conceptual project estimates include costs for projected inflation at 2% per year.

24




Segment A (16.3 miles+/-), Connection of the Alma/St. Louis Area to lthaca

Path Segment Description

This segment of pathway has two beginning points (two legs). The first path
leg begins at the existing Fred Meijer path network on Charles Avenue and
heads south to Superior Street (approx. 0.5 mile). Then, then path would
head east along Superior Street (US-127BR) through downtown Alma and
connect to the second path leg which heads north into St. Louis at the E.
Lincoln Road/State Road (US-127BR) intersection (approx. 3.5 miles). A
significant portion of this path segment proposes re-striping of the roadway to
include bike lanes. The second leg would start at Charles Avenue/Monroe
Road (M-46) and head east to downtown St. Louis along Monroe Road/M-46
(approx. 3.5 miles). From here, the path would turn south and head to the E.
Lincoln Road/State Road (US-127BR) intersection along State Road/US-
127BR and combine with the first path leg (approx. 2.0 miles). A significant
portion of this path segment also proposes re-striping of the roadway to
include bike lanes. The path would then continue east along E. Lincoln Road
to the east side of US-127, then turn south on the east side of northbound
US-127 (approx. 0.25 mile). The path would head south (within the US-127
right-of-way), pass by the Rest Area, and continue to Washington Road/US-
127BR in Ithaca (approx. 6.5 miles). The path would turn west, and terminate
at the Park and Ride on the north side of the road (approx. 0.06 mile). This
segment totals approximately 16.3 miles of pathway.

25




Il. Map of Project Area

CITY OF ST. LOUIS

- QDOSFD PATy

Y OF ALMA

3 RWER WAK

" RVER WALK

} REST AREA

\%, PARK & RIDE -
\>  CONNECTION
BN PONT 10 CIS
RAILTRAIL

CITY OF ITHACA

26




Estimated Project Costs

CONSTRUCTION

CONTINGENCY & INFLATION (43%)
DESIGN ENGINEERING (7%)
CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING (8%)
TOTAL

Funding Options

The following list contains different funding options for the construction of

non-motorized pathways:

e MDOT TAP Program (typically a 60/40 split, 60% State and federal

funds, 40% match funds)

e MDNR Trust Fund (Typically a 50/50 split, with higher priority given to

applications with larger matches), $300K cap
e Saginaw Chippewa Indian Tribe 2% Program

e Private Donors (East Michigan Coalition of Governments, Gratiot
County Community Foundation, Fred Meijer, MDNR Recreation

$3,446,783
$1,482,117
$ 345,023
$ 394,312
$5,668,235

Passport Program, Morey Foundation , Mt. Pleasant Area Community
Foundation, Mt. Pleasant Community Foundation, etc.)

A portion of this segment (6.6 miles) along US-127 between Ithaca and

the southern boundary of the Alma/St. Louis area has been bid with the

highway project and should be under construction during the spring of

2016.

Schedule

Although subject to change based on funding availability, the following is a
schedule for the completion of this segment of non-motorized pathway:

Complete Design Engineering
Acquire Match Funding for Project
Acquire Remainder of Funding
Begin Construction

Complete Construction

2015
2015
2015
2016
2016

27




Segment B (9.1 miles+/-), Connection of the Village of Shepherd and the Alma/St.
Louis Area

l. Path Segment Description

This segment of pathway begins at the south end of the Village of Shepherd
where the existing path network extends along S. Shepherd Road. The path
would head south along S. Shepherd Road until it reaches E. South County
Line Road/Gratiot County Line (approx. 3.2 miles). From here the path would
head east along E. South County Line Road to the existing US-127 right-of-
way (approx. 0.5 mile). Then, the path would head south within the US-127
right-of-way to Monroe Road/M-46 (approx. 4.0 miles). The path would then
continue south along Charles Avenue to the existing Fred Meijer path network
(approx. 1.4 miles). This segment totals approximately 9.1 miles of pathway.

28




Map of Project Area

OF SHEPHERD

Estimated Project Costs

CONSTRUCTION

CONTINGENCY & INFLATION (35%)
DESIGN ENGINEERING (7%)
CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING (8%)
TOTAL

$2,161,177
$ 821,248
$ 208,770
$ 238,594
$3,429,789

29




V. Funding Options

The following list contains different funding options for the construction of
non-motorized pathways:

e MDOT TAP Program (typically a 60/40 split, 60% State and federal
funds, 40% match funds)

e MDNR Trust Fund (Typically a 50/50 split, with higher priority given to
applications with larger matches), $300K cap.

e Saginaw Chippewa Indian Tribe 2% Program

e Private Donors (East Michigan Coalition of Governments, Gratiot
County Community Foundation, Fred Meijer, MDNR Recreation
Passport Program, Morey Foundation , Mt. Pleasant Area Community
Foundation, Mt. Pleasant Community Foundation, etc.)

V. Schedule

Although subiject to change based on funding availability, the following is a
schedule for the completion of this segment of non-motorized pathway:

Complete Design Engineering TBD
Acquire Match Funding for Project TBD
Acquire Remainder of Funding TBD
Begin Construction TBD
Complete Construction TBD

Segment C (6.8 miles+/-), Connection of the Mt. Pleasant Area and the Village of
Shepherd

l. Path Segment Description

This segment of pathway begins at the intersection of Deerfield Road and S.
Mission Road. The path would head south and follow S. Mission Road until it
reaches Blanchard Road (approx. 3 miles). Then, the path would turn east
and head to 15t Street in the Village of Shepherd along Blanchard Road
(approx. 3.8 miles). Once at First Street, the path would head south
approximately 3 blocks (approx. 0.05 mile) and connect to the Village’s
existing 1.8 mile long paved path system. This segment totals approximately
6.8 miles of pathway.

30




It is important to note, since a pathway has been built along Deerfield Road
between S. Mission and Crawford Roads, there is local interest to extend the
Deerfield Road pathway north along Crawford Road to the Broomfield Road
intersection. The City would like to continue west on Broomfield Road
approximately 0.5 mile and then head north towards the Chippewa River. At
this point there would be a connection to the City’s pathway system through
the parks.

Il. Map of Project Area

OF SHEPHERD




Estimated Project Costs

CONSTRUCTION $1,583,867
CONTINGENCY & INFLATION (20%) $ 328,653
DESIGN ENGINEERING (7%) $ 133,877
CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING (8%) $ 153,002
TOTAL $2,199,399

Funding Options

The following list contains different funding options for the construction of
non-motorized pathways:

e MDOT TAP Program (typically a 60/40 split, 60% State and federal
funds, 40% match funds)

e MDNR Trust Fund (Typically a 50/50 split, with higher priority given to
applications with larger matches), $300K cap.

e Saginaw Chippewa Indian Tribe 2% Program

e Private Donors (Gratiot County Community Foundation, MDNR
Recreation Passport Program, Morey Foundation, Mt. Pleasant Area
Community Foundation, etc.)

Schedule

Although subiject to change based on funding availability, the following is a
schedule for the completion of this segment of non-motorized pathway:

Complete Design Engineering March 2016
Acquire Match Funding for Project April 2016
Begin Construction Summer 2016
Complete Construction Spring 2017

Segment D (1.6 miles+/-), SCIT Cultural Loop

Path Segment Description

This segment begins just west of US-127 at Isabella Road, crosses the
freeway utilizing a proposed tunnel/freeway overpass, then continues east
along Remus Road to Isabella Road. Once at Summerton Road the path
continues east cross country approx. ¥z mile, then turns north passes the
SCIT Elders Center and ends at Broadway Road at the Ziibiwing Cultural
Center. This segment totals approximately 1.6 miles of pathway.

32




Il. Map of Project Area

II. Estimated Project Costs

CONSTRUCTION $2,634,011
CONTINGENCY (20%) $ 526,803
DESIGN ENGINEERING (7%) $ 221,257
CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING (8%) $ 252,865
TOTAL $3,634,936

V. Funding Options

The following list contains different funding options for the construction of
non-motorized pathways:

e MDOT TAP Program (typically a 60/40 split, 60% State and federal
funds, 40% match funds)

e MDNR Trust Fund (Typically a 50/50 split, with higher priority given to
applications with larger matches), $300K cap.

e Saginaw Chippewa Indian Tribe 2% Program

33




e Private Donors (East Michigan Coalition of Governments, Gratiot
County Community Foundation, Fred Meijer, MDNR Recreation
Passport Program, Morey Foundation , Mt. Pleasant Area Community
Foundation, Mt. Pleasant Community Foundation, etc.)

V. Schedule

Although subiject to change based on funding availability, the following is a
schedule for the completion of this segment of non-motorized pathway:

Complete Design Engineering TBD
Acquire Match Funding for Project TBD
Acquire Remainder of Funding TBD
Begin Construction TBD
Complete Construction TBD

Segment E (6.4 miles+/-), Connection of the Mt. Pleasant Area and the Village of
Rosebush

l. Path Segment Description

This segment of pathway begins at the intersection of Crawford and River
Roads. This is the point where the city plans to extend their pathway system
to from the Island Park area, north to Mission Creek Park (Hanna’s Bark
Park), then further north to the Crawford and River Road intersection. From
here, the pathway would head east to N. Mission Road on River Road. The
path would then head north along N. Mission Road to the existing north/south
path segment located at the Isabella County Fairgrounds (approx. 1.4 miles).
Then, the path would continue along N. Mission Road north to Rosebush
Road in the Village of Rosebush (approx. 4.0 miles). This segment totals
approximately 6.4 miles of pathway.

34




Map of Project Area

Estimated Project Costs

CONSTRUCTION

CONTINGENCY & INFLATION (27%)
DESIGN ENGINEERING (7%)
CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING (8%)
TOTAL

$1,324,737
$ 381,525
$ 119,439
$ 136,501
$1,962,202

35




V. Funding Options

The following list contains different funding options for the construction of
non-motorized pathways:

e MDOT TAP Program (typically a 60/40 split, 60% State and federal
funds, 40% match funds)

e MDNR Trust Fund (Typically a 50/50 split, with higher priority given to
applications with larger matches), $300K cap.

e Saginaw Chippewa Indian Tribe 2% Program

e Private Donors (East Michigan Coalition of Governments, Gratiot
County Community Foundation, Fred Meijer, MDNR Recreation
Passport Program, Morey Foundation , Mt. Pleasant Area Community
Foundation, Mt. Pleasant Community Foundation, etc.)

V. Schedule

Although subject to change based on funding availability, the following is a
schedule for the completion of this segment of non-motorized pathway:

Complete Design Engineering TBD
Acquire Match Funding for Project TBD
Acquire Remainder of Funding TBD
Begin Construction TBD
Complete Construction TBD

Segment F (7.8 miles+/-), Connection of the Village of Rosebush and Clare

l. Path Segment Description

This segment of pathway begins at the E. Rosebush Road/N. Mission Road
intersection in the Village of Rosebush. The path would head north along N.
Mission Road until it reaches the US-127BR interchange at the south end of
Clare (approx. 7.8 miles). This segment totals approximately 7.8 miles of
pathway.

36




Map of Project Area

Estimated Project Costs

CONSTRUCTION

CONTINGENCY & INFLATION (51%)
DESIGN ENGINEERING (7%)
CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING (8%)
TOTAL

$2,054,638
$1,047,866
$ 217,175
$ 248,200
$3,567,879

37




V. Funding Options

The following list contains different funding options for the construction of
non-motorized pathways:

e MDOT TAP Program (typically a 60/40 split, 60% State and federal
funds, 40% match funds)

e MDNR Trust Fund (Typically a 50/50 split, with higher priority given to
applications with larger matches), $300K cap.

e Saginaw Chippewa Indian Tribe 2% Program

e Private Donors (East Michigan Coalition of Governments, Gratiot
County Community Foundation, Fred Meijer, MDNR Recreation
Passport Program, Morey Foundation , Mt. Pleasant Area Community
Foundation, Mt. Pleasant Community Foundation, etc.)

V. Schedule

Although subiject to change based on funding availability, the following is a
schedule for the completion of this segment of non-motorized pathway:

Complete Design Engineering TBD
Acquire Match Funding for Project TBD
Acquire Remainder of Funding TBD
Begin Construction TBD

Complete Construction TBD

38




APPENDIX A

Letters of Support

39




Memorandum

To: MMCP Officers

From: Steve Davidson, Village of Shepherd, MMCP Chairman
Date: September 30, 2016

RE: MMCP Phase | Grant Applications, Project Funding Status

Below is a summary of the grants the MMCP is currently applying for, or have already obtained, to cover
the costs of constructing the 6.8 mile long shared-use pathway segment between Mt. Pleasant and Shepherd:

Current construction cost estimate: $1,909,600

MDOT TAP $1,336,720 (70.0%)
MDNR TF $296,000

Saginaw WIN $35,000

Mt. Pleasant Area Community Foundation $5,000

Village of Shepherd $4,000

Charter Township of Union $25,000

Gerstacker Foundation $15,000

Total $1,716,720

Below is a summary of the awarded “soft” costs for the project:

Saginaw Chippewa Indian Tribe $134,000 Survey and Design

Mt. Pleasant Area Community Foundation $15,000 Survey and Environmental
Saginaw Chippewa Indian Tribe $158,800 Construction Engineering
Total $307,800

Total funds raised to date: $2,024,520 91.30%

Total funds needed for project: $2,217,400

Difference: $192,880 8.70%

The following is a brief discussion regarding the details of the other grant applications and the schedule
associated with them.

The MDOT TAP Grant has been awarded by MDOT
In 2014, the MDNR TF Grant has received a final score of 360 out of 440 points. The cut-off for funding

was 380 points. The application was re-submitted in March 2015. In December 2015, the Village was
notified the application is being recommended for funding.

40



We are pleased to announce the Village of Shepherd was awarded a $35,000 grant from the Saginaw WIN
Organization towards the construction costs associated with the development of the pathway between Mt.
Pleasant and Shepherd.

The Mt. Pleasant Community Foundation grant in the amount of $5,000 has been awarded. In December
2015, we were notified the MPACF agreed to award an additional $15,000 in grant funds.

On September 24, 2014, The Charter Township of Union agreed to donate $25,000 towards the
construction of the pathway. We truly appreciate their support of the project.

The Village of Shepherd generously contributed $4,000 towards the project.

Steve Davidson has requested $70,000 from the Morey Foundation. It originally appeared the project may
only receive about half of the request. This grant was not awarded.

We have applied for $15,000 from ITC for the pathway, but this grant was not awarded. We are
resubmitting this grant in October, 2016.

We have applied for $142,000 from Consumers Energy and we have been informed they like the project
and a decision should be made in March 2016. We were then notified they may only award about $35,000
of the request. This grant is still pending.

A grant application to the Gerstacker Foundation grant was submitted at the end of July, 2016 in the amount
of $207,880, and $15,000 was awarded.

A grant application to TransCanada was submitted September, 2016 in the amount of $183,463.

41



Charter Townshi

REQUEST FOR TOWNSHIP BOARD ACTION

nion
To: Board of Trustees Date: 10/5/2016
From: Peter Gallinat, Twp Planner DATE FOR BoARD CONSIDERATION:  10/12/2016

ACTION REQUESTED: APPROVE SERVICE AGREEMENT WITH LSL PLANNING TO ASSIST WITH UNION TOWNSHIP MASTER PLAN UPDATE

Current Action Yes Emergency
Funds Budgeted: If Yes X __ Account#__ 101-721-801.000 No N/A
Finance Approval MDS
BACKGROUND INFORMATION

The Charter Township of Union adopted their Master Plan in 2011. Since that time the Township has
experienced increased development and expects further growth. Earlier this year the Township conducted a
community survey that contains critical data and input from citizens of the township. The Township Planning
Commission decided earlier this year to conduct a 5 year review of the Master Plan with the assistance of a
professional planning firm.

A Request for Proposal was issued June 6, 2016 and 3 bids were received on July 6, 2016. The bids were from
ROWE Engineering, Spicer Group and LSL Planning. The respective proposals are attached. Over the summer
the Planning Commission carefully reviewed the 3 bids and on September 20, 2016 voted to award LSL
Planning the contract . LSL Planning is not the low bid but the Planning Commission felt their proposal was a
better fit for the type of review and update being sought. Reference checks were performed and all feedback
was positive.

At the time the RFP was issued the Planning Commission was unsure of what else needed to be updated
outside of the future land use map. The RFP was left open ended stating that “the board would be interested in
other updates that the consultant felt appropriate” The Commission was impressed with the response received
from LSL Planning saying that the new Master Plan would be very graphic, easy to read, focused and concise
document.

SCOPE OF SERVICES
The project is broken down into the following phases:

Kick Off with Staff and Planning Commission
Update existing conditions

Update Future Land Use Map

Create Graphic Concise Plan

Revise Implementation Plan

Plan Adoption

LU S

JUSTIFICATION

e

42




Section 125.3845(2) of the Michigan Zoning Enabling Act, Act 33 of 2008 states ‘At least every 5 years after
adoption of a master plan, a Planning Commission shall review the master plan and determine whether to
commence the procedure to amend the master plan or adopt a new master plan. The review and its findings shall
be recorded in the minutes of the relevant meeting or meetings of the Planning Commission.”

PROJECT IMPROVEMENTS

Board of Trustee’s Goals Addressed by this project (From Policy 1.0: Global End):

Community well-being and common good

Prosperity through economic diversity, cultural diversity, and social diversity
Natural Environment

Commerce

Bt

CosTs
$19,100 (57,000 in 16’ and $12,100 in 17')

PROJECT TIME TABLE
November 2016-May 2017 (7 months)

RESOLUTION
Authorization is hereby given to approve the attached service agreement with LSL

Resolved by ~ Seconded by

Yes:
No:
Absent:

43



RFP: Charter Township of Union
Type:

RFP
Organization

Charter Township ol Union

Location
Union Township, 1sabella County, Michigan

Issued:

June 6, 2016

Submittal Deadline:

July 6, 2016

Project Overview:

The Charter Township of Union is requesting a proposal from a qualified consultant to assist the Planning Comimnission ina 5 year
review ol the 2011 Master plan. The primary goal is to update the Future Land Use Map portion of the Master Plan. The board would be
interesied in any other updates that the consultant felt appropriate. Pleasc detail those additional services in your proposal along with cost
eshimales.

‘The Charter Township of Union is located in Isabella County. The Township surrounds both the City of Mount Pleasant and Central
Michigan University,

The official Township population was 12, 927 for the 2010 Census. In 2014 the township was named the fastesl
growing in the stale of Michigan as staled in the December 2015 edition of “Around the State”.

Background information can be gathered to the extent possible from the existing 201 ) Charter Township of Master Plan,

Proposals: Submittal & Schedule

Submit proposal no laier than July 6, 2016 in sealed envelopes clearly marked as indicated:

PROPOSAL PACKAGE
NAME OF PACKAGE
PROPOSAL TO UPDATE
2011 Master Plan 5 years
Charter Township of Union, Michigan

Proposals can be submitted to:
Twp Planner

Charter Township of Union
2010 8. Lincoln Rd

Mount Pleasant. Ml 48858

Any questions conceming the Proposal(s) shall be directed 10
Peter Gallinat, Township Planner
(989) 772-4600 Ex1. 241 - office

paallinuti uniontownshipmi,.com

44



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
BETWEEN THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF UNION, MICHIGAN
AND LSL PLANNING, LLC

This Professional Services Agreement (“Agreement”), is entered into by and between the Charter Township of
Union, Michigan, {the “Client”) and LSL Planning, LLC, (the "Consultant”}.

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the Client is seeking a consultant to perform services in connection with the Charter Township

of Union Master Plan Update Project, listed in Exhibit A — List of Services, (the "Services”);

NOW THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged,

the Client and Consultant agree as follows:

1.

SCOPE OF SERVICES

Consultant will provide Services to the Client using qualified professionals as directed by the Client. Consultant
is not obligated to perform services beyond what is contemplated by this agreement. Consultant will perform
work at a leve! of competency in accordance with industry standards.

CHANGES TO SCOPE OF SERVICES

Any changes to Services that are mutually agreed upon between the Client and Consultant shall be made in
writing which shall specifically designate any changes in compensation for the Services and be made as a
signed and fully executed amendment to the Agreement.

FEE STRUCTURE

In consideration of the Consultant providing services, the Client shall pay the Consultant in accordance with
Exhibit B — Fee Schedule for Services. Reimbursable expenses shall include documented out-of-pocket costs
including, but not limited to, travel costs, long-distance phone calls, web conference charges, copying,
document reproduction, postage or overnight mail, photography, map repreduction and materials.

INVOICE & PAYMENT STRUCTURE

Consultant will invoice the Client on a monthly basis and provide all supporting documentation. All payments
are due to Consultant within 30 days of invoice date. The Client may request additional information before
accepting the invoice. When additional information is requested the Client will identify specific item(s} that
are in dispute and giving specific reasons for any request for information. If additional information is
requested, Client will submit payment within thirty (30} days of receiving the information.

TERM
This agreement shall be effective on the latest date on which the Agreement is fully executed by both Parties
through 60 days after project completion.

TERMINATION

Either party may terminate this Agreement, or any part of this Agreement upon thirty {30) days written notice,
with or without cause. In case of such termination, Consultant shall be entitled to receive payment for work
completed up to and including the date of termination within 30 days of the termination.

Consultant shall receive a portion of fees and expenses permitted under this Agreement in direct proportion
to percentage of work actually completed up to the termination date.

45



10.

Upon receipt of notice of termination, Consultant shall immediately discontinue all services and work in
connection with the performance of this Agreement and shall proceed to cancel promptly all existing contracts
and orders insofar as they relate to this Agreement.

In the event of termination, Consultant shall promptly deliver to the Client, in electronic and/or other formats
requested by the Client, all finished and unfinished documents, data, studies, surveys, drawings, maps,
madels, reports, photographs, and other work product prepared by Consultant under this Agreement. In the
event of any termination hereunder, Consultant consents to the Client's selection of another consultant of the
Client's choice to assist the Client in any way in completing the Services. Provided that Consultant has been
properly paid under this Agreement, Consultant further agrees to cooperate and provide any information
requested by the Client in connection with the completion of the Services. Consultant shall nat be responsible
or liable in any manner for the Client's use of unfinished work product or documents listed above.

CLIENT OBLIGATIONS
If relevant to the project and requested by the Consultant, Client shall provide:
A. Copies of all ordinances, reports, plans, maps, drawings, aerial photos, data and similar materials
relevant to the performance of the scope of services.
B. Client shall be responsible for professional, legal, or accounting services connected with the project.
C. Client shall be responsible for scheduling meeting rooms, publication of agendas and notices, and the
costs of publication of postings, notices and mailings.
D. Client shall devote sufficient time at meetings to adequately discuss any project in order to maintain
any agreed upon project schedule, or schedule special meeting devoted exclusively to the project.
E. Client shall provide the Consultant with decisions or reviews in a timely manner.
F. Client shall assign a primary contact person for any requested project. If the primary Client contact
is changed, the Consultant shall be compensated for time spend on orientation of new contact.

PERFORMANCE STANDARDS

Consultant shall use that degree of care, skill, and professionalism ordinarily exercised under similar
circumstances by members of the same profession practicing or performing the substantially same or similar
services. Consultant represents to the Client and retains employees that possess the skills, knowledge, and
abilities to competently, timely, and professionally perform the Services in accordance with this Agreement.

INDEMNIFICATION

To the fullest extent permitted by law, Consultant shall be liable for and shall defend, save, indemnify, and
hold harmless the Client, its elected and appointed officials, employees and volunteers and others working on
behalf of the Client, from and against any and all claims, demands, suits, costs {including reasanable legal
costs), expenses, and liabilities by reason of personal injury, including bodily injury or death and/or property
damage to the extent that any such injury, loss or damage is caused by the negligence or breach of duty of
Consultant or any officer, employee, representative, or agent of Consultant. The Client shall be responsible
for and shall defend, save, indemnify, and hold harmless Consultant, its officers, employees, representatives,
and agents, from and against any and all claims, demands, suits, costs (including reasonable legal costs),
expenses, and liabilities by reason of personal injury, including bodily injury or death and/or property damage
to the extent that any such injury, loss or damage is caused by the negligence or breach of duty of the Client
or any officer, employee, representative, or agent of the Client. If either party becomes aware of any incident
likely to give rise to a claim under the above indemnities, it shall notify the other and both parties shall
cooperate fully in investigating the incident.

ASSIGNMENT

Neither party shall assign all or part of the rights, duties, obligations, responsibilities, nor benefits set forth in
this Agreement to another entity without written approval of both parties; consent shall not be unreasonably
withheld. Consultant is permitted tc subcontract portions of the services to be provided. When
subconsultant{s) are utilized the Consultant is the Prime Consultant and remains responsible for any

46



11.

12.

13.

subcontractor’s performance. Subcontractors will be subject to the same performance criteria expected of
Consultant. Performances clauses will be included in contracts with all subcontractors to assure quality levels
and agreed upon schedules are met.

INSURANCE

A. Consultant agrees to procure and maintain, at its own cost, a policy or policies of insurance sufficient
to insure against alt liability, claims, demands, and other obligations assumed by the Consultant
pursuant to this Agreement. Such insurance shall be in addition to any other insurance requirements
imposed by law.

B. At a minimum, the Consultant shall procure and maintain, and shall cause any subcontractor of the
Consultant to procure and maintain, the minimum insurance coverage’s listed below. Such
coverage’s shall be procured and maintained with forms and insurers acceptable to the Client. In
the case of any claims-made policy, the necessary retroactive dates and extended reporting periods
shall be procured to maintain such continuous coverage.

C.  Warker's compensation insurance to cover obligations imposed by applicable law for any employee
engaged in the performance of work under this Agreement, and Employer's Liability insurance with
minimum limits of one million dollars ($1,000,000) bodily injury each accident, one millien dollars
{$1,000,000) bodily injury by disease — policy limit, and one million dollars {$1,000,000) bodily injury
by disease — each employee. Worker's compensation coverage in “monopolistic” states is
administered by the individual state and coverage is not provided by private insurers. Individual
states operate a state administered fund of workers compensation insurance which set coverage
limits and rates.

D. Commercial general liability insurance with minimum combined single limits of one million dollars
{$1,000,000) each occurrence and two million dollars {$2,000,000) general aggregate. The policy
shall be applicable to all premises and operations. The policy shall include coverage for bodily injury,
broad form property damage, personal injury {including coverage for contractual and employee
acts), blanket contractual, independant Consultant’s, products, and completed operations. The
palicy shall contain a severability of interest provision, and shall be endorsed to include the Client
and the Client’s officers, employees, and consultants as additional insureds. No additional insured
endorsement shall contain any exclusion for bodily injury or property damage arising from
completed operations.

E. Professional liability insurance with minimum limits of five million dollars (55,000,000} each claim
and five million dollars ($5,000,000) general aggregate.

F.  Vehicle liability insurance with a minimum combined single limits of one million dollars

(51,000,000} for bodily injury and property damage.
G. Prior to commencement of the Services, Consultant shall submit certificates of insurance acceptable
to the Client.

INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR

The Consultant is an independent contractor, and neither the Consultant, nor any employee or agent thereof,
shall be deemed for any reason to be an employee or agent of the Client. As the Consultant is an independent
contractor, the Client shall have no liability or responsibility for any direct payment of any salaries, wages,
payroll taxes, or any and all other forms or types of compensation or benefits to any personnel performing
services for the Client under this Agreement. The Consultant shall be solely responsible for all compensation,
benefits, insurance and employment-related rights of any person providing Services hereunder during the
course of or arising or accruing as a result of any employment, whether past or present, with the Consultant,
as well as all legal costs including attorney’s fees incurred in the defense of any conflict or legal action resulting
from such employment or related to the corporate amenities of such employment.

THIRD PARTY RELIANCE
This agreement is intended for the mutual benefit of the parties hereto and no third party rights are intended
or implied.

47



14.

15.

16.

17.

OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS / CONFIDENTIALITY

The Client shall retain ownership of all work product and deliverables created by Consultant pursuant to this
Agreement. All records, documents, notes, data, drawings, renderings, design documents and other materials
prepared for or resulting from the performance of the Services hereunder shall be collectively “Work
Products”. Consultant shall have the right to utilize these materials for marketing purposes, professional
presentations, articles, and for other business development purposes first obtaining the Township’s prior
written approval.

The Client and its duly authorized representatives shall have access to any books, documents, papers and
records of the Consultant that are related to this Agreement for the purposes of audit or examination, other
than the Consultant’s financial records, and may make excerpts and transcriptions of the same.

DISCRIMINATION / ADA COMPLIANCE

Cansultant will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color,
religion, age, sex, disability or national origin. Such action shall include but not be limited to the following:
employment, upgrading, demotion or transfer, recruitment or recruitment advertising, layoff or termination,
rates of pay or other forms of compensation, and selection for training, including apprenticeship. The
Consultant agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment,
notice to be provided by an agency of the federal government, setting forth the provisions of the Equal
Opportunity laws.

Consultant shall comply with the appropriate provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act (the "ADA"), as
enacted and as from time to time amended, and any other applicable federal regulations. A signed certificate
confirming compliance with the ADA may be requested by the Client at any time during the term of this
Agreement.

PROHIBITION AGAINST EMPLOYING ILLEGAL ALIENS:

Consultant shall not knowingly employ or contract with an illegal alien to perform work under this contract
and will verify immigration status to confirm employment eligibility. Consultant shall not enter into a contract
with a subcontractor that fails to certify to the Consultant that the subcontractor shall not knowingly employ
or contract with an illegal alien to perform work under this contract. Consultant is prohibited from using the
program or the Department program procedures to undertake pre-employment screening of job applicants
while this contract is being performed. Consultant is registered with and is authorized to use and uses the
federal work authorization program commonly known as E-Verify. Consultant’s federal work authorization
user identification number is 254821; authorization date of September 23, 2009.

SOLICITATION/HIRING OF CONSULTANT'S EMPLOYEES

During the term of this Agreement and for one year thereafter, Client shall not solicit, recruit or hire, or
attempt to solicit, recruit or hire, any employee or former employee of Consultant who provided services to
Client pursuant to this Agreement {“Service Providers”), or who interacted with Client in connection with the
provision of such services (including but not limited to supervisors or managers of Service Providers, customer
relations personnel, accounting personnel, and other support personnel of Consultant). The parties agree
that this provision is reasonable and necessary in order to preserve and protect Consultant’s trade secrets and
other confidential information, its investment in the training of its employees, the stability of its workforce,
and its ability to provide competitive department programs in this market. if any provision of this section is
found by a court or arbitrator to be overly broad, unreasonable in scope or otherwise unenforceable, the
parties agree that such court or arbitrator shall modify such provision to the minimum extent necessary to
render this section enforceable.

48



18,

19.

20.

21.

NOTICES
Any notice under this Agreement shall be in writing, and shall be deemed sufficient when directly presented
or sent pre-paid, first class United States Mail, addressed as follows:

if to the Client: If to the Consultant:
Peter Gallinat, Township Planner Greg Toth, President
Charter Township of Union LSL Planning, LLC
2010S. Lincoln Rd. 3755 Precision Drive, Suite 140
Mt Pleasant, M| 48858 Loveland, CO 80538
DISPUTE RESOLUTION

In the event a dispute arises out of or relates to this Agreement, or the breach thereof, and if said dispute
cannot be settled through negotiation, the parties agree first to try in good faith to settle the dispute by
mediation, before resorting to arbitration, litigation, or some other dispute resolution procedure.

GOVERNING LAW

This Agreement shall be construed under and governed by the laws of the State of Michigan and all services
to be provided will be provided in accordance with applicable federal, state and local law. This Agreement
constitutes the complete, entire and final agreement of the parties hereto with respect to the subject matter
hereof, and shall supersede any and all previous communications, representations, whether oral or written,
with respect to the subject matter hereof.

COUNTERPARTS

This Agreement and any amendments may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, but all of which shall constitute one and the same instrument. For purposes of executing
this Agreement, scanned signatures shall be as valid as the original.

This Agreement, along with attached exhibits, constitutes the complete, entire and final agreement of the parties
hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof, and shall supersede any and all previous communications,
representations, whether oral or written, with respect to the subject matter hereof. Invalidation of any of the
provisions of this Agreement or any paragraph sentence, clause, phrase, or word herein or the application thereof
in any given circumstance shall not affect the validity of any other provision of this Agreement.

IN WITNESS HEREQOF, the undersigned have caused this Agreement to be executed in their respective names on
the dates hereinafter enumerated.

Charter Township of Union, Michigan LSL Planning, LLC

Signalure Signalure

Name: Name:

Title: Title:

Date; / / Date: ! /

49



EXHIBIT A — LIST OF SERVICES

1. MASTER PLAN UPDATE
The following scope of work is based on a preliminary review of your current Master Plan and an
understanding that updates to the future land use map are requested. The tasks can be reduced or expanded
based on the needs of the Township.

Kick Off

First we would have a coordination call with the township’s project manager to review existing plans, data
available, and overall process. We will also agree on the agenda for the kickoff day. The kickoff day would
include an afternoon meeting with township staff, a tour of key focus areas, and an evening meeting with the
planning commission.

At the planning commission meeting, we would review the current plan’s goals and determine which are still
priorities or need updating. In order to gauge changes for the future land use map, we will conduct a mapping
exercise with commissioners. In our PET (Preserve, Enhance, Transform) mapping exercise, participants
classify different parts of the township into three groups: 1) Identify the assets in the township to Preserve,
2) areas or features that need to be Enhanced so that they become assets, and 3) areas that need to be
Transformed into a new or different use so that they can become assets.

Updote Existing Conditions

We propose refreshing the Census data in the plan by using the latest American Community Survey estimates.
We would pull the most relevant, recent data into the revised plan and retain the full analysis in the appendix.
In addition, we can update the references to other planning efforts and community groups in the current plan
that may have changed in the last five years.

Future Land Use Update
The future land use plan is the cornerstone of the Master Plan. We anticipate taking the current land use plan

and invigorating it with a stronger relation to the character of different neighborhood areas and districts in
the township. Our process to update the future land use plan will consider several factors:

Existing uses

Current building and design form or site characteristics
Availability and capacity of utilities and streets

The current land use plan map and categories

¢ Input from the planning commission’s PET exercise

e 2016 Union Township Community Survey

We will prepare a preliminary draft future land use map. This map will highlight certain areas where there are
choices in terms of land uses, their density and their design character. We will attend a planning commission
meeting to review the draft map and solicit any changes.

Graphic, Concise Plan
Master plans need to meet the varying needs of different audiences:
e  For the public and various groups in the township — an attractive plan that they will want to read,
with a clear vision on where the township is heading and that they want to be part of its future
* For potential investors — awareness of what is planned, the rationale behind it, and incentives to
develop or redevelop
*  For township officials — a consensus-based policy document that allows current and future leaders
to focus on implementation
s  For state and county agencies and organizations - understanding of the plan’s concepts and their
role in working with the township to make it happen

50



¢ For township staff — the information needed to make recommendations in staff reports, support
changes to ordinances and procedures, and to determine priorities and design expectations for
capital projects

Meeting those varied needs in one document also means this plan needs to be more concise than previous
plans - get to the point, less analysis and more vision, highlighting goals with clear instructions on the steps to
achieve them. Where more detail is needed, that could be provided through a separate technical appendix
featuring the supporting data and survey input from your previous plan. In the end, you will have an exciting
plan that beckons to be read, is graphically rich, and allows the reader to quickly understand the key
opportunities.

Revised Implementation Plan
The implementation plan is critical. We pride ourselves on our usable action tables that give specific tasks for

various township departments and community groups to have yearly checklists for implementation. In
addition to recommendations for capital investments to stimulate desired change, revisions to the township’s
zoning and other codes, we also look for opportunities for collaborative efforts with organizations, agencies,
institutions and the private sector. We will evaluate what is still relevant from the current plan, actions that
need to be added, and attend a planning commission meeting to review actions and establish priorities.

Draft Plon and Adoption

After compiling the revised goals, future land use, optional demographics, and implementation plan into a
more concise, easy to read document, we will attend another planning commission meeting to work through
any edits needed. Then we will make a set of revisions to prepare the plan for distribution. Following the 42-
day review period, we will make any final edits and share the revised plan at a public hearing for planning
commission adoption.

Throughout the process, if additional issues arise that need maore focused plan updates, we can estimate a
budget based on the scope of revisions, stakeholder meetings, or analysis needed. We want to make sure we
are assisting you In revising the plan to meet the Township’'s needs so will be flexible to adjust the scope or
fee as needed.

MANAGEMENT AND COMMUNICATION

It is anticipated that the primary professionals assigned to this project will be Kathleen Duffy, Senior Planner
and Brian Borden, Planning Manager. Other professional staff, may also assist with review of materials,
preparation of presentation materials presentations, as needed and overall coordination.

51



EXHIBIT B — FEE SCHEDULE FOR SERVICES

1. MASTER PLAN UPDATE FEE SCHEDULE
The following budget reflects all the items described in our scope of work, which is a modest update to the
current plan. Should the Township wish to add or delete tasks, we can negotiate a revised budget.

Task Estimate
Kick Off $3,000
Staff Kick Off call with staff
Review Background Information/kick off mtq prep
Tour with staff (same day as PC kick off)
PC# Kick Off Meeting: Review Goals/PET Exercise
Update Existing Conditions $3,000
Update Demographics/create infographics
Update Community Groups/Plans in Progress
Draft Plan $8,300
FLU analysis
PC#2 FLU work session
Update FLU map/descriptions
New plan Template/Outline

PC#3 Implementation Pian work session
Draft Plan
PC#4 Planning Commission Draft Meeting
Draft Plan Revisions
Distribute Plan for 42-day Agency Review
Final Draft $1,000

Final Revisions
PC#5 Public Hearing
Project Management $2,800
Coordination with Township staff
Mapping Coordination w/Twp GIS
Printing expenses {estimated)
Other expenses including mileage, meals (5 trips estimated)
Contingency meeting or additional set of revisions $1,000
$19,100
Additional meetings may be added above the budgeted amount at a fee of 5600 per meeting

52



ing

A SAFEbuilt. Company

LSL Plann

L}

ty

I

Develop in¢nta

E
S
&
=
O

O

i

PARTNERING WITH COMMUNITIES SINCE 1992

53



LSL Planning

A SAFEbuilt. Company

July 6, 2016

Peter Gallinat, Township Planner
Charter Township of Union

2010 S. Lincoln Rd

Mount Pleasant, Ml 48858

Dear Mr. Gallinat:

LSL Planning is pleased to submit this proposal to update the Charter Township of Union’s Master Plan. We
have an extensive history of creating and updating master plans for townships like yours. Much of our success
has come from our ability to work with township staff, officials, the public, and agencies to create exciting, yet
realistic recommendations and achievable tasks.

Understanding that this is an update, our team recognizes the hard work that went into the current plan and
will look to build upon that effort. We anticipate the updated plan to be very graphic and easy to read so it can
be quickly understood by a broad range of readers, from interested developers to residents of the township.

We put together a flexible work program to focus on updating the future land use section and refreshing
your goals and implementation strategies. Our proposal outlines specifics, but here is a quick review of our
experience and approach:

e Streamlining Master Plans. Our team specializes in updating lengthy master plans into concise documents.
We find that the trend is shifting from long, 100+ page plans to succinct, focused, easy-to-read plans.
Recent efforts in streamlining plans include Beverly Hills, Portage, Shelby Township, and Wixom. We will
distill the most relevant and useful background information from your current plan and highlight the goals
and future recommendations. The full analysis from your last plan will remain as an appendix summarizing
existing conditions and survey results.

e Implementation focused. We want to make sure staff and officials use the plan regularly. The plan will be
action-oriented with specific implementation tasks identified in an Action Plan that can serve as an annual
“to-do” list for staff and officials.

e Customized Approach. We will work with you, your Board and Planning Commission to target the plan
updates so the end result is exactly what the township wants and needs. We have provided several
options for recommended updates so you can select those that best meet your needs.

We welcome the opportunity to discuss our approach and qualifications. Please do not hesitate to contact us
if you have any questions or need additional information.

Sincerely,
LSL Planning, A SAFE built Company

v fulr- Py

Brian Borden, AICP Kathleen Duffy, AICP
Planning Manager Senior Planner
borden@Islplanning.com duffy@Islplanning.com

306 S. Washington Ave. Suite 400 Royal Oak, Ml 48067 248.586.0505 www.LSLPSdnning.com



TABLE of contents

N e

l. Firm Overview
ll. Scope of Work
Ill. Experience
IV. Personnel

V. Cost Proposal

LSL Planning

A SAFEbuilt. Company

10

19

23

55



l. Firm Overview

LSL Planning % ’

A SAFEbuit. Company

N ey



|. FIRM overview

LSL Planning

A SAFEbuilt. Company

Great Solutions. Great Communities.
COMMUNITY PLANNING | ZONING AND FORM-BASED CODES | TRANSPORTATION PLACEMAKING
PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT, VISIONING, AND CHARRETTES | ONGOING PLANNING SUPPORT

Elizabeth Garvin, Esq.

Planning Director

www.LSLPlanning.com

CORPORATE STATUS
LSL Planning is a SAFEbuilt
company organized as an LLC in the

State of Delaware.

Federal ID: 27-131473

LSL became a SAFEbuilt
company in 2013.

FIRM BIO

Since 1996, LSL Planning has become well known and highly respected for innovation in community planning . . .
and so much more. LSL takes pride in working side-by-side with community leaders throughout the entire planning

and implementation process.

Before diving in we get to know the community— its history, culture, leaders and aspirations. Then we customize
an approach, inspired by national best practices, to meet the unique needs of each community. Community
engagement is a vital part of the process. We effectively apply a wide range of techniques to build consensus

and enthusiasm.

No matter which of our services a community might need, we can also serve as ongoing advisors, a role we provide

to over 50 municipalities.

LSL Planning > ’
A SAFEbuilt. Company Company



|. FIRM overview

LSL Planning

A SAFEbuilt. Company

The LSL team has earned a reputation for advancing the science and art of community planning and is frequently
asked to speak at regional, state and national conferences, webinars, seminars and workshops. Our team is
comprised of community planners, urban designers, transportation and code specialists that guide communities to
envision, improve and build their own unique sense of place. We provide:

e Customized best-practice plans that meet the unique needs and culture of each community.
e Experts in land use, comprehensive plans, district and corridor plans, multi-modal transportation planning,
parking, downtown revitalization, review of development proposals, zoning and form-based codes.

e Leadership of public meetings and community engagement programs.

We measure success by the continued satisfaction of our many clients. Nearly 95% of our clients have engaged us

for multiple projects, and several have been with us since the year we opened. Professional and personal service

are always quoted as highlights when clients are asked why they work with LSL Planning.

METRO DETROIT GRAND RAPIDS

306 S. Washington Ave 15 lonia Avenue SW
Suite 400 Suite 450

Royal Oak, Ml 48067 Grand Rapids, M| 49503
248.586.0505 616.336.7750

Colorado | Georgia | South Carolina | Michigan | Ohio | lllinois | Indiana

LSL Planning %8 °
A SAFEbuilt. Company



. Scope of Work

59




Il. SCOPE of work

The following scope of work is based on a preliminary review of your current
Master Plan and an understanding that updates to the future land use map
are requested. The tasks can be reduced or expanded based on the needs
of the Township.

Kick Off

First we would have a coordination call with the township’s project manager
to review existing plans, data available, and overall process. We will also
agree on the agenda for the kickoff day. The kickoff day would include an
afternoon meeting with township staff, a tour of key focus areas, and an
evening meeting with the planning commission.

At the planning commission meeting, we would review the current plan’s
goals and determine which are still priorities or need updating. In order
to gauge changes for the future land use map, we will conduct a mapping
exercise with commissioners. In our PET (Preserve, Enhance, Transform)
mapping exercise, participants classify different parts of the township into
three groups: 1) Identify the assets in the township to Preserve, 2) areas or
features that need to be Enhanced so that they become assets, and 3) areas
that need to be Transformed into a new or different use so that they can
become assets.

Update Existing Conditions

We propose refreshing the Census data in the plan by using the latest
American Community Survey estimates. We would pull the most relevant,
recent data into the revised plan and retain the full analysis in the appendix.
In addition, we can update the references to other planning efforts and
community groups in the current plan that may have changed in the last five
years.

Future Land Use Update

The future land use plan is the cornerstone of the Master Plan. We anticipate
taking the current land use plan and invigorating it with a stronger relation to
the character of different neighborhood areas and districts in the township.
Our process to update the future land use plan will consider several factors:

e Existing uses

e Current building and design form or site characteristics
e Availability and capacity of utilities and streets

e The current land use plan map and categories

¢ Input from the planning commission’s PET exercise

We will prepare a preliminary draft future land use map. This map will
highlight certain areas where there are choices in terms of land uses, their
density and their design character. We will attend a planning commission
meeting to review the draft map and solicit any changes.

LSL Planning
A SAFEbuit Company

Design Lansing

1-30-09, 2-27-09 Stakeholder Meeting Input

Clusters of color-coded dots
indicate what the participants
wanted to preserve, enhance,
or transform. Next steps are

to determine the land use
recommendations to achieve
change.

60 8



Graphic, Concise Plan
Master plans need to meet the varying needs of different audiences:

ces
B Community Resour

Natural Feu!uvein
The natural enviroT™

For the public and various groups in the township — an attractive : ol |

of life of existing

plan that they will want to read, with a clear vision on where the e e o
township is heading and that they want to be part of its future

an

For potential investors — awareness of what is planned, the rationale
behind it, and incentives to develop or redevelop

For township officials - a consensus-based policy document that
allows current and future leaders to focus on implementation

For state and county agencies and organizations - understanding of

the plan’s concepts and their role in working with the township to
make it happen

For township staff — the information needed to make recommendations
in staff reports, support changes to ordinances and procedures, and to
determine priorities and design expectations for capital projects

Meeting those varied needs in one document means this plan needs to be
more concise than previous plans - get to the point, less analysis and more
vision, highlighting goals with clear instructions on the steps to achieve them.
Where more detail is needed, that could be provided through a separate
technical appendix featuring the supporting data and survey input from your
previous plan. In the end, you will have an exciting plan that beckons to be

read, is graphically rich, and allows the reader to quickly understand the key
opportunities.

Revised Implementation Plan

The implementation plan is critical. We pride ourselves on our usable
action tables that give specific tasks for various township departments and
community groups to have yearly checklists for implementation.
In addition to recommendations for capital investments to

stimulate desired change, revisions to the township’s zoning

and other codes, we also look for opportunities for collaborative
efforts with organizations, agencies, institutions and the private
sector. We will evaluate what is still relevant from the current
plan, actions that need to be added, and attend a planning
commission meeting to review actions and establish priorities.

Draft Plan and Adoption

After compiling the revised goals, future land use, optional
demographics, and implementation plan into a more concise, easy
to read document, we will attend another planning commission
meeting to work through any edits needed. Then we will make a set
of revisions to prepare the plan for distribution. Following the
42-day review period, we will make any final edits and share

the revised plan at a public hearing for planning commission
adoption.

Programs of studies
partnerships
Long Term

Land Use Regulations
CIP

Throughout the process, if additional issues arise that need Jopic
\mplementation Strateg och os biydle wsers | €0

more focused plan updates, we can estimate a budget based o oy o b BT T | e
.. . . jork with arganizaiet L cate Routes 19 3 ——
on the scope of revisions, stakeholder meetings, or analysis |. s e e

saniors, and schoot 3 3
o . e onaty pricrit pesds B L grers withhe P
needed. We want to make sure we are assisting you in revising |irecomee et Pt e
. N . rogram for cont AR ;
the plan to meet the Township’s needs so will be flexible to | e (e coreidared for #DOT Prolee

oyt locemaking
. sustainabilitye enwre all mod o ol Place 10 gy
adjust the scope or fee as needed. e
effort.
.l
sure transit-frien
E,,“, :hclacr'- in areas that ar¢ Rl
sorved by publictrant T g circulation ber:

T complete

sireefs

complete

5, pads
ewalks 1o bus $1OF P srects

h as sid be
y features q’,‘:ﬂy or have the pomr\ul to
currently,

o | complete
stroets
between busineses ond a
s S ds during ¢
d residenticl neighberheo -
pusinesses aF L
streets

ire plan

ot iral projects 777777777777777.77777; m:‘?”
iy oIS B ot v

- : : " hoo!s.

= ::;ecml\\f around parks ond sl

review
Complete 9ot

motorized system

LSL Planning o1 ’
A SAFEbuilt. Company




N ey

LSL Planning
A SAFEbuit. Company

Ill. Experience

62 10



I1l. EXPERIENCE

LSL Planning
A SAFEbuilt. Company

Redevelopment Ready Master Plan Update

MOUNT CLEMENS, MI

KEY ELEMENTS
Redevelopment Strategy

Economic Development
Downtown Plan

Implementation

CONTACT

Brian Tingley, Community Development Director
586-469-6818 x901
BTingley@cityofmountclemens.com

Embarking on the process to become Redevelopment Ready
certified through the Michigan Economic Development
Corporations RRC program, Mount Clemens sought assistance to
strengthen their master plan's redevelopment recommendations.
Targeted stakeholder engagement resulted in three additional
chapters: economic development and marketing strategy,
redevelopment strategy, and a downtown plan. A targeted
action plan highlighted key physical improvements to downtown,
enhanced and connected open space, redevelopment sites, rapid
transit, and strategies for cooperation with Macomb County.

LSL Planning
A SAFEbuilt. Company

IDEA FOR COUNTY DECK SITE

e DOWNTOWN MASTER PLAN UPDATE
h-peme==s SMITHGROUPIR @ =

Myt Clevmeens - Dowmboswn

Macomb County, Michigan

63



lll. EXPERIENCE

Master Plan
SHELBY TOWNSHIP, MI

KEY ELEMENTS

Redevelopment

Market Strategy

Town Center

Linking Land Use with Transportation

Short-term Implementation

CONTACT
Glenn Wynn, Planning Director

586.803.2048
wynng@shelbytwp.org

Shelby Township has been ahead of the game in township
planning. Regular master plan updates have ensured the township
developed efficiently and effectively. As Shelby Township nears
build-out, they sought a new master plan that shifts focus from
new development to redevelopment.

The 2016 plan is framed by a set of guiding principles that focus
recommendations on key topics related to redevelopment:
upgrade retail corridors, link land use with transportation, adapt
industrial, sustain natural features and community facilities, and
diversify housing. Grounded in a market study and specific site
redevelopment analysis, the Shelby Master Plan provides targeted
recommendations for its Town Center, corridor redevelopment,
and non-motorized network.

Sprucing up Lakeside Boulevard'’s
live/work units can enhance the
walkability and retail feel of this

urban corridor. Adding commercial-
style glass doors, large first floor
windows with displays, blade signs,
awnings, and outdoor seating will
help contribute to an enhanced
pedestrian experience.

~ JLSL Planning

A SAFEbuilt. Company

T Ao 11

Plamned Residential

g :;lu

T

i
1

n

64




lll. EXPERIENCE

Redevelopment Ready Communities Program
MICHIGAN ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

KEY ELEMENTS
Redevelopment Best Practices
Code and process audits
Marketing

Training

Economic Development Strategies

Waterfront Planning

CONTACT

Michelle Parkkonen
Redevelopment Ready
Communities®

Michigan Economic Development
Corporation

300 N. Washington Square
Lansing, Ml 48913

517.599.8796
parkkonenm@michigan.org

LSL Planning
A SAFEbuilt. Company

N ey

LSLPlanning heads up ateamthatserves as advisors to the “Redevelopment Ready
Community” program run by the Michigan Economic Development Corporation.
This is a certification program where the MEDC audits the community’s plans,
codes and procedures. The LSL team is then brought in to help fill the gaps
in the community’s redevelopment program. Our role includes applying best
practices to a variety of communities across the state:

e Refinements to area plans

e Amendments to zoning codes

* Preparation of site information packets to stimulate developer interest
e Delivery of training programs for staff and officials

e Conceptual design to transform streets into more vibrant places

e Upgrades to city websites

In addition, LSL Planning led a team to prepare the Waterfront Communities
Best Practices and Training Program for MEDC. Adding a waterfront-specific
set of guidelines was a new expansion of the existing best practices to fully
outline the obstacles, benefits, and strategies for planning for redevelopment
in Michigan’s many waterfront communities. LSL relied on its experience with
waterfront community economic development to provide best practice case
study examples.

* Giye
Priority ¢
ﬁl]l’dlng and U S th Oval
hE Wate l’f at
* Encoyy,
atelfrogz toh ®

Eperiep, € downty
nce 7
©mmerce {rangfage

€ assertyy,
srategles (D A/m/l’ ar ea)tlve fundlng
bIC [
develr)pme SSloh

nt
n encou e private

Lin
Mldll(g 3552150‘/0‘

h 15 Case. Lak

65 13



lll. EXPERIENCE

Master Plan

MIDLAND, MI

LSL led the publicly-driven comprehensive plan effort for Midland, Michigan; a
city of 42,000 and home to the Dow Chemical and Dow Corning Companies. This
was the city’s first full citywide plan in several decades. Therefore involvement
by the city’s many committed stakeholders was the key component.

KEY ELEMENTS

Comprehensive Plan . .
Traditional topical workshops and charrettes were supplemented by LSL's

"Public-Workshops-in-a-Box"” that engaged nearly 500 residents in 58 sessions;
Public-Workshop-in-a-Box most of whom said they would not have attended a typical public meeting.
Volunteers borrowed the workshop “kit”, hosted meetings in homes, churches,
or halls, and returned the results. One of many outcomes was siting for a new

CONTACT minor league baseball stadium.

John Lynch, Midland City Manager
989-837-3301

Public Involvement

|

i - s

Rlanning Commission Adopted

}SSAe,pIe nber 25, 2007
—_— )

N | ] i ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,
- —iIF -

\ N B u-““ ‘“}"31
=i L ATETEL e M
pastte=—" * 5
o

pest s P00
ad 1 DT et &

Dow Diamond, a new minor league stadium, resulted from
Midland’s comprehensive plan

LSL Planning 66
A SAFEBult. Company



I1l. EXPERIENCE

Master Plan
CANNON TOWNSHIP, MI

KEY ELEMENTS Once a remote fringe community outside metropolitan Grand Rapids, Cannon
Township’s many lakes afforded a seasonal retreat within a short distance
from the city amidst a rural setting not unlike that found several hours away
Urban Design in northern Michigan. As the metro area population expanded, the lure of a
rural living environment a short distance from Grand Rapids attracted a growing
number of new residents. Subdivisions developed and the quaint seasonal
cottages transformed or were completely replaced by year-round lakefront
homes. Today’s Cannon Township is part of an expanding metro area, though
it has managed to retain many of the natural and recreational qualities that first

Streetscape Improvements

Corridor Enhancements

Catalytic Projects

CONTACT ) . attracted a wave of new residents.
Steve Grimm, Township Supervisor
616.874.6966 LSL was retained to update the township master plan. Specific attention was

given to subareas within the township that exemplified unique qualities and
characteristics, namely the Bostwick Lake Corridor, the historic Cannonsburg
hamlet, and the continuing development of a village-style Planned Unit
Development in the heart of the township. Additional key elements of the plan
were enhancements to the non-motorized network, diversification of housing
choices, and encouraging mixed-use development near major nodes.

¥

Shadia il B | | stz cnelANe]

Ingress/egress points
too close to
intersection

Inadequate spacing
between drives

| SHOULDER TRAVEL LANE MEDHAN TRAVEL LANE SHOULDER |

I R 1 Dangerous left turn; zhalred drive ;or multiple
limited sight due to usinesses; adequate
BELDING ROAD - Alternative 2 h distance from intersection;
Wisimun 100 ROW topography

access points for each

LSL Planning o7 "
A SAFEbult Company




I1l. EXPERIENCE

Redevelopment Ready Master Plan Update

PLAINWELL, Ml

KEY ELEMENTS

Redevelopment Ready
Communities ®

Public Involvement
GIS Mapping

Implementation Strategies

CONTACT

Denise Siegel, City of Plainwell
Economic Development Director
211 N. Main Street

Plainwell, M1 49080
269-685-6821
dsiegel@plainwell.org

The City of Plainwell capitalized on opportunities to acquire vital tracts of land
within city limits for redevelopment and economic development opportunities.
These tracts, including the former Plainwell Paper Mill site, are situated in key
locations in the heart of the downtown and along the Kalamazoo River. LSL
assisted the city with their long-range planning efforts by documenting the
opportunities for redevelopment, engaging the public through an open house
and survey, graphically representing concept plans, and revising the city's
implementation strategy.

As a part of the update, LSL also provided a technical review of the existing master
plan against the State Planning Enabling Act and the Redevelopment Ready
Communities ® (RRC) Best Practices. The goal of the review, and subsequent
updates, was to create a more vibrant and sustainable community and to best
position the city for the RRC certification process.

0 L 500
- — T

LEGEND
= - FORMER PLAINWELL PAPER ML
o e REDEVELOPMENT CONCEPT PLAN

2016 PLAINWELL MASTER PLAN
FEBRUARY 2016

ﬁ@a @cITY n:!;

LSL Planning
A SAFEbullt. Company

L

Ny

LSL Planning
A SAFEbuilt. Compary

68 16



lll. EXPERIENCE

Master Plan
PUTNAM TOWNSHIP, MI

KEY ELEMENTS This rural community of 5,500 is located in Livingston County, one of the fastest

Master Plan growing counties in Michigan. Characterized by rolling terrain, mature wood lots,
and dotted with lakes and wetlands, the township faces relentless development

Rural Character pressure from the Detroit metropolitan area.

Continuing Services To retain its natural character and remain a haven for its many horse farms,

Putnam Township retained LSL to prepare a Master Plan that fully articulated the
community’s goals and highlighted its unique assets. The resulting Plan serves as
a foundation for effective land use regulations, also prepared by LSL; designed
to protect those prized qualities, while accommodating growth in appropriate
locations. LSL continues as the Township’s ongoing advisor for development
review, ordinance writing and professional assistance.

Map C

Putnam Township
Future Land Use

Adopted - February 18, 2009
Livingston CounlyI
Future Land Use Categories

' AP - Agricultural Preservation
{10 acres and greater)

RP - Rural Preservation
(5 to <10 acres)

LOR - Low Density Residential
(3 to <5 acras)

' MDR - Medium Density Residential
(110 <3 acres)

i HOR -High Density Residantial
(1 1o 4 dwelling units per acre)

o LR - Lake Residential
" LB - Local Business
A GB - General Busiess
A" U - Light Industrial
MHP - Manufactured Home Park
S+ Proposed Roadway

LI LSL Planning, Inc.

[ temerrer—

200 120 @ 280
Fest

Soutces:

Michigan Center lor Geographic Information (2004)

Livingston County IT Department. GIS Management Davision (2004}

LSL Planning 69
A SAFEBult. Company



lll. EXPERIENCE

Master Plan
ANTWERP TOWNSHIP, MI

Located in southwest Michigan’s wine country, Antwerp Township is anchored
KEY ELEMENTS by the villages of Paw Paw, Mattawan, and Lawton. As the township’s planning
consultant, LSL has provided a range of services over the years. In 2009 the
newly crafted master plan was adopted. Directing commercial development and
appropriate residential densities were major considerations of the plan, resulting
Corridor Planning in a vision of commercial nodes at key intersections rather than strip commercial
development along Red Arrow Highway and M-40. Determining where rural
preservation was possible and where it no longer was achievable was another
Continuing Services outcome of the plan.

Community Survey

Master Plan

Rural Preservation

Regional Parks

Kids in the Mbudd v
Gt Ao Park Eagie Point

-4 lepina Luke Gool Cersris

Nature Preserves
n State Parks

WIRVERLY
TOWNSHIP

w Golf Counses

Ski Resorts
Campgrounds

[E] Other Recreation Facilisies

Keclor State Game s =" ‘?‘:ﬂ |-
KEELER Toat ! B et PRAIRIE RONDE
TOWNSHIP ; DECATUR 9
TOWNSHIP o 'u_gwmsw TOWNSHIP

o o

B A o ;

@ Ok Shores n Valley Nl -
Campgroind . Ak G

re Land Use

VILLAGE
OF MATTAWAN

~—— Rail

—— Primary Road
Secondary Road
Connecting Road
Local Road
Trail

Rivers
Waterways
I Agricultural Preservation
| Rural Preservation
| Low Density Residential
| Medium Density Residential
| High Density Residential
[ | Commercial
[T 1 Industrial
Il Public Transfer Station

VILLAGE
OF LAWTON

LSL Planning 70 "
A SAFEbullt. Company



N ey

LSL Planning
A SAFEbuit. Company

V. Personnel

7 19



V. PROJECT team

Brian Borden, AICP

PLANNING MANAGER, LSL PLANNING

EXPERIENCE
Since 1998

LSL EXPERIENCE
Since 2003

EDUCATION

Masters Candidate in Urban Planning
Wayne State University

Bachelor of Arts, Albion College, 1996

PROFESSIONAL ASSOCIATIONS
American Institute of Certified Planners
American Planning Association

Michigan Chapter
American Planning Association

LSL Planning
A SAFEbuit. Company

N ey

Since joining LSL in December of 2003, Brian has worked with many
communities on an array of projects, including the development of master
plans, zoning ordinances, and recreation plans. Additionally, Brian provides
ongoing planning services for a number of communities including review of
development proposals, office hours, and staffing boards and commissions.

Prior to joining LSL, Brian spent five-plus years in the Department of
Community Development and Planning for the City of Monroe (MI) where he
served as the primary planner for review of zoning applications.

Brian has used his combined public and private sector experiences as a
platform to facilitate a variety of public involvement programs. Sessions such
as LSL's Public-Workshop-in-a-Box™, public open houses/workshops, and
focus group interviews have proven particularly successful for communities
in development of their master plans and zoning ordinances.

Partial Listing of Experience

Ongoing Zoning Administration and Other Consultation Services

City of Bloomfield Hills (MI) Consultation Services | City of Grand Blanc
(MI) Consultation Services | City of Monroe (MI) Consultation Services |
Village of Beverly Hills (Ml) Consultation Services | Brownstown Township
(MI) Consultation Services | Genoa Township (MI) Consultation Services |
Grosse lle Township (MI) Consultation Services | Raisinville Township (MI)
Consultation Services | Putnam Township (MI) Consultation Services | Village
of Fowlerville (MI) Consultation Services

Comprehensive Plans

Ypsilanti Township (MI) Master Plan Update | City of Berkley (MI) Master Plan
| City of Bloomfield Hills (MI) Master Plan | City of Taylor (MI) Master Plan |
City of Monroe (MI) Master Plan | Village of Beverly Hills (Ml) Master Plan |
Village of Fowlerville (MI) Master Plan | Bloomfield Township (MI) Master Plan
| Brownstown Township (MI) Master Plan | Genoa Township (MI) Master Plan |
Rose Township (MI) Master Plan | Putnam Township (MI) Master Plan

Zoning Ordinances

City of Bloomfield Hills (MI) Zoning Ordinance | City of Grand Blanc (Ml)
Zoning Ordinance | Village of Beverly Hills (M) Zoning Ordinance | Village
of Fowlerville (Ml) Zoning Ordinance | Brownstown Township (MI) Zoning
Ordinance | Genoa Township (MI) Zoning Ordinance | Grosse lle Township
(MI) Zoning Ordinance | Raisinville Township (Ml) Zoning Ordinance

Downtown Parking Plans
City of Berkley (MI) DDA Parking Study | City of Grand Blanc (MI) Downtown
Parking Plan

Seminars and Presentations

Michigan Zoning Enabling Act | Site Design | Zoning Board of Appeals |
Planning and Zoning Essentials

72 20



V. PROJECT team

Kathleen Duffy, AICP
SENIOR PLANNER, LSL PLANNING

EXPERIENCE
Since 2006

LSL EXPERIENCE
Since 2008

EDUCATION

Master of Urban and Regional Planning,
University of Illinois,
Urbana-Champaign, IL

B.S. in Architecture,
Minor in History of Art,
University of Michigan,

Ann Arbor, Ml

National Charrette Institute Certificate,
2013

Form-Based Code Institute Certificate,
2013

ULI Larson Center for Leadership,
Class of 2014

AFFILIATIONS

American Institute of Certified Planners
(certified 2011)

APA-Michigan

Urban Land Institute

HONORS AND AWARDS
LSL Client Service Award 2010, 2011

Urban Land Institute (ULI) National
Gerald Hines Student Urban Design
Competition Team Proposal, Honorable
Mention, 2008

Department Excellence Award,
University of lllinois Department of
Urban and Regional Planning, 2008

N ey

LSL Planning
A SAFEbuilt. Company

Along with her master’s degree in urban planning, Kathleen draws on her
undergraduate background in architecture to provide both community
planning and design services at LSL. Her experience in neighborhood
planning, historic preservation, transit-oriented development, urban design,
and public involvement provides a strong base for comprehensive plans,
revitalization projects, and form-based codes.

A capable project manager, Kathleen leads the Michigan Economic
Development Corporation’s Redevelopment Ready Community technical
assistance team, implementing planning best practices in communities across
Michigan.

Partial Listing of Experience

Area Plans + Public Involvement/Charrettes

Shelby Twp (MI) Master Plan | Mount Clemens (Ml) Redevelopment Master Plan
Update | Rochester Hills (MI) Auburn Road Corridor Plan | Washtenaw County
(MI) Platt Rd. and Golfside Charrettes | Charleston (WV) Comprehensive Plan
| Peters Township (PA) Comprehensive Plan | Beverly Hills (MI) Master Plan
Update | Grand Rapids (Ml) WestSide Area Specific Plan | South Lyon (Ml) Master
Plan | Portage (MI) Master Plan Update | Genoa Twp (MI) Master Plan Update |
Downtown Pontiac Livability Study (MI) | Ypsilanti Twp (Ml) Master Plan Update |
Cedar Springs (M) Master Plan | Kalamazoo (M) Master Plan | DeWitt (MI) Design
Guidelines | Wayne (Ml) Downtown Plan | Lansing (MI) Design Lansing Master
Plan

Redevelopment and Community Development

MEDC Redevelopment Ready Communities Program Technical Assistance
| Shelby Township (MI) Town Center Plan | Ypsilanti Township (Ml) Relmagine
Washtenaw Design Guidelines | MEDC Redevelopment Ready Communities
Waterfront Best Practices | Birmingham (M) Woodward Southern Gateway Plan
| Beverly Hills (MI) Town Center Plan | Mundy Township (MI) Hill Road Corridor
Plan | Evansville (IN) Jacobsville Neighborhood Plan | St. Clair (Ml) Downtown
Redevelopment Plan | Taylor (MI) Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing |
Taylor (M) Neighborhood Stabilization Program 2 Grant Application | Jasper
County (SC) Point South Interchange Area

Transit and Transportation Planning

Metro Detroit Regional Transit Authority Rapid Transit Corridor Plans | Macomb
County (MI) Non-Motorized Plan | Richmond (IN) Complete Streets Plan |
Woodward Avenue Corridor Transit-Oriented Development Study (MI) | Saginaw
(MI) Transit Master Plan | CATA Lansing Area (MI) Michigan/Grand River Avenue
BRT Feasibility Study | Southeast Michigan Council of Governments Gratiot
Avenue Access Management Plan | Berkley (MI) Downtown Parking Study

Zoning Ordinances
Lansing (MI) Form-Based Code | Beverly Hills (Ml) Form-Based Code | Ypsilanti
Twp (MI) Zoning Ordiance Update | Genoa Twp (MI) Zoning Ordinance Update |
Bluffton (SC) Unified Development Ordinance | Palmetto (GA) iZone | Farmington
(MI) iZone | Romulus (Ml) iZone | Grandville (M) iZone | Taylor (M) Interactive
Zoning Ordinance

73 21



V. PROJECT team

Maxwell Dillivan, AICP
PROJECT PLANNER/ I,

EXPERIENCE
Since 2009

LSL EXPERIENCE
Since 2012

EDUCATION

Bachelor of Science, Geography
Grand Valley State University
Master of Urban & Regional
Planning

Ball State University

PROFESSIONAL
ASSOCIATIONS
American Planning Association -
Michigan Chapter

AWARDS

Eric & Sandra Kelly
Capstone Writing Award
Ball State University

PUBLICATIONS

Co-author

“Transit Deserts: The Gap between
Supply and Demand”

Journal of Public Transportation
September 2013

LSL Planning
A SAFEbuit. Company

N ey

LSL PLANNING

Maxwell brings the latest skills and techniques in the field providing services
in planning and design. His background includes geographic information
systems (GIS), research and statistical analysis, motorized and non-motorized
transportation planning, environmental planning, and urban design.

Maxwell assists on a diverse set of projects at LSL, ranging in size and scope. He
has created plan documents for public and private clients including motorized
and non-motorized transportation plans, sub-area studies, parks and recreation
plans, master (comprehensive) plans, and zoning ordinances. Additionally, he
also provides ongoing GIS database administration and mapping services for
Mountain View, CO; Dacono, CO; Grattan Township, MI; and Byron Township, MI.
Maxwell recently developed the 2015 Cannon Township (Ml) Master Plan and
the WestSide Area Specific Plan (Grand Rapids, Ml), and is currently assisting on
the Byron Township Master Plan (M), Plainwell (MI) Master Plan, Fort Mill (SC)
Unified Development Ordinance, and the Kennedale (TX) Zoning Ordinance.

Additionally, Max provides planning services in the form of mapping, graphic
design, 3-D visualization, presentation design, project composition, site plan
review, and ongoing zoning consultation.

Partial Listing of Experience

Area Plans

Plainwell (MI) Master Plan | Byron Township (M) Master Plan | Pentwater Village
(MI) Master Plan | Grand Rapids (Ml) WestSide Area Specific Plan | Robinson
Township Subarea Study | Cannon Township (Ml) Master Plan | Plan Jasper County
(SC) Comprehensive Plan | Portage (MI) Master Plan | Danby (MI) Master Plan |
Otsego (MI) Master Plan | Hart (MI) Master Plan | Park Township (MI) Master Plan |
Antwerp Township (Ml) Master Plan | Steelcase, Inc. Campus Sub-Area Study (M)
| Madison (IN) Downtown Sustainability Plan | Huntington (IN) Comprehensive
Plan | Griffith (IN) Comprehensive Plan

Transit and Transportation Planning

WisDOT Access Management Training | Streetcar Feasibility Study, Grand Rapids
(MI) | Michigan Street Multi-Modal Corridor and TOD Plan, Grand Rapids (M) |
City of Muskegon (MI) Downtown Parking Study

Zoning Ordinances

Richmond Hill (GA) Unified Development Code | Wilmington (NC) Zoning
Ordinance | Kennedale (TX) Zoning Ordinance | Fort Mill (SC) Unified Development
Ordinance | Bargersville (IN) Zoning Ordinance | Yellow Springs (OH) iZone | Byron
Township (MI) Zoning Ordinance | Kodiak Island Borough (AK) Development
Code

Parks and Recreation Plans

Farmington (MI) 2016 Parks and Recreation Master Plan | Lapeer (M) Parks and
Recreation Master Plan | Antwerp Township (MI) 2012-2017 Parks and Recreation
Plan | Algoma Township (Ml) 2013-2018 Parks and Recreation Plan

74 22



Josh Penn

Project Planner |

EXPERIENCE
Since 2011

LSL EXPERIENCE
Since 2016

EDUCATION

Master of City & Regional Planning,
University of North Carolina at Chapel
Hill

Bachelor of Arts in English and
Sociology, University of Mississippi

PROFFESIONAL
ASSOCIATIONS

American Planning Association

Michigan Chapter of the American
Planning Association

PUBLICATIONS

Case Study Co-author, “Case Studies
in Delivering Safe, Comfortable and
Connected Pedestrian and Bicycle
Networks”, FHWA

Josh is a project planner for LSL Planning, and has worked in both the private and
nonprofit sectors in communities across the country. He has broad experience in
technical writing, public engagement, community development, and design.

Prior to joining LSL, Josh worked with the UNC Highway Research Center to author
more than a dozen case studies for NCDOT's Complete Streets NC initiative and an 81-
page publication on non-motorized networks for the Federal Highway Administration.

Josh also provides planning services such as mapping, graphic design and 3-D
visualization, as well as survey design, site plan review and a variety of tasks for
ongoing clients.

Partial Listing of Experience

Area Plans and Public Involvement

City of Mount Clemens (MI) Master Plan | City of Romulus (MI) Master Plan Update |
City of Wixom (MI) Master Plan | Shelby Township (MI) Master Plan | Rochester Hills (M)
Auburn Road Corridor Study

Redevelopment and Community Development

City-County of Durham (NC) Land Area Inventory of Future Light Rail Corridor |
Michigan Economic Development Corporation (MEDC) Best Practice Guide | MEDC
Redevelopment Ready Communities Program Technical Assistance

Parks and Recreation Plans
Farmington (M) Parks and Recreation Master Plan | Brownstown Township (MI)
Recreation Master Plan | Grosse lle Township (MI) Recreation Master Plan

Zoning Ordinances
Centennial (CO) iZone | Lansing (MI) Form-Based Code | Brownstown Township (Ml)
Zoning Ordinance | Update City of Saginaw (MI) Form-Based Code

Transit and Transportation Planning
FHWA PSAP Baseline Report | Complete Streets NC | WisDOT Access Management
Training

75



L}

LSL Planning
A SAFEbuilt. Company

V. Cost Proposal

76 23



V. COST proposal

The following budget reflects all the items described in our scope of work, which is a modest update to the current
plan. Should the Township wish to add or delete tasks, we can negotiate a revised budget.

Task Estimate
Kick Off $3,000
Staff Kick Off call with staff
Review Background Information/kick off mtg prep
Tour with staff (same day as PC kick off)
PC#1 Kick Off Meeting: Review Goals/PET Exercise
Update Existing Conditions $3,000
Update Demographics/create infographics
Update Community Groups/Plans in Progress
Draft Plan $8,300
FLU analysis
PC#2 FLU work session
Update FLU map/descriptions
New plan Template/Qutline
PC#3 Implementation Plan work session
Draft Plan
PC#4 Planning Commission Draft Meeting
Draft Plan Revisions
Distribute Plan for 42-day Agency Review
Final Draft $1,000
Final Revisions
PC#5 Public Hearing
Project Management $2,800
Coordination with Township staff
Mapping Coordination w/Twp GIS
Printing expenses (estimated)
Other expenses including mileage, meals (5 trips estimated)
Contingency meeting or additional set of revisions $1,000
$19,100
Additional meetings may be added above the budgeted amount at a fee of $600 per meeting

~ JLSL Planning "

A SAFEbuilt. Company




PROPOSAL
CHARTER TownsHIP oF UnioN, MICHIGAN

FivE-YEAR REviEw oF 2011 MASTER PLAN

Jury 6, 2016

Large Firm Resources. Personal Attention.
)

ROWE PROFESSIONAL
SERVICES COMPANY

127 S. Main Street
Mt. Pleasant, Ml 48858
989.772-2138

www.rowepsc.com




SERVICES COMPANY

Large Firm Resources. Personal Attention.

\: ROWE PROFESSIONAL

July 6, 2016

Peter Gallinat, Township Planner
Charter Township of Union

2010 S. Lincoln Road

Mount Pleasant, MI 48858

RE: Five-Year Review of 2011 Master Plan
Dear Mr. Gallinat:

ROWE Professional Services Company appreciates the opportunity to present this proposal to provide
services for the above-referenced project. Over our 54-year history, ROWE has worked with a broad
range of municipalities with characteristics similar to the Charter Township of Union. This experience
will help us serve you effectively and efficiently.

The project team we have assembled will be managed by Senior Planner J. Douglas Piggott, AICP,
who has 30+ years of experience with community planning and has worked with 34 communities to
complete master plans. Our team also includes staff with experience in public engagement activities if
you chose our public engagement option.

Our understanding of the project is that Union Township wants to undertake the five-year review of the
Township Master Plan, but in addition, the township wants to amend the Master Plan, which would
include, at a minimum, revising the Future Land Use Map. Our proposal outlines a five-year review
process and includes work on the Future Land Use Map and any revisions in the Goals and Objectives
section of the plan brought up during the review. Our proposal also includes assistance with the review
and adoption process and preparation of an updated plan. We have also included three optional items
we would recommend the township consider as part of this project as requested in your RFP,

The offer enclosed is a firm offer for a 90-day period from the date of opening, noted on this cover
letter. If you have any questions, please feel free to contact either of us at (989) 772-2138.

Sincerely,
ROWE Professional Services Company

.
/7. Douglas Piggott, AICP, PCP Leanne H. Panduren, PE

Senior Planner CEO / President
(Contact Representative) (authority to contractually bind the company)

Engineering | Surveying | Aerial Photography/Mapping | Landscape Architecture | Planning
Mt. Pleasant: 127 S. Main Street ® Mt. Pleasant, MI 48858 ¢ O (989) 772-2138 = F (989) 773-7757
With Offices In: Flint, MI (Corporate) * Lapeer, MI ¢ Farmington Hills, MI ¢ Grayling, MI ¢ Tri-Cities, MI ¢ Myrtle Beach,/8C
WWW.IoWepsc.com



% Table of Contents

Proposal for:
Five-Year Review of the 2011 Master Plan

Presented to:
Charter Township of Union, Michigan

1. Qualifications

2. Key Personnel

3. Detailed Work Plan / Schedule
4. Fee Schedule

5. Samples of Work
a. Zoning Plan / Implementation Plan
b. Future Land Use Map

Submitted by:
ROWE PROFESSIONAL
ETX ) SERVICES COMPANY

July 6, 2016

80



Introduction

Qualifications

ROWE Professional Services Company (a Michigan corporation) is a professional engineering consulting firm,
with large-firm resources, broad expertise, and the personal service and attention you deserve. Our staff of more
than 140 professionals in Michigan and South Carolina strives for 100 percent client satisfaction. Specialties

include:

PLANNING m LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE
ENGINEERING m SURVEYING m AERIAL PHOTOGRAPHY/MAPPING

Office Locations

Corporate

The ROWE Building
540 S. Saginaw Street
Suite 200

Flint, MI 48502

Ph. (810) 341-7500
Fax (810) 341-7573

WWWw.rowepsc.com

Branches

MT. PLEASANT

127 S. Main Street

Mt. Pleasant, M| 48858
Ph. (989) 772-2138

Fax (989) 773-7757

FARMINGTON HILLS
27260 Haggerty Road

Suite A-7

Farmington Hills, M1 48331
Ph. (248) 675-1096

Fax (800) 974-1704

LAPEER

128 N. Saginaw Street
Lapeer, MI 48446

Ph. (810) 664-9411
Fax: (810) 664-3451

Aerial Division

LANSING AIR-LAND SURVEYS
1000 S. Washington Avenue 540 S. Saginaw Street
Suite 104 Suite 200

Lansing, M1 48901 Flint, MI 48502

Ph. (800) 837-9131
Fax (800) 974-1704

TRI-CITIES

419 N. Madison Avenue
Bay City, MI 48708
Ph./Fax (989) 894-4001

GRAYLING

403 Huron Street
Grayling, M1 49738
Ph. (989) 348-4036
Fax (989) 348-5416

MYRTLE BEACH

511 Broadway Street
Myrtle Beach, SC 29577
Ph. (843) 444-1020

Fax: (843) 448-3936

Ph. (810) 762-6800
Fax: (810) 762-6801

www.airlandsurveys.com

ROWE has prepared master plans for 41 communities (cities, villages,
townships, and counties) over the past 25 years. If updates / rewrites

of plans are included, the total is 49 plans.

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF UNION, MICHIGAN
Five-Year Review of 2011 Master Plan

81



% Qualifications

Our Specific Capabilities
Planning

Our licensed planner, certified by the American Institute of Certified Planners (AICP), and planning staff
work closely with community representatives to provide:

e Master/Land Use Plans e Strategic Plans o Feasibility Studies

e Parks & Recreation Plans e Zoning Ordinances e Capital Improvement Programs
¢ Downtown Development Plans e Urban Design e Neighborhood Plans

e Tax Increment Finance Plans

Landscape Architecture
Respect for natural resources enhances every facet of our designs, with creativity and imagination the only
rules. Our licensed, professional landscape architect and staff provide design services including:

Streetscapes

Parks

Historic Landscapes
Transportation Corridors

Recreation Areas
Walkways and Trails
Waterfronts

Residential Development

Planting Plans

Site Enhancements
Campus Planning
Sensitive Environments

Civil Engineering
Our 35 licensed professional engineers are experienced in design and construction engineering for:

e Bridges e Demolition e  Storm Water Management
e Roads e Parking Lots e Sewer Systems

e Parks & Recreation Facilities e Water Systems e Wastewater Treatment
e Land Development e Utility Rates e Pumping Stations

e Grants and Project Financing e  Traffic Signals e Transportation Planning
Surveying

Twelve licensed professional surveyors and 10 field crews use state-of-the-art equipment to provide:
e Topographic Mapping e Retracement o ALTA

e Right-of-Way e Government Corners e Cadastral / Boundary

e Construction Staking e Control e Remonumentation

e Aerial Control

Aerial Photography/Mapping
Using a variety of airborne sensors and cameras we can provide:

e Vertical & Oblique Photography e DTM-DEM Surface Modeling e  Digital Orthophotography
e Photo Reproductions e Volumetrics e GIS Base-Mapping
e Analytical Aerial Triangulation e Airport Surface Analysis

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF UNION, MICHIGAN
Five-Year Review of 2011 Master Plan

82



Key Personnel

Project Manager /

Senior Planner

J. Douglas Piggott, AICP
Doug will be the township’s
contract representative and
principal point of contact. He will
lead communications with township staff, provide
direction to other team members, and attend all
necessary meetings.

Doug has more than 30 years of experience as a
professional planner, the last 25 years with ROWE.
He has been responsible for the preparation or
update of more than 35 master, land use, and
neighborhood redevelopment plans during his
career. As a member of the Michigan Association of
Planning’s Planning Law Committee he participated
in the drafting of the current Michigan Planning
Enabling Act.

Principal in Charge & QA/QC
Leanne Panduren, PE

Leanne will be responsible for
ensuring the project team has the
staff and resources necessary to
successfully complete the project.
She will also provide support for infrastructure
issues and perform QA/QC reviews for this project.

Leanne joined ROWE as an assistant project
engineer in 1994. She was promoted to project
manager and named an associate (owner) in 2000,
named Civil Utilities Division manager in 20086,
principal in 2010, president in 2014, and chief
executive officer in 2016.

Landscape Architect
Douglas Schultz, PLA
Doug will provide support for
issues related to parks and
recreation planning, natural
features, and urban design.

Doug joined ROWE in 2000, after nine years as a
landscape architect with a Lansing-area multi-
disciplined firm. As director of ROWE’s landscape
architecture department, Doug assists clients
corporate-wide with quality of life issues on all
projects, from concept to completion. He was hamed
an associate (owner) in 2003.

Project Planner

Scott Kree

Scott will perform a majority of the
research for the project on material
not already provided by township
staff. He will attend some of the
planning commission meetings and will assist with
facilitating the public forums.

Scott has 14 years of experience working on a wide
range of projects, including land use and
neighborhood redevelopment plans.

Graduate Planner

Caitlyn McGoldrick

Catitlyn will assist Doug and
Scott with research and
preparation of materials. She may
also assist with the public-
participation components of the work.

Caitlyn has previous municipal planning experience
and recently joined ROWE after earning her degree
in urban and regional planning.

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF UNION, MICHIGAN
Five-Year Review of 2011 Master Plan

83



BEr
ROWE

J. DOUGLAS PIGGOTT, AICP

Project Manager / Senior Planner

Doug has more than 30 years of experience in the planning profession. He joined ROWE in 1990
and was soon named an associate (owner). Responsibilities include assisting cities, villages,
townships, and counties in preparing land use plans; zoning ordinances and maps; downtown

development and tax increment financing plans; house numbering projects; tax mapping; site plan
and rezoning request review; zoning board of appeals training; parks and recreation planning; grant

writing and administration; and water and sewer rate studies.

Education

B.S., Urban Planning (Michigan State University,
1980)

Registration

Professional Community Planner
Michigan: 1993 (n0.2501000623)

American Institute of Certified Planners
Michigan: 1991

Continuing Education

e Placemaking, Train the Trainer, Modules 1-6
(Michigan Municipal League / MiPlace
Partnership, 2013)

e Charette Systems Training (National Charette
Institute, 2012)

e Form Base Code Seminar (Michigan
Municipal League; 2009)

Affiliations

e MAPA/MISP/MAP Planning Law Committee
(1992-Present)

e Michigan Chapter of the American Planning
Association, Executive Committee (1994-
2000)

e City of Corunna Planning Commission
(1992-2003)

e MAPA/MSPO Joint Conference Committee
(1996-1998)

o  MIiSP/MAP Fellows of AICP Nominating
Committee (2000-20011)

Relevant Project Experience

Charter Township of Union, Ml

e Sign Ordinance Update: Worked with the
planning commission on an update of the sign
provisions of the township’s zoning ordinance.
The project included an inventory of all signs,
including the coordinate location and photo of
each sign, a technical analysis of the current sign
regulations, a visual preference survey to identify
preferred characteristics of signs, a comparison of
township and City of Mt. Pleasant regulations,
and a regulation sign “open house” (2014).

Master Plans

e Cities of Burton, Caro, Lapeer, Corunna, and St.
Johns, Ml

¢ Villages of Bancroft, Birch Run, Chesaning,
Elsie, Gaines, Mayville, Metamora, Millington,
Otisville, Reese, and Vernon, Ml

e Townships of Almer, Antrim, Argentine,
Bennington, Birch Run, Burns, Caledonia,
Chesaning, Dryden, Fenton, Flushing, Grant,
Indianfields, Owosso, Perry, Pinconning,
Richfield, Tuscola, and Woodhull, Ml

DDA Plans and Tax Increment Financing Plans

and Reports

e City of Durand, Ml

e Villages of New Lothrop, Millington, and
Vernon, Ml

e Perry Township, Ml

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF UNION, MICHIGAN
Five-Year Review of 2011 Master Plan

84



ROWE

J. DOUGLAS P|GGOTT, AICP continued

Neighborhood / Downtown Plans

e Smith Village (City of Flint, MI)

o Downtown Redevelopment Plan (City of Niles,
MI)

e Bay Area Housing Neighborhood Preservation
Plan (City of Bay City, MI)

Site Plan Review Services

o Cities of Caro, Clio, Flint, Flushing, and Mt.
Morris, Ml

o Villages of Chesaning, Holly, Metamora, and
Otisville, Ml

o Townships of Argentine, Caledonia, Clayton,
Dryden, and Fenton, Ml

e Shiawassee County

Parks and Recreation Plans

o Cities of Corunna, Dearborn Heights, Lincoln
Park, Omer, Ovid, Perry, and Swartz Creek, Ml

o Villages of Armada, Dryden, New Lothrop,
Sparta, and Vernon, Ml

e Townships of Dryden, Fenton, Flushing, Grand
Blanc, Hayes, Mills, and Woodhull, Ml

e Counties of Genesee, Shiawassee, and Tuscola,
MI

Geographic Information Systems Mapping
o City of Niles, Ml
e Charter Township of Fenton, Ml

Michigan Association of Planning Annual
Conference Presentations

e National Flood Insurance Program (2011)
e Procedural Manuals (2009)

e The Five-Year Plan Review (2008)

e Michigan’s Right to Farm Act (2007)

ROWE Community Education Series
Presentations

e Placemaking (October 2013)

e Food and Your Community (April 2013)

e Current Planning and Zoning Issues (October
2011)

e Understanding the New Census (April 2011)

Planning and Zoning Issues Related to the
National Flood Insurance Program and Map
(October 2010)

The Master Plan and the Five Year Review
(October 2008)

The Michigan Planning Enabling Act and
Amendments to the Michigan Zoning Enabling
Act (April 2008)

Smart Growth and Smart Growth Readiness
Assessment Tool (April 2007)

City of Lapeer, Ml

Master Plan Update: Worked with the City of
Lapeer, LSL Planning, and Anderson Economic
Group (AEG) to update the city’s master plan.
The plan concentrated on 10 focus areas
identified by the city, including redevelopment of
the residential neighborhoods in the community
and development of recently annexed areas. The
plan included recommendations for development
of a mixed-used zone surrounding the downtown
and policies to address affordable housing (2008).

Village of Mackinaw City, Ml

Master Plan Update: Worked with the Village of
Mackinaw City Planning Commission with the
completion of their master plan update.
Conducted a public-input session to review the
master plan goals and their consistency with
Smart Growth tenets. Summarized and
incorporated the recommendations of previous
plans dealing with recreation and infrastructure.
Mapped existing and future land uses. Prepared
an update to the future land use plan and prepared
a zoning plan and implementation plan. Assisted
the village in the public review and adoption of
the plan (2009).

Village of Millington, Ml

Master Plan Update: Assisted the planning
commission in updating the village master plan,
including updating census and existing land use
information. Prepared a zoning plan to be added
to the document as required by PA33 of 2008 and
expanded the implementation plan (2012).

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF UNION, MICHIGAN
Five-Year Review of 2011 Master Plan

85



LEANNE H. PANDUREN, PE

Principal in Charge and QA/QC

Leanne joined ROWE as an assistant project engineer in 1994. She was promoted to project
manager and named an associate (owner) in 2000, named Civil Utilities Division manager in 2006,

principal in 2010, president in 2014, and chief executive officer in 2016. Her career focus has been
assisting municipal clients address their infrastructure issues.

Education

B.S., Civil Engineering (Michigan Technological
University, 1993)

Registration

Professional Engineer
Michigan: 1999 (No. 45081)
South Carolina: 2008 (No. 26691)

Continuing Education

e Graduate of Community Leadership Program
for Flint and Genesee County

Affiliations

¢ Richfield Township, MI Zoning Board of
Appeals, Member
e National Society of Professional Engineers
o President, Educational Foundation, 2013-
present
O Treasurer, 2009-13
e Michigan Society of Professional Engineers,
State Level:
o President, 2003-2004
0 Chair, Legislative & Government Affairs
Committee, 2012-present
e Lapeer Family Literacy Center
o Board of Directors, 2001-2015
0 Board President 2004-2015
e Genesee Shiawassee Thumbworks Workforce
Investment Development
0 Board Member 2008-2015; 2016-present
e National Institute for Certification of
Engineering Technologists
0 Board of Directors, 2011-present
o Chair, 2016-2017
o National Engineers Week Foundation
0 Treasurer, 2010-present

Relevant Project Experience

General Engineering Services

City of Davison, MI: 2003-present

City of Vassar, MI: 2000-present
Village of Metamora, MI: 2000-present
Village of Ortonville, MI: 2002-present

Village of Metamora, Ml
e Master Plan: Provided QA/QC review in
preparation of village master plan.

Bay Area Housing Development Corporation, Bay

City, Ml

o Neighborhood Revitalization Plan (Named 2008
Outstanding Planning Project, Michigan
Association of Planning): QA/QC review and
division oversight for analyzing a declining
downtown Bay City neighborhood with
approximately 400 housing units dating to pre-
1940. Generated implementation strategy and
developed performance measurement system,
utilizing Department of Housing and Urban
Development guidelines (2006).

City of Davison, Ml

e Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) Assistance:
Facilitated and coordinated the CIP process for
the city in preparing their first six-year plan. Also
provided assistance with annual renewal and
update (2012-2013).

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF UNION, MICHIGAN
Five-Year Review of 2011 Master Plan

86



ey
ROWE

DOUGLAS R. SCHULTZ, PLA

Director of Landscape Architecture

Doug joined ROWE in 2000, after nine years as a landscape architect with a Lansing-area multi-
disciplined firm. As director of ROWE's landscape architecture department, Doug assists clients

corporate-wide with quality of life issues on all projects, from concept to completion. He was named
an associate (owner) in 2003.

Education
B.L.A., Landscape Architecture (Michigan State
University, 1991)

Continuing Education
e AASHTO Bicycle Facility Design Training,
MDOT (2009)
e Graduate of Community Leadership Program
for Flint and Genesee County

Registration
Licensed Landscape Architect:
Michigan: 2009 (no. 1190)
Wisconsin: 2009 (no. 602-14)
Registered Landscape Architect:
Michigan: 1994
South Carolina: 2007 (no. 1020)

Certification
¢ MDEQ Certified Storm Water Management —
Construction Site: 2006 (no. c-01653)

Affiliations
e American Society of Landscape Architects
Safe Routes to School Coalition
e MDOT Context Sensitive Design, Aesthetics
Subcommittee
e Michigan Downtown Association
e Flint Watershed Coalition Board Member

Awards
e Michigan Society of Landscape Architects:
Merit Award, Design (2004); Merit Award,
Research & Communication (2002); Design
Award, Creativity & Presentation,
Commercial & Industrial Category (2000)
e ASCE: Quality of Life Award (2009)

Presentations
o  “Complete Streets” University of Michigan —
Flint, 2011

Relevant Project Experience

Union Township DDA, Mt. Pleasant, Ml

e M-20/US-27 Gateway (Phase I1): Developed
concept and design documents for enhancement
of existing bridge abutments, including facade
and landscape improvements, branding program,
and signage at US-27 interchange (2005-2011).

e M-20 Corridor Landscape Improvements (Phase
1): Streetscape improvements for more than two
miles of road corridor. Included assistance with
creating entry signage concepts and planting 320
trees (2001).

Five-Year Community Recreation Plans

o City of Battle Creek, 2003

e City of Dearborn Heights, 2013

e City of Flint, 2007

e Grand Blanc Charter Township, City of Grand
Blanc, Grand Blanc Schools, 2012

e Genesee County Parks and Recreation
Commission, 2004, 2009, 2013

Non-motorized Transportation Projects

e Michigan Department of Transportation Charter
Township of Fenton, Southern Links Trailway
(Columbiaville, Otter Lake, & Millington)
Thompson Road Corridor Study (2008)

e City of Flint, MI/Michigan Department of
Transportation, Kettering Gateway Enhancement
(2010)

e Chippewa Nature Center, Midland, Trailway
(2005)

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF UNION, MICHIGAN
Five-Year Review of 2011 Master Plan

87



BEr
ROWE

SCOTT E. KREE

Planner

Scott joined ROWE in January 2015 with 14 years’ experience as an urban planner / architectural
designer with another Michigan firm. Responsibilities include assisting cities, villages, townships,
and counties in preparing land use plans; zoning ordinances and maps; downtown development and

tax increment financing plans; design and rendering; house numbering projects; tax mapping; site
plan and rezoning request review; zoning board of appeals training; parks and recreation planning;
grant writing and administration; and water and sewer rate studies.

Education

B.S., Urban and Regional Planning (Eastern
Michigan University, 2011)

Continuing Education
e Charrette Systems Training (National
Charrette Institute, 2015)
o Form-Based Codes Training (Form-Based
Codes Institute, 2015)

Affiliations

e Flint & Genesee Chamber of Commerce
Young Professionals (Member)

e The Greening of Detroit (Member/Volunteer)

o Detroit Riverfront Conservancy (Volunteer)

e Livingston County United Way (Contributor)

Relevant Project Experience

Master Plan Updates
e Cities of Corunna and Stanton, Ml
e Village of Holly, Ml

Zoning Ordinances and/or CAD-Drafted Zoning
Maps

e Townships of Almont and North Branch, Ml
e Villages of Almont and Holly, Ml

Ongoing Planning and Zoning Services

e Townships of Almont, Caledonia, Dryden,
Metamora, and North Branch, Ml

e City of Lapeer

o Villages of Almont and Holly, Ml

City of Roseville Downtown Development

Authority, Ml

o Development and TIF Plans: Assisted the city in
the development and adoption of the
Development and Tax Increment Financing (TIF)
Plans for the DDA (2016).

Mt. Morris Charter Township Business

Development Authority, Ml

e Development and TIF Plans: Assisted the
township in the establishment of the BDA and
adoption of the Development and Tax Increment
Financing (TIF) Plans (2015).

Sanilac County, Ml

e Planning Review Service: Provided review
services to the planning commission (2015).

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF UNION, MICHIGAN
Five-Year Review of 2011 Master Plan

88



ROWE

SCOTT E. KREE continued

Following is Experience with Other Firms

City of Farmington Hills, Ml

e Meadowbrook Heights Park and Development
Study: Located bus stops, community center,
nearby parks, and other attractions to create a
mixed-use design that would entice growth of the
property and surrounding area. Designed/
rendered park walking path system along nearby
natural features and the proposed site for city’s
use (2014).

City of Brighton, Ml

e Veteran’s Memorial: Produced minor design
work details and construction documents (2013).

e Parking Lots: Created designs and construction
documents and reviewed submittals for numerous
city parking lots (2008-2013).

e Walkability Master Plan: Investigated and
documented existing conditions. Proposed
walking paths and connections. Integrated earlier
designs into a master plan and presented findings
to members of the city (2011).

Brighton Downtown Development Authority, Ml

e Mill Pond Master Plan: Created overall design
and modified the existing layout of the
Community Center Plaza. Rendered plans and
gave a presentation to the city and community.
Researched materials and created cost estimation
(2011).

e Facade Renovation Program Study: Developed
criteria in which to inventory selected buildings.
Investigated and created a photo documentation
of buildings that fit criteria. Created map of city
and color code system for district and buildings.
Created presentation for the city (2011).

e East Grand River Master Plan: Applied materials
palette to comply with and/or complement
existing features. Produced all sketches of
proposed design solutions and/or proposed
development opportunities. Proposed designs and
uses indicating existing key areas of interest that
need improvement and presented to members of
the city (2010).

Lindhout Associates Architects AIA PC, Brighton,

Mi

Urban Planner / Architectural Designer (May 2001 -
December 2014)

Instrumental in many designs for public and
private sites of varying scale and scope.

Involved with numerous DDA projects and
master planning.

Presented proposed projects and design schemes
to private clients, design committees, and to the
public/community.

Managed and sub-managed projects from design
through completion.

Created studies and reports to help municipalities
obtain funds through federal and state programs.
Designed improvements for wayfinding and
urban/suburban walkability.

Advised clients in interior renovation and exterior
modification with use of materials, colors, and the
overall design of the space.

Produced relevant architectural designs and
concepts that have been used, built, and have
become important parts of finished projects.
Conducted reviews and calculations for strict
exterior materials regulations on several projects.
Knowledgeable of the local zoning, building, fire,
energy, and ADA codes that pertained to each
individual project.

Experienced in the understanding of bidding,
permits and construction drawings.

Organized and produced construction documents,
project specifications, and handled all client
correspondence for various small projects.

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF UNION, MICHIGAN
Five-Year Review of 2011 Master Plan

89



CAITLYN McGOLDRICK

Graduate Planner

Caitlyn joined ROWE's Planning Department in the Spring of 2016 with experience she gained from

a planning internship at Ypsilanti Township and assisting the City of Auburn Hills’ Water and Sewer
Department in the summer of 2015.

Education
A.S., Urban and Regional Planning (Eastern
Michigan University, 2016)

Affiliations
American Planning Association

Relevant Project Experience

Land Use \ Master Plan Development/Updates

o Cities of Burton, Clio, Corunna, Lapeer, and
Stanton Ml

e Villages of Metamora and Millington, Ml

e Townships of Albee, Flint, Kenockee, and Perry,
Ml

DDA Plans and Tax Increment Financing Plans and
Reports
¢ City of Roseville, Ml

Planning and Zoning Review/Administration
Services

o Cities of Flint and Lapeer, Ml

¢ Village of Holly, Ml

e Townships of Almont, Lapeer, Metamora, Mundy,
and Owosso, Ml

Zoning Ordinances and/or CAD Drafted Zoning
Maps
¢ Village of Millington, Ml

City of Burton, Ml

e Master Plan: Coordinated public engagement
activities, including establishment of a project
Facebook page and work on stakeholder interviews
and online survey. Conducted research on census,
land use, and natural features (2016).

Following is Experience with Other Firms

Ypsilanti Township, Mi

e Reviewed permit applications

e Reviewed site plans

e Created zoning ordinance to visual aids

e Created a Target Market Analyze evaluation of a
township-owned property

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF UNION, MICHIGAN
Five-Year Review of 2011 Master Plan

90



Project Scope

ROWE understands the township’s intent with this
project is to meet the Michigan Planning Enabling
Acts requirements for a five-year review of the
Township Master Plan. In addition, the township
planning commission is already aware of changes to
the future land use map, so the project will also
include amendments to the current plan.

The township has asked that the consultant identify
any other updates to the plan they would recommend
be included in this project.

Five-Year Review
The current master plan does not provide a process or
outline for the five-year review, so we have proposed
an outline below. The outline is based on the
assumption the five-year review is intended to
evaluate the extent to which the community has
developed as projected by the plan, the extent to
which the planning commission still supports the
current plans goals and objectives, and the plan’s
effectiveness over the past five years in achieving its
goals and objectives. Our proposed three-step process
for the review is as follows:
e Has the township developed in the manner
projected by the plan? If not, why?

O To address this issue, ROWE will sit down
with township staff and identify changes in
land use and infrastructure that have occurred
since the plan was adopted.

0 To the extent that changes have not occurred
as expected, ROWE will evaluate potential
causes.

e Are the goals and objectives still appropriate for
the community?

o ROWE will review the plan’s goals and
objectives with the planning commission.

0 As an optional element, ROWE proposes an
optional Goals and Objectives Review

Detailed Work Plan / Schedule

Meeting to provide the public with an
opportunity to provide input on the plan’s
goals and objectives.

o How effective have the plan’s implementation
tasks been in achieving the plan goals and
objectives?

0 ROWE staff will review the plan’s
implementation tasks in Table 10.1 and
determine which of the items have been
implemented and their impact, if any, on the
plan’s goals and objectives.

0 ROWE staff will review appropriate changes
to the tasks listed in Table 10.1.

Future Land Use Map

As requested in the RFP, ROWE will sit down with
the planning commission and staff to identify
necessary changes to the Future Land Use Map.
ROWE will update the Future Land Use Map in
ArcView GIS using the township’s existing GIS
maps.

Public Review and Adoption

ROWE will assist with the review and adoption

process of the plan amendments. ROWE will:

o Prepare a report identifying all of the changes
recommended by the planning commission as
well as prepare the amended sections of the plan

e Submit the draft plan amendments, following
planning commission approval, to the township
board for approval to begin the public hearing
process and attend the township board meeting to
answer questions

e Prepare draft copies of the plan amendments and
a public hearing notice and submit to the
surrounding jurisdictions and Isabella County as
required under the MPEA

e Provide a copy of notice to the township clerk for
publication

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF UNION, MICHIGAN
Five-Year Review of 2011 Master Plan

91



)7y
ROWE

Provide plan amendment summary, as well as a
digital copy of the plan amendments, for posting
on the township web site

Attend the planning commission public hearing
to present the plan amendments, answer
questions, and make any revisions as directed by
the planning commission

Present the plan to the township board if the
township board assumes the optional authority to
give final approval of the plan amendments. If the
board requires changes to the plan, it would
require resubmission to the planning commission.
Because approval by the township board is at the
board’s option, and it is unknown if it will be
required, any presentation or additional revisions
are beyond the scope of this proposal and would
be billed at a time and materials rate.

Prepare copies, once adopted, of the adopted plan
and notices of adoption for submission to
surrounding jurisdictions and Isabella County as
required under the MPEA

Provide digital copies of the complete plan with
the additions inserted in pdf and MS Word
format. The revised Future Land Use Map will be
prepared in ArcView shape file and pdf formats.
Also provide 25 bound paper copies of the plan,
one unbound copy for reproduction purposes, and
a large format color copy of the Future Land Use
Map.

Optional Elements

Below are three optional elements we would
recommend that be included in the Five-Year Review
Master Plan amendment.

1.

Goals and Objectives Review Meeting: To
acquire public input on the existing plan’s goals
and objectives, ROWE proposes a meeting,
modeled in part by a town meeting and in part by
a visioning meeting. The participants would be
asked first to participate in a visioning exercise to

Detailed Work Plan / Schedule

identify the characteristics of a Union Township
of the future. Then the current plan’s goals and
objectives would be reviewed and the public
asked to evaluate them in relation to the vision of
the township they had just formulated.
Future Land Use Plans/Zoning Plan: The current
plan identifies future land use classifications but
the details on where and under what
circumstances each land use is appropriate are
minimal. In addition, the future land use
classifications as described in the Future Land
Use Plans and as listed in the Zoning Plan are not
the same. ROWE is proposing the Future Land
Use Plans section be updated to provide greater
direction on the appropriate locational criteria for
each land use classification. In addition, the list
of future land use categories in the Future Land
Use Plans section and as listed in the Zoning Plan
should be made consistent.
Implementation Plan: Revisions to Table 10.1
based on our analysis of that table are included as
part of our base work plan. However, ROWE is
proposing three additional improvements to the
implementation plan
a.  Work with the planning commission to select
specific tasks from Table 10.1 to be included
in a three-year work plan for the planning
commission to “kick-start” plan
implementation
b. Prepare a five-year plan review outline to
establish both the procedures and the
standards for five-year reviews of the plan
c. Prepare a technical analysis of the Township
Zoning Ordinance to identify potential
additional amendments to the ordinance that
is based on issues, such as best planning
practice, internal inconsistencies in the
ordinance, and recent changes in state or
federal law effecting the zoning ordinance.

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF UNION, MICHIGAN
Five-Year Review of 2011 Master Plan

92



% Detailed Work Plan / Schedule

Meeting Schedule
ROWE proposes a project schedule that results in a set of draft plan amendments within eight months. We
propose the following meetings.

A kick-off meeting with the staff followed by a meeting with the planning commission to review issues
related to the project including the project schedule and discussion of key focus areas

Two meetings with the planning commission to review reports and analysis as outlined above

The optional Goals and Objectives Review Meeting

A meeting with the planning commission to approve the draft plan amendments for a public hearing

The township board meeting to approve initiation of the public hearing process

The planning commission public hearing

The optional township board meeting for final approval of the master plan if the board decides to assume that
authority

MONTHS

CHEDULE 112|13|4(5]|6(7[8]9

Kick-off Meeting

Prepare Five-Year Review Analysis

Present Analysis

Goals and Objectives Review Meeting (Optional)

Prepare Future Land Use Map Update

Planning Commission Approval of Plan Draft for Public Hearing

Township Board Approval of Plan Draft for Public Hearing

Mail Plan to Jurisdictions / Public Comment Period

Planning Commission Public Hearing/Adoption

Adoption by Township Board (Optional)

Submission of Approved Plan

X = Planning Commission OR Township Board Meetings
O = Public Input or Public Hearing Meetings

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF UNION, MICHIGAN
Five-Year Review of 2011 Master Plan

93



% Fee Schedule

Hours and Costs*

Senior Graduate

WORK ITEMS Planner Planner Planner QA/QC Clerical Sub- Total* Meetings
Kick-off Meeting 6 $630 1
Prepare Five-Year Review Analysis 4 2 30 2 $3,266
Present Analysis 8 $840 2
Prepare Future Land Use Map Update 2 $170
Planning Commission Approval of Plan Draft for Public Hearing 4 2 $590 1
Township Board Approval of Plan Draft for public hearing 3 2 $595 1
Mail Plan to Jurisdictions / Public Comment Period 1 2 2 $381
Planning Commission Public Hearing / Adoption 4 2 $590 1
Adoption by Township Board**
Submission of Approved Plan 1 8 2 $891
TOTALS| 31 2 46 2 6 $7,953 6
Optional Elements
Optional Goals and Objectives Review Meeting 8 8 20 2 $3,406 1
Future Land Use Plans/Zoning Plan 2 8 10 2 $1,356
Implementation Plan 8 6 2 $1,456

*  Cost includes all document preparation, printing, binding, postage, and mileage.

** |f the township board assumes final authority for approval of the plan, any presentation to the board and revisions to the plan directed by them would
be billed as an extra cost based on time and materials.

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF UNION, MICHIGAN
Five-Year Review of 2011 Master Plan

94



Zoning Plan

Chapter 13 Zoning Plan

Introduction

Section 33 (2) (d) of the Michigan Planning Enabling Act (PA 33 of 2008) requires the Master
Plan for local units of government that have an adopted zoning ordinance to include a “zoning
plan”. The purpose of the zoning plan is to “explain how the land use categories on the future
land use map relate to the districts on the zoning map”. This zoning plan will focus on that
correlation between the proposed future land use classifications and current or proposed zoning
districts. Issues related to the other aspects of the zoning ordinance will be addressed in the
zoning ordinance section of the implementation plan.

Overview of Future Land Use/Zoning District Changes

Below is a table that lists the future land use classifications. The first column lists the area use
classification; the second column, Current Zoning, is listed for each classification; and, the third
column identifies any recommended changes. Following the table is a narrative providing more
detail on each of the recommendations.

Table 13-1 Future Land Use/Zoning Comparison Table
Future Land Use

Classification Current Zoning Recommendation
Residential Protection Area R1 Residential District Establish the Residential
R2 Residential District Protection Boundary on the
R3 Residential District Future Land Use Map.
R4 Residential District
Lakefront Residential R1 Residential District The Lakefront Residential Future

Land Use Classification will
correspond to the R1 Residential
Zoning District.

Residential — Large Lot R2 Residential District The Residential — Large Lot
Future Land Use Classification
will correspond to the R2
Residential Zoning District.

Residential — Neighborhood  R3 Residential District The Residential — Neighborhood
Future Land Use Classification
will correspond to the R3
Residential Zoning District.

Residential - Buffer R4 Residential District The Residential Neighborhood
Buffer Future Land Use
Classification will correspond to
the R-4 Residential Zoning
District.

Residential — Multi-family RM Residential District The Residential — Multi-family
Future Land Use Classification
will correspond to the RM
Residential Zoning District.

13-1
95



Zoning Plan

Future Land Use
Classification

Current Zoning

Recommendation

Residential — Open
Space/Clustering/Agriculture

AG Agricultural District

Residential — Open
Space/Clustering/Agriculture
Future Land Use Classification
will correspond to a new Open
Space/Agriculture Zoning District
which will take the place of the
existing Agriculture Zoning
District.

Mixed Commercial
Residential

BC Business Central District

The Mixed Commercial
Residential Future Land Use
Classification will correspond to
a new Mixed Commercial
Residential Zoning District. The
area designated on the Future
Land Use Plan will be rezoned
to this new district.

General Commercial

BC Business Central District
B1 Business District

Combine the two zoning districts
into one and rezone those areas
designated on the Future Land
Use Plan as General
Commercial.

Commercial — Tourism
Lodging

B2 Waterfront Business
District
B1 Business District

The Commercial — Tourism
Lodging Future Land Use
Classification will correspond to
the Waterfront Business Zoning
District. Those areas zoned B1
shall be rezoned to B2 if
requested by the owner.

Commercial — Downtown
Tourism

B3 General Commercial
District
B4 Historic Business District

The Commercial — Downtown
Tourism Future Land Use
Classification will correspond to
the B3 General Commercial
Zoning District and the B4
Historic Business Zoning
District.

Lakefront Commercial
Viewshed Protection

B2 Waterfront Business
District
MC Marina Commercial
District

An overlay district boundary will
be established following the
boundaries outlined on the
Future Land Use Map regulating
building height and placement.

Natural Resources
Protection

CR Conservation Recreation
District

MRS Manufacturing
Research Signage District
MR Manufacturing Research
District

The Natural Resources
Protection Future Land Use
Classification will correspond to
the CR Conservation Recreation
Zoning District. The CR district
uses should be reviewed.

13-2

96



Zoning Plan

Future Land Use

Classification

Commercial — Mixed
Office/Tourism Service

Current Zoning

B1 Business District

Recommendation

Create a Commercial — Mixed
Office/Tourism Service Zoning
District to correspond with the
Commercial — Mixed
Office/Tourism Service Future
Land Use Classification and
zone the area designated on the
future land use plan.

Institutional/Business
Incubation

M Municipal District

MRS Manufacturing
Research Signage District
R2 Residential District

The city should rezone any
particular property to a zoning
district appropriate for the use
being proposed.

Public/Recreation/Municipal
Use

AG Agricultural

R1 Residential District
R2 Residential District
R3 Residential District
MC Marina Commercial
District

Public and recreational uses are
allowed in most zoning districts.
A separate zoning district is not
being proposed.

High Tech Research/Very
Light Industry

MR Manufacturing Research
District

Create a High Tech
Research/Very Light Industry
Zoning District to correspond
with the High Tech
Research/Very Light Industry
Future Land Use Classification
and zone the area designated
on the future land use plan.
Review uses permitted in
district, including sexually
oriented businesses.

RMH Mobile Home Park
District

The zoning district exists in the
text of the zoning ordinance but
is not shown on the zoning map.
Review permitting mobile homes
as a special use in the RM
District.

Future Land Use Classifications/Zoning - Detailed Recommendations

1 Residential Protection Area

The purpose of this area is to draw a “line in the sand” with regards to residential areas
adjacent to commercial uses. The area is currently zoned R-1 through R-4. The plan
proposes that no new zoning district be established but that the line as shown on the Future
Land Use Map serve as an objective boundary and that the plans recommendation is that
no non-residential zoning be allowed within the area designated.

13-3

97



Zoning Plan

2 Lakefront Residential

The plan proposes that the Lakefront Residential Future Land Use Classification correspond
to the current R1 Residential Zoning District. Any areas designated Lakefront Residential
would be appropriate for zoning to R1 and all of the land so designated at the time of the
plans adoption is in fact zoned R1.

The plan calls for modification of the home occupation provisions to prohibit those uses that
create off-site impacts such as noise, odors or customer traffic beyond normal residential
levels. The plan also calls for modifications to the dimensional requirements in the district to
increase setbacks from the lake shore and regulate the type of vegetation allowed along the
lake.

3 Residential - Large Lot

The plan proposes that the Residential — Large Lot Future Land Use Classification
correspond to the R2 Residential Zoning District. Any areas designated Residential — Large
Lot would be appropriate for rezoning to R2. The plan recommends that the lots currently
zoned R3 but planned for R2 be rezoned to the R2 district following adoption of this plan to
ensure that the parcels not be split into lots smaller than allowed in R2.

The plan recommends that provisions be included that encourage open space development
as the preferred method of future improvement in the area.

4 Residential - Neighborhood

The plan proposes that the Residential — Neighborhood Land Use Classification correspond
to the R3 Residential Zoning District. Any areas designated Residential — Large Lot would
not be appropriate for rezoning to R3.

5 Residential - Buffer

Neighborhood Future Land Use Classification corresponds to the R4 Residential Zoning
District. This district is designed to protect the residential character of the core R2 and R3
Districts and should remain R4.

The plan calls for modification of the home occupation provisions to prohibit those uses that
create off-site impacts such as noise, odors or customer traffic beyond normal residential
levels. All of the Residential — Neighborhood Land Use Classification is within the
Residential Protection Zone. Single and two-family dwellings exist in these areas and should
be encouraged, and churches and other smaller, neighborhood scale institutional uses
allowed.

6 Residential - Multi-family

The plan proposes that the Residential — Multi-family Use Classification correspond to the
current RM Residential Zoning District. The two parcels designated Residential — Large Lot
are currently zoned RM. The third multi-family development is currently zoned R-3, but is
covered by a PUD development approval.

The area is intended for multi-family residential development including senior housing and
seasonal rentals. The placement of mobile homes by special use shall be reviewed.

13-4
98



Zoning Plan

7 Residential - Open Space/Clustering/Agriculture

The plan proposes that the Residential — Open Space/Clustering/Agriculture Land Use
Classification correspond to the current AG Agricultural Zoning District. Most of the area
designated Residential — Open Space/Clustering/Agriculture Land Use is already zoned AG.
The area currently zoned R-3 is proposed to remain zoned as such until a property owner in
that area request rezoning to AG.

The area is intended for clustered residential development with natural open space as well
as agricultural uses, niche businesses, bed and breakfasts, equestrian farm, and similar
agriculture-oriented commercial activity. The zoning ordinance does not currently allow for
cluster development. It may also be appropriate to provide specifically for seasonal tourism
related activities such as hay rides or corn mazes.

8 Mixed Commercial Residential

The plan proposes that the Mixed Commercial Residential Land Use Classification
correspond to a proposed MCR Mixed Commercial Residential Zoning District. The plan
proposes that the areas designated Mixed Commercial Residential should be rezoned to the
new MCR zoning district in order to effectively implement the mixed use zoning concept.

To be consistent with the future land use plan, the new district should permit a range of
commercial uses appropriate for this area including small retail, small office space, as well
as single and two family dwellings but exclude hotel/motel use. Ferry boat parking should
be allowed on vacant lots or lots with an existing non-residential use.

9 General Commercial

The plan proposes that the General Commercial Land Use Classification correspond to a
new B1 Business Zoning District which would be a combination of the existing B-1 and BC
Zoning Districts. The area currently zoned BC that is not part of the proposed MCR district
would be rezoned to B1.

The existing B1 and BC districts are very similar. The primary difference is that B-C allows
some recreational uses, boat storage and open air businesses while the B-1 district allows
car washes and health spas. These differences can be accommodated in a single district by
making these uses SUP’s and incorporating locational criteria into the uses design
standards so they are not located in inappropriate portions of the district. Single family
detached residential uses should be eliminated from the district in compliance with the future
land use plan. Height limitations should be incorporated into the district regulations. Design
standards to ensure proper aesthetics, greenspace, landscaping, and pedestrian access
should also be reviewed for possible modifications. The Plan also recommends the review
of open air business requirements in this District.

10 Commercial - Tourism Lodging

The plan proposes that the Commercial — Tourism Lodging Land Use Classification
correspond to the existing B2 Waterfront Business Zoning District. The area currently zoned
B1 that is part of the Commercial — Tourism Lodging Land Use Classification would be
appropriate to be rezoned to B2 at the request of the property owner.

The plan recommends the development of “form-based code” regulations in this district as a
means of creating pedestrian scaled environments along the sidewalk and allowing
buildings to reach their maximum height gradually away from the right of way. Building

13-5
99



Zoning Plan

height and placement for parcels along the lake should be regulated per the Lakefront
Commercial Viewshed Protection sub-area.

11 Commercial - Downtown Tourism

The plan proposes that the Commercial — Downtown Tourism Land Use Classification
correspond to both the existing B3 General Commercial Zoning District and the B4 Historic
Business Zoning District. That portion of the area designated Commercial — Downtown
Tourism that is appropriate for B-4 zoning is outlined in the future land use plan. The Plan
recommends the review of language for form based codes to establish facade standards in
the district. The Plan also recommends the review of customer service parking ratios in the
district.

The B-3 and B-4 districts appear to generally correspond with the intent of the Commercial —
Downtown Tourism Land Use Classification.

12 Lakefront Commercial Viewshed Protection

The plan proposes that the Lakefront Commercial Viewshed Protection Land Use
Classification correspond to a proposed LVP Lakefront Viewshed Protection Overlay Zoning
District. The overlay district would apply height and setback requirements in order to protect
the view of the lake, as well as greenspace and landscaping requirements.

13 Natural Resources Protection

The plan proposes that the Natural Resources Protection Land Use Classification
correspond to the CR Conservation Recreation District and that the uses allowed in the
current MRS Manufacturing Research Signage District and the MR Manufacturing Research
District that are appropriate be added to the CR district, those zoning districts be stricken
and the property currently zoned MRS or MR be rezoned to CR or HT/VLIM.

14 Commercial - Mixed Office/Tourism Service

The plan proposes that the Commercial — Mixed Office/Tourism Service Land Use
Classification correspond to a proposed CMOT Commercial — Mixed Office/Tourism Service
Zoning District. The plan proposes that the areas designated Commercial — Mixed
Office/Tourism Service should be rezoned to the new CMOT zoning district in order to
effectively implement the mixed use zoning concept.

The new zoning district should allow tourism and office businesses, including but not limited
to hotels, restaurant, retail and office space, multi-family apartment on the second floor of a
retail building; with single family residences and related uses.

15 Institutional/Business Incubation

The plan does not propose any particular zoning classification for the property in the
Institutional/Business Incubation Land Use Classification. This land use classification
consists of land that the Village owns that it may wish to develop or sell for development for
a range of potential uses. Once a specific use is proposed for a site, the Village should
propose the appropriate rezoning and follow the process in the same manner as any other
property owner.

13-6
100



Zoning Plan

16 Public/Recreation/Municipal Use

The plan does not propose any particular zoning classification for the property in the
Public/Recreation Land Use Classification. Most public and recreational uses are allowed in
most zoning districts and a separate zoning district is not necessary.

17 High Tech Research/Very Light Industry

The plan proposes that the High Tech Research/Very Light Industry Land Use Classification
correspond to a proposed HT/VLIM High Tech Research/Very Light Industry Zoning District.
The plan proposes that the areas designated High Tech Research/Very Light Industry
should be rezoned to the new HT/VLIM zoning district.

The new zoning district should allow uses involving high tech research and other industrial
uses with low impact on air quality and noise. Design standards should require well
screened, solid fence enclosures for business and any outdoor testing facilities or similar
outdoor uses. The district should be reviewed for development of sexually oriented
businesses.

13-7
101



Implementation and Plan Adoption

Chapter 14 Implementation and Plan Adoption

Zoning/Other Ordinances

The zoning plan in the previous section identified the changes in the number and character of
zoning districts in the Village Zoning Ordinance recommended to implement the plan. Below are
changes to other portions of the zoning text recommended based on the goals and objectives of
this plan. The items below should serve as the beginning of a check list of ordinance updates to
be performed as part of the plan’s implementation.

Site Plan

In order to implement plan policies, the following revisions to the standards for approval of a
site plan shall be incorporated into Section 4-117 E of the zoning ordinance:

4
4

Require evaluation of the traffic impact of future large projects
Require the project preserves open space where appropriate to preserve natural
features including wetlands, floodplains and scenic views

» Require development plans be consistent with the Village’s long range utility plans

» Require that existing utility infrastructure be capable of meeting the demands of the
proposed development

» Require that a proposed development respects the scale and pedestrian orientation of
the Village

» Require that the proposed development minimize the disruption of natural site
topography and drainage

» Require that proposed developments connect to the existing pedestrian and trail network
where appropriate

» Require development of a fire plan for a development

Parking

1. The existing parking standards shall be reviewed to determine proper parking ratios for
districts and development uses including residential development within commercial
areas, recognizing the availability of existing on-street parking and shared parking.

2. Potential incentives to encourage use of shared parking for new uses and

redevelopment of existing sites shall be evaluated for incorporation into the zoning
ordinance (Sec 4-109 D)

Planned Unit Development (PUD)

1.

Revise Section 23-102 of the zoning ordinance to allow residential development as part
of commercial Planned Unit Developments (PUDs) and evaluate potential incentives for
mixed residential/commercial uses

Development Standards

1.

2.

3.

Review standards for employee dormitories/housing (Sec 23-130) of the zoning
ordinance

Develop architectural design standards for residential and non-residential uses or revise
the standards for Planned Unit Developments (PUDs) in the ordinance to apply to other
uses. The standards should reflects the Village’s small town character, that is consistent
with the style, bulk and setback of existing buildings, that promotes the use of quality
materials and promotes the community’s character as a pristine waterfront community
and applies to new development and redevelopment projects

Establish setbacks from natural features including wetlands

14-1
102



Implementation and Plan Adoption

Develop incentives for the preservation of open space

Develop development bonuses as a strategy to encourage commercial uses with a lower
lease rate threshold for housing

Evaluate the development of formed based codes to protect and enhance existing
commercial areas.

Evaluate the screening requirements of Section 4-113 B to determine the extent to which
they can be extended to require adequate buffering of non-residential uses in residential
areas and their adequacy in providing buffering of, or transition between, commercial
and industrial areas and residential neighborhoods

Conduct a general review of zoning requirements to assure uniform quality of development/
redevelopment and promote an efficient and streamlined review process.

Continue to integrate ferry service facilities into the commercial shoreline development.

Zoning District Standards

1.

2.

9.

10.

11

12.

13.

Evaluate zoning district requirements to determine if changes are necessary to promote
appropriate infill of vacant areas within residential neighborhoods

Evaluate the screening requirements of Section 4-113 B and 4-114 to determine the
extent to which they can be extended to require adequate buffering of non-residential
uses in residential areas, their adequacy in providing buffering of, or transition between,
commercial and industrial areas and residential neighborhoods and their ability to shield
incompatible uses from the Village’s main thoroughfares and adjacent land uses

Review the uses allowed in districts intended principally for single-family residential use
and identify uses permitted that are inconsistent with the district intent and other uses
that are not currently permitted that should be considered.

Identify districts that allow single-family uses, but which are appropriate for a mixture of
uses in that supports economic vitality

Review setback and height standards to determine that standards reflect and protect the
character of neighborhoods

Consider overlay zone or other approaches to limiting density of development permitted
with environmentally sensitive areas

Review uses allowed in commercial districts to ensure that auto oriented businesses are
limited to commercial districts near |-75.

Review design standards for downtown commercial districts to ensure that business are
close to the sidewalk to support the standards of a “Walkable Community”.

Review the requirements in industrial districts and evaluate the use of setbacks that vary
based on the uses off-site impacts.

Review regulations concerning sexually oriented business and district locations.

. Consider establishing regulations concerning medical marihuana related to land use and

districts.

Review existing zoning standards to determine the tools available to encourage
improvement and redevelopment of existing commercial areas within the Village.
Establish regulations to permit development of private property while protecting
important viewsheds of the water front and other identified areas

Administration

1.

Establish formal process to submit proposed rezonings, site plans and other appropriate
review for comments by nearby governmental units

14-2
103



Implementation and Plan Adoption

2. Provide for opportunities for informal discussions by developers and stakeholders during
development review through a citizen participation ordinance
Amendment

1.

Consider potential for groundwater contamination as part of rezoning decisions

Special Use Permit (SUP)

1.

Consider potential for groundwater contamination as part of special use decisions

Landscaping

1.

Review the standards in Section 4-114 and incorporate landscape standards that
encourage the use of vegetation that compliments existing natural areas

Other Ordinances

1.

Incorporate incentives for open space and viewshed preservation into subdivision control
requirements

Capital Improvement Planning

The Michigan Planning Enabling Act requires a municipality that has adopted a Master Plan to
develop and adopt a six year capital improvement plan (CIP) and to update the plan every year.
Below are items taken from this plan’s goals and objectives that serve as the basis for the CIP.

Parks and Recreation

1. Ensure adequate barrier-free access to all parks

2. Improve non-motorized connections to the parks

3. Establish dog-friendly parks

4. Expand family-oriented youth and senior citizen activities and amenities to the parks and
recreation system

5. ldentify and protect open space and natural features in existing parks

6. Identify open space and natural feature for possible incorporation into the park system

7. Enhance facilities and aesthetics of existing parks

8. Continue investment in sidewalk, trailway, and streetscape improvements that enhance
the pedestrian and bicycle experience.

Water and Sewer

1. Loop existing water mains to improve pressure and water quality

2. Develop long range plans for extension of water and sewer into unserved areas and
integrate into the Village Capital Improvement Plan

3. ldentify future funding options, including future economic development projects, for
expansion of water and sewer facilities

4. Coordinate future capital improvement planning to provide necessary infrastructure to

future industrial sites.

Transportation

1.

2.

Continue to implement the Village’s Hike and Bike plan and integrate complete street
concepts into transportation projects

Incorporate pedestrian infrastructure that links residential areas with the downtown,
parks and adjacent neighborhoods

14-3
104



Implementation and Plan Adoption

3. Develop a comprehensive “way finding” signage program to direct motorists,
pedestrians, cyclists, and snowmobilers to major areas of interest within the Village

4. Continue the development and maintenance of streetscape corridors within the Village
that improve landscaping, provide community art opportunities, provide places for people
to sit and enjoy the community and meet with visitors and neighbors

5. Continue landscape and signage improvements that improve the appearance of
community gateways; discuss with Michigan Department of Transportation (MDOT) the
ability to complete landscaping improvements along I-75 Exit points

6. Coordinate planning for unified parking walkways signage and streetscape design and
location

Other Policies

Below are policies that may translate into actions other than ordinance writing or development of
the Capital Improvement Plan (CIP).

Transportation

1. Plan for future expansion with adequate right-of-way and setbacks

2. Establish access management standards to maintain street capacity and minimize traffic
conflicts

3. Maintain street inventory and asset management program

Housing

1. Maintain proper code enforcement and continual review of property maintenance codes
to address issues as they arise

2. Provide funding for improvements to homes through involvement in federal and state
housing rehabilitation programs

Intergovernmental Cooperation

1. ldentify opportunities for sharing community services with adjacent municipalities, the
county, state and non-profit organizations.

2. Actively participate in review of master plans of adjacent municipalities and the county

3. Promote joint training with adjacent municipalities and the county on issues such as
growth management and resource protection

4. Cooperate with adjacent municipalities to review development requirements and capital
improvement plans and eliminate unnecessary conflicts or differences in requirements

Public Involvement

1. Provide opportunities for stakeholders and developers to collaborate in development of
master plan updates

2. Promote public participation in the preparation and review of Village plans

3. Educate the public on the plan development process to encourage participation

Sense of Place

1. Continue to support the concepts outlined in the Village’'s Hike and Bike Plan to provide
biking and walking opportunities within the Village and surrounding areas; complete
research and development of complete street concepts within plans

2. Continue partnerships with nonprofit community organizations to plan, promote, and
implement community events and festivals

3. Promote opportunities for volunteerism within the community

14-4
105



Implementation and Plan Adoption

B

® N O

Provide appropriate locations for semi-public facilities such as churches and civic
organizations to support civic life in the Village

Identify areas of the Village to determine historic importance

Support private efforts at preservation of historical structures and sites

Evaluate public improvements for their impact on adjacent historical areas

Evaluate regulations to develop form based codes or other regulations to maintain
community character

Environmental and Viewshed Protection

1.

2.

6.

7.

Identify sensitive environmental areas and viewsheds and target them for public
purchase or establishment of private conservation easements

Educate landowners on techniques for reducing nutrient run-off and erosion from
everyday activities

Educate landowners on appropriate landscaping in areas adjacent to the lakeshore and
other environmentally sensitive areas

Provide opportunities for future developments to connect natural features to the Village’s
“green infrastructure” through a Village greenway

Establish and communicate clear guidelines for beach cleaning so that they are
enjoyable and protect the natural features as required by environmental laws.

Continue to integrate Arbor Day celebrations into enhancement of trees plantings within
the Village parks

Protect and maintain the urban forest

Economic Development

1.

Rezone and market Village owned property for complementary industrial and business
park development.

2. Prepare plans for development and funding of site improvements through Community
Development Block Grant (CDBG) provisions.
3. Leverage the Village quality of life to attract industries and businesses.
4. Pursue the recruitment of industry and businesses that complement the Village’s existing
visitor economy and protect the Village’s character and sense of place.
5. ldentify potential industrial sites and zone them for industrial uses
Strategic Plan

Although a Master Plan is intended to take a long range look at the changes that might occur in
a community; this long range view can often interfere with attempts to identify short term actions
to implement the plan. A strategic plan is a short range, action oriented plan. Below is a brief
strategic plan that identifies actions to be taken over the next 3 years to implement the plan. The
action is described, the time range it is intended to take to complete the task and the person or
organization that will be responsible for the activity are identified.

Table 14-1 Strategic Plan Actions

a.

Responsible Person/ Timeframe for completion

Organization

Update Zoning Ordinance Planning Commission  Start within 6 months of plan
adoption, complete within 2
years

Site Plan Review Standards (Fire Plan)  Planning Commission  Immediate
Open Air Business Special Use Planning Commission 3 months

b.

Requirements

14-5
106



Implementation and Plan Adoption

Responsible Person/ Timeframe for completion

Organization

c. B-4 Customer Service Floor area Planning Commission 3 months
d. Sexually Oriented Business Regulations Planning Commission 6 months
e. Medical Marihuana Planning Commission 6 months
f. Continue with Zoning Ordinance review  Planning Commission 6 months to 2 years
of remaining sections for possible
amendments
Annual Review Capital Improvement Plan Planning Commission  Yearly Review
Annual Review Master Plan for Possible Planning Commission  Yearly Review

Changes in Conditions or Policy

Master Plan Maintenance

A master plan is not a static document. It must continuously be maintained and updated if it is to
remain valid. This plan calls for the Planning Commission to review it regularly, at least a
minimum of every five years for an in depth review, as required by the Michigan Planning
Enabling Act. Below are recommendations on key indicators that the Village of Mackinaw City
Planning Commission can use to determine the need for a plan update.

Changes in Current and Projected Conditions

The master plan is based on certain assumptions concerning the growth of the Village.
These assumptions are contained primarily in the plan’s database and future land use plan.
It is important for the Village to regularly monitor these assumptions to determine if they are
still valid. If they become invalid, the planning commission must determine what the changes
in circumstances mean for the plan goals and policies.

1)

Household Growth

The master plan is based on an assumed growth in households in the community
contained in Chapter 2 of this plan. Growth occurring faster than projected may mean
that expansion of supporting infrastructure may need to be accelerated and rezoning of
land assumed to be developed outside the plan’s time period may need to be considered
for re-evaluation. Growth occurring at a slower rate may call for slowing of infrastructure
investment or consideration of reclassification of land originally proposed for residential
development. Household growth can be tracked by looking at building and demolition
permits to identify changes in total dwelling units, and looking at utility connections and
disconnections to estimate vacancy rates.

Housing and Tenure Mix
Tenure Mix refers to the financial arrangement under which someone has the right to live
in a housing unit either as an owner-occupied unit or tenant.

The master plan makes assumptions on the changes in housing and tenure mix. In fact,
one of the goals of the plan is to promote an increase in the mix of housing types. If the
change in housing mix is not meeting the goals of the plan, a change in policies may be
needed to address the issue, depending on the reason for the difference. If housing type
varies significantly from what was assumed, it may require changes in the future land
use plan to provide an adequate supply of land to meet the difference in demand.
Housing mix can be tracked by review of building permit data.

14-6
107



Implementation and Plan Adoption

3)

4)

Housing Cost

Changes in housing cost in comparison with household income impacts housing
affordability. Measuring changes in housing costs is tricky because it is not directly tied
to changes in housing values and rents. It is also impacted by turnover rates for owner-
occupied dwellings (not every property owner buys a new house every year) and other
housing costs, such as energy, utilities, and insurance. The census provides a good
consistent measure of the change in housing costs, but because it is only conducted
once every ten years, new data may not be available when the five-year review comes
around. In those cases, the Village can get a rough measure by comparing changes in
property values provided by assessing and changes in rents based on a random sample
of rental units. An increase in the housing affordability gap may justify consideration in
changes to future land use plans or other housing policies to increase the supply of
affordable housing, particularly if the gap is increasing at a rate greater than the county
or state as a whole.

Adjacent Planning and Zoning

Changes in the Master Plans or zoning maps of Wawatam and Mackinaw Township
should be reviewed to consider their impact on the Village’s plan. Particular attention
should be given to changes that increase the intensity of land uses adjacent to the
Village. The Michigan Planning Enabling Act requires the township and the county to
notify the Village whenever it is proposing to adopt changes to their plans. The Michigan
Zoning Enabling Act does not contain similar coordination requirements, but as
discussed above, the Village could enter into arrangements with Wawatam and
Mackinaw Township to notify it of proposed rezonings within “500” feet of the Village
boundary in return for the reciprocal notification by the Village.

Transportation

Changes in the traffic flow on the major streets in the Village could have significant
impact, due to the limited number of alternatives to get from point “A” to point “B.” The
Village should continue to monitor traffic counts and accident rates at key intersections
to identify potential congestion points.

Utilities

The master plan identifies portions of the Village that are not served by municipal water
and sewer, but does not explicitly anticipate expansion to those areas. Any expansion of
that service area could affect the proposed development of those areas. The Planning
Commission should be kept abreast of the status of utility improvement plans.

Reviewing the Master Plan Goals and Policies

A master plan is based both on the facts that describe the conditions in a community and
the municipality’s vision of the future. That vision is outlined in the community’s goals. For
example, the current breakdown of various housing types is a fact. The plan’s goals identify
whether the community views that current ratio as a positive fact they want to see continue
or as a condition they want to change. Community attitudes can change over time, which
means that goals may change in time even though the facts have not.

The master plan’s objectives describe how a community is proposing to reach its identified
goals. Effective policies can also help a community reach the master plan’s goals.

14-7
108



Implementation and Plan Adoption

As part of review of a master plan, the Planning Commission should look at their plan’s
goals and objectives and ask the following:

1. Is there a need to modify the goals and/or objectives of the plan based on changes in
conditions in the community?

2. Have there been changes in community attitude that require the plan goals to be
reviewed?

3. Have the current plans policies been or not been effective in reaching the stated goals?

4. Incorporating Plan Review into Rezoning Request Review

Although a comprehensive review of the master plan is recommended every few years,
many problems with a master plan will become obvious during consideration of a rezoning.
It is important to incorporate review and amendment of the master plan as part of the
planning commission’s consideration of such requests. This is covered in more detail in the
subsection on using the master plan for zoning reviews.

Five Year Review

Under the terms of the Michigan Planning Enabling Act, the Village Planning Commission
must review the master plan at least every five years to determine if there is a need to
update it. The procedures outlined above can be followed at that time to meet that
requirement. The findings and determination should be recorded in the minutes and through
a resolution attached to the appendix of the plan.

The review should be a formal process if the Village intends it to serve as compliance with
the requirements of Section 45 (2) of the Michigan Planning Enabling Act. This means there
should be a record of the factors outlined above (or others the Village might use) that were
reviewed and the basis upon which the Planning Commission determined an update was or
was not necessary. The findings should be set out in a resolution adopted by the Planning
Commission.

It is recommended that the Planning Commission conduct a less formal review annually,
based on those issues that have risen through use of the plan in making zoning decisions.

Using the Master Plan for Zoning Ordinance Amendment Review

In considering a rezoning request or a proposed text amendment, the primary question to ask is;
“Does this zoning amendment conform to our master plan?” Subsidiary questions follow: “Was
there an error in the plan that affects the appropriateness of the proposed amendment?;” “Have
there been relevant changes in conditions since the plan was approved that affect the
appropriateness of the proposed amendment?;” and “Have there been changes in the
community’s attitude that impacts the goals and objectives of the plan and affect the
appropriateness of the proposed amendment?.” Answering these questions should answer the
question whether or not a zoning amendment is appropriate and that should frame the reason
within the context of the plan.

This method of analyzing a request rests on the assumption that a request that complies with a
valid plan should be approved and that one that does not comply with a valid plan should not be
approved (the principal exception to this rule would be text amendments intended to improve
administration of the ordinance). Further, it assumes that the three circumstances that would
invalidate a plan are:

14-8
109



Implementation and Plan Adoption

e an oversight in the plan;
e a change in condition that invalidates the assumptions that the plan was built on;
e or a change in the goals and objectives that the community set for itself.

Consistency with the Master Plan

The issue of consistency with the Master Plan can vary based on the master plan
concerned. For the purposes of this plan, consistency with the Master Plan in the case of a
rezoning means it is consistent with most of the relevant goals and polices, as well as the
Future Land Use Map. In the case of a proposed text amendment, consistency means it is
consistent with most of the relevant goals and polices.

Oversight

An oversight in a master plan can be an assumption made based on incorrect data, an area
on a future land use map that is incorrectly labeled, or other factors, that if known at the time
of the master plan adoption, would have been corrected.

Changes in Conditions

A plan is based on the assumption that certain conditions will exist during the planning
period. If those conditions change, then goals, objectives, and land use decisions that made
sense when the plan was adopted will no longer be valid and a zoning amendment that was
not appropriate before may be appropriate now.

Change in Policy

In the end, a master plan is based on the planning commission’s vision of what is the best
future for their municipality. When that vision changes, the master plan should change.
When a zoning issue results in a change in vision, a decision can be made that is contrary
to the current master plan as long as that changed vision is explicitly incorporated into the
master plan.

Additional Considerations Related to Text Amendments

Changes to the text of a zoning ordinance should be evaluated not only on the standards
outlined above, but on other possible criteria that may not have any impact on the goals and
objectives of the Master Plan. These “plan neutral” changes are appropriate when:

1. The text change is necessary to clarify a provision of the ordinance

2. The text change is necessary to correct a mistake in the ordinance

3. The text change is necessary to improve administration of the ordinance or to better
serve the community

4. The text change is necessary to address a provision that is determined to be
inconsistent with state or federal law

Two points should be made. First of all, the factors for consideration (oversight, change in
condition, or change in goals or policy) can work in reverse; making a proposal that
otherwise seems appropriate, inappropriate. Secondly, these factors should not be used to
create excuses for justifying a decision to violate the master plan, or to change it so often
that it loses its meaning.

The following figures illustrate the decision tree for reviewing a proposed rezoning or text
amendment using this approach.

14-9
110



Implementation and Plan Adoption

Figure 14-1 Decision Tree for Planning Commission Review of a Proposed Text Amendment

Does the proposed text amendment
comply with the Village Master Plan?

ordinance.

Yes No

ordinance.

Applicable

Not

community

OR

Will the proposed text amendment
address any of the following?
-Necessary to clarify a provision of the

-Necessary to correct a mistake in the

-Necessary to improve administration of
the ordinance or to better serve the

-Necessary to address a provision that
is determined to be inconsistent with
state or federal law

Is there a mistake in the plan
that would make the
proposed text amendment
inappropriate despite its
compliance with the plan?

Is there a mistake in the plan
that would make the
proposed text amendment
appropriate despite its non-
compliance with the plan?

Identify the mistake, or change and initiate a text
amendment to the plan to address it and recommend

denial of the proposed rezoning

| |
Yes No

I |
No Yes

Yes
I

Recommend
approval

of the text
amendment

Have there been changes in
conditions since adoption of
the plan that would make the
proposed text amendment
inappropriate  despite its
compliance with the plan?

Have there been changes in
conditions since adoption of
the plan that would make the
proposed text amendment
appropriate despite its non-
compliance with the plan?

Yes No
| |

No Yes
| |

Have there been changes in
the village’s policies since
adoption of the plan that
would make the proposed
text amendment
inappropriate despite its
compliance with the plan?

Have there been changes in
the village’s policies since
adoption of the plan that
would make the proposed
text amendment appropriate
despite its non-compliance
with the plan?

Yes No No Yes
| |
Recommend Recommend
approval of denial of
the text the text
amendment amendment

14-10

Buiuozal pasodoid ayy jo [eroidde
puswiLodal pue 1l Ssalppe 0] ue|d ay) 0} Juswpuswe
1X8] e a)eniul pue abueyo Jo ‘ayelsiw ayy Ajjusp|

111



Implementation and Plan Adoption

Figure 14-2 Decision Tree for Planning Commission Review of a Proposed Rezoning

Does the proposed rezoning comply
with the Village Master Plan?

I
Yes

I
No

Is there a mistake in the
plan that would make the
proposed rezoning
inappropriate despite its
compliance with the plan?

Is there a mistake in the
plan that would make the
proposed rezoning
appropriate despite its non-
compliance with the plan?

Identify the mistake, or change and initiate a rezoning amendment to the
master plan to address it and recommend denial of the proposed rezoning

Yes No No Yes

Have there been changes in
the village’s policies since
adoption of the plan that
would make the proposed
rezoning inappropriate
despite its compliance with
the plan?

Have there been changes in
conditions since adoption of
the plan that would make
the proposed rezoning
appropriate despite its non-
compliance with the plan?

Yes No No Yes

Have there been changes in
the village’s policies since
adoption of the plan that
would make the proposed
rezoning appropriate despite
its non-compliance with the

Have there been changes in
conditions since adoption of
the plan that would make
the proposed rezoning
inappropriate despite its
compliance with the plan?

plan?
Yes No No Yes
Recommend dReC_Oznn;etEd
approval of enial of the
the rezoning rezoning

14-11

Buluozal pasodoud ayj Jo [earoidde puswiwiodal pue }i ssaippe 0} ue(d Jojsew

ay1 0] Juswpuswe Buiuozal e a1eniul pue abueyd 1o ‘exelsiw ay) Alnusp|

112



Charter Township of Flint 2009-2029 Master Plan

Chapter 3: Future Land Use Plan

As stated earlier, the Township adopted an amended future land use plan during 2002. This
current planning effort builds on the past and looks to the expected future. Promotion of open
space, preservation of rural character in the western edge of the township, transformation of the
commercial core into a more urban, walkable space, redevelopment of blighted areas and
higher expectations regarding quality of new development are the hallmarks of this present
effort. Key considerations in revising the land use categories and applying them to the map
were:

Promote open space/green areas

Encourage convenience

Address blighted areas

Encourage simplicity in classifications (limit number)
Flexibility of regulations

Address public comments from open house

~0oo0TD

Future Land Use Categories

The categories put forth in this plan are similar to those utilized in past planning efforts, but
provide more detail and a closer correlation between these categories and existing or proposed
zoning districts. The intent is to prevent any unnecessary discontinuity with current zoning and
other land development regulations while effectively implementing the plan goals and
objectives.

Agricultural/Rural Residential

The Agricultural/Rural Residential land use category is new. It would be implemented by adding
an AG district to the zoning ordinance. The zoning district would require a minimum of one acre
lots, but would provide for a greater density than one unit per acre for development that created
permanent open space as part of their design. Existing agricultural uses would be recognized as
legal non-conforming uses that can be re-established if discontinued but agricultural activities
would not be identified as permitted uses due to the potential right-to-farm implications.

On the revised Future Land Use Map an area consisting primarily of residential, farm and
vacant land one acre and larger in size on the western border of the township would be
appropriate for classification as Agricultural/Rural Residential.

Low Density Single Family Residential Use

The Low Density Residential Single Family classification corresponds with the R-1A and R-1B
zoning districts. These two districts are similar, with each allowing the same uses, primarily
single family residences on individual lots, the primary difference being a minimum lot area of
20,000 sq ft in R-1A and 15,000 sq ft for R-1B.

On the current Future Land Use Map the Low Density Residential classification includes land
currently developed to densities consistent with the R-1A and R1B zoning districts, vacant land
adjacent to the existing low density residential development not otherwise designated.

Page 3-1
113



Charter Township of Flint 2009-2029 Master Plan

Residential Cluster Overlay

Many of the larger parcels in the Agricultural/Rural Residential and Low Density Single Family
Residential categories are designated with the Residential Cluster Overlay. This is to identify
parcels where cluster development is encouraged to promote the preservation of open space.

Medium Density Single Family Residential

The Medium Density Single Family Residential classification corresponds with the R-1C zoning
district, which allows single family residences on 10,500 sq ft lots.

On the current Future Land Use Map the Medium Density Residential classification includes
areas that consist of relatively large tracts of land on county primary roads adjacent to existing
or planned Low Density Residential areas.

High Density Single Family Residential

The High Density Single Family Residential classification corresponds with the R-1D zoning
district, which allows single family residences on 7,200 sq ft lots.

On the Future Land Use Map, the High Density Residential classification represents existing
single family residential neighborhoods where density corresponds with the R-1D zoning district.
The classification is available for spot infill developments to promote affordable housing and
address difficult to develop sites. This area would also allow for increase flexibility in the range
of home occupations allowed.

Multi Family Residential

The Multi Family Residential classification would correspond with the RM-1 zoning district and
would be intended to provide locations within the township for multi-family development.

On the Future Land Use Map, the Multi Family Residential category represents existing multi
family developments as well as locations for future sites. New development should occur on or
near primary roads and adjacent to exiting of planned commercial development. Location
central to emergency service sites is appropriate. Locations on the western fringe of the
township should e discouraged.

Mobile Home Park
The Mobile Home Park classification corresponds with the RMH zoning district, which allows
principally mobile home parks.

On the current Future Land Use Map the Mobile Home Park classification includes existing
mobile home parks and land adjacent to those parks for future expansion.

Office

The Office classification corresponds with the O-1 zoning district, which allows offices, banks,
personal service establishments such as barber shops and hairdressers, restaurants, hospitals
and similar uses.

On the current Future Land Use Map the use includes an office corridor along Linden Road from
Calkins Road south to Lennon Road, and as infill to buffer residences from [-75.

Page 3-2
114



Charter Township of Flint 2009-2029 Master Plan

Commercial

The Commercial classification corresponds with the C-1, C-2 and C-3 zoning districts. The three
districts vary in the range of services allowed. The C-1 allows the uses permitted in the O-1
district along with most general retail establishments. The C-2 district allows these uses as well
as more intense uses such as drive thru restaurants and those with outdoor display needs such
as car dealerships. The C-3 district allows all of the uses permitted in the C-2 and other uses
involving outdoor display or substantial parking such as equipment rental, pool sales and
theatres.

On the Future Land Use Map the use the commercial uses are shown along the exiting
commercial corridors on Linden, Corunna and Miller Roads outside the Town Center area, as
well as areas along Bristol and Maple Roads. The appropriateness of C-1 versus C-2 and C-3
zoning is dependent on the surrounding land use. C-1 is appropriate where a node of one or two
commercial parcels is surrounded by residential uses. C-2 is appropriate as part of larger
commercial areas. C-3 is appropriate for areas adjacent to interstate interchanges.

Town Center

The Town Center land use category is a new category to allow for mixed use within the district
with residential development on second floors and behind commercial and office uses. Bonuses
for civic improvements such as art or public plazas would be available provided the
improvements conformed to the overall concept for the center. Pedestrian linkages throughout
the development would be a priority. The category would be implemented by adding the TC
district to the zoning ordinance. The zoning district would establish form base requirements to
force on-going redevelopment within the area to move closer to the street, and screen parking
areas.

On the Future Land Use Map, the Town Center classification is located in the center of the
Township with Linden, Corunna and Miller Road as the primary axis of development.

Industrial Use

The Industrial category corresponds with the IND zoning district, which allows for a range of
manufacturing, warehousing and similar uses. It also includes areas zoned AD Airpark District.
This district is intended to provide an area for uses that can take advantage of the needs of
Bishop Airport’'s commercial and industrial customers. Uses allowed include airport cargo
facilities, airplane maintenance facilities, warehouses and offices.

On the current Future Land Use Map the use the industrial uses are adjacent to the airport and
expressway. Much of the area shown is occupied by existing industrial uses. There is land
indicated for industrial expansion adjacent or nearby to the existing uses, but in some cases
they are small residential lots that would be difficult to combine for a reasonably sized industrial
parcel and or to develop on a lot by lot basis with land use conflicts with adjacent residences.

Office and Research Overlay

The Office and Research Overlay classification corresponds with the proposed Office and
Research Overlay zoning district. This district would overlay some of the areas planned for
industrial development and identifies areas where the range of uses would be restricted to
research work, office uses and other limited industrial activities.

Page 3-3
115



Charter Township of Flint 2009-2029 Master Plan

Public
The Public classification has no corresponding zoning classification. Land in this classification is
zoned based on the intensity and impact of the use.

On the Future Land Use Map the use the public uses shown represent existing public uses or
vacant land that is publicly owned.

Page 3-4
116



117



Charter Township of Union

Proposal to Update the 2011 Master Plan (5 Year Review)

|
Prepared by: Mmeupr July 6,2016




Table of Contents

FirmM BaCKGroUNd ...ttt sssassssssssassssssessasssssessanees 3
Professional Staff ... sssssessesesssessssessessessesses 7
EXPEIIENCE .ttt sssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssseses 8
WOTK PIAN ettt sessessssssssssesassassasssssassassassessessessanes 13
F S reeree ettt ae b aebenanaes 15

Primary Contact Representative
Robert R. Eggers, AICP, Principal
robe@spicergroup.com
989-754-4717

Charter Township of Union
Proposal to Update the 2011 Master Plan (5 Year Review)




Firm Background

Stronger.

Almost all successful projects can

be attributed to strong project
management. Our project managers
understand that successful
management of projects is a result
of having a strong team that remains
in constant communication with all
stakeholders including the client,
contractors, permitting officials and
the community.

Safer.

We continually update our safety
training, integrate safety into our
designs, and actively practice key
safety measures out in the field.
Safety plays a key role in all our
projects, from the day the design
starts to the day ground is broken,
all the way to project closeout.

Smarter.

Seven decades of service has helped
us grow into a smarter firm. We look
for creative solutions to difficult
problems. We think outside the box.
We realize that the smartest solution
is an honest solution. Honesty and
trust are key ingredients in all of our
client relationships. We believe that
remaining up front with our clients
is one of the main reasons they keep
coming back.

Spicer Group is a full-service consulting
firm providing engineering, surveying and
planning services to clients throughout
Michigan. Since 1944, Spicer Group has
grown from a one-man operation to a
firm with more than 150 employees. We
have satellite offices located in St. Johns,
Dundee, Grand Rapids, Manistee and
Lansing and our headquarters is located
in downtown Saginaw. Our qualified
staff provides assistance to municipal,
county, state, federal, private, industrial,
commercial and institutional clients.

Spicer Group is incorporated in the State
of Michigan and provides a wide range of
services to meet our clients’ needs, that
include:

«  Community Planning

- Park Design

« Pathway and Trail Design

+ Recreation Planning

- DDA Assistance

Architectural Services

« Landscape Architectural Services

«  Grant Writing/Fund Development

« Urban Design

«  Web Site Development

« GIS/Data Management

« Mapping Services

« Construction Engineering

« Electrical Engineering

« Environmental Engineering

« Structural Engineering

« Survey Services

« Transportation Engineering

. Utility Services

«  Water/Wastewater Engineering

«  Watershed Management

Charter Township of Union

Proposal to Update the 2011 Master Plan (5 Year Review)




Firm Background

Why choose Spicer Group?

e believe the Charter Township of Union

deserves special attention. We realize that the Spicer Group Headquarters
Charter Township of Union is not just another town 230 S. Washington Ave.
off 127 —it’s a diverse community surrounding a :
major college. To be sure, the Charter Township of Saginaw, MI 48607-1286
Union is uniquely situated in this part of the state, Phone: (989) 754-4717
therefore, our desire is to update your Future Land Fax: (989) 754-4440

Use Map with this perspective in mind.

www.spicergroup.com

Planning has been a strong component of our
company for over 20 years. Our team provides master
planning, zoning updates, and planning services on
numerous projects and we are also a three-time American Planning Association (APA) award
winner. Our corporate headquarters is close to the Charter Township of Union and we have
successfully completed planning projects in your vicinity, such as the recent update to Mt.
Pleasant’s Master Plan. This gives us great knowledge and familiarity of your community.

Spicer Group always takes the time to tailor planning documents that are specific to the
community’s needs. Our Community Planners have completed and updated Master Plans and
Future Land Use Maps for many different communities across Michigan, most recently for the City
of Mt. Pleasant and Homer Township. We want to help the Charter Township of Union create a
Future Land Use Map to reach its full potential as well.

We have great relationships with other lower Michigan communities such as Midland County,
the City of Mt. Pleasant, Midland Township, and Homer Township. We specialize in working with
small to medium-sized communities around Michigan. Spicer Group has also provided planning
assistance to Midland County for the past 15 years, giving us a greater understanding of the
pulse and beat of all the small communities within the County. We understand the issues your
community faces, and we have acquired experience and knowledge needed to help you meet
your goals.

Spicer’s planners are engaged with current planning and zoning trends and practices. We are
involved with the American Planning Association (APA) and the Michigan Association of Planning
(MAP). We keep up-to-date through various training and certification requirements, and also

do our part to be thought leaders in the planning profession by contributing and sharing our
ideas in publications and at conferences. Listed below are some of our recent achievements and
contributions to the planning profession.

Charter Township of Union
Proposal to Update the 2011 Master Plan (5 Year Review)




Firm Background

Awards
« Outstanding Small Town or Rural Plan: Oscoda Township Bicycle and Non-Motorized Pathway

Plan from the American Planning Association: Small Town and Rural Planning Division in
2010.

« Outstanding Planning Initiative for a Small Town or Rural Area: Oliver Township Wind Energy
from the American Planning Association: Small Town and Rural Planning Division in 2007.

« Outstanding Rural Planning Project: Tobacco Township Land Use Plan from the American
Planning Association: Small Town and Rural Planning Division in 2000.

Presentations
- Easy and Effective Ways to Share Your Data with Social Media and Other Online Tools. Planning
& Zoning Center at Michigan State University, 2014 Saginaw Bay Watershed Conference,
Saginaw Valley State University, 6/12/2014.

« Getting Good Data and Creating Cool Infographics: New Visuals for Your Planning Documents.
Michigan Association of Planning, 2013 Annual Conference, Kalamazoo, 10/4/2013.

« Hacking the Public Presentation. Michigan Association of Planning, 2012 Annual Conference,
Traverse City, 10/18/2012.

- Site Plan Review for Wind Farms - Case Study: Gratiot County. Michigan Association of
Planning, 2011 Annual Conference, Grand Rapids, 10/20/2011.

« Planning for Wind Energy: Best Practices for Updating Your Planning Documents. Webinar
hosted by the Michigan Association of Planning, 1/22/2010.

Charter Township of Union
Proposal to Update the 2011 Master Plan (5 Year Review)




Firm Background

Publications
« “Michigan Wind Energy Update and Future Perspectives for Planners,” Alan Bean, AICP.
Michigan Planner, Vol. 17 No. 6, November/December 2013, pp. 6-9.

+ "Oscoda Charter Township Bicycle and Non-Motorized Pathway Plan,” Alan Bean, AICP.
Planning & Zoning News, Vol. 28 No. 11, Sept 2010, pp. 14-15.

« “Planning for Wind Energy in Michigan,” Alan Bean, AICP. Michigan Planner, Vol. 14 No. 3,
March/April 2010, pp. 1-6.

Charter Township of Union
Proposal to Update the 2011 Master Plan (5 Year Review)




Professional Staff

We have put together an exceptional team of experienced professionals that are prepared to
work together to provide planning consulting services for the Master Plan Update for the Charter
Township of Union. Our team includes award-winning planners who have successfully updated
and created Master Plans for many communities across Michigan. Each team member has
experience leading public meetings and gathering community input for a variety of projects.

Robert R. Eggers, AICP - Principal in Charge

As a senior planner and head of the planning department, Mr. Eggers has over
20 years of experience managing projects ranging from master planning, park
design, recreation planning, grant funding assistance, zoning ordinances, DDA
plans, streetscapes, site plan reviews and amendments, and housing studies.
Mr. Eggers assists a number of municipal, township, and county clients. He

has presented at MAP and MRPA numerous times, has participated in national
presentations, has received three National Awards from the American Planning
Association for Outstanding Rural Planning, a MRPA Award for Landscape
Design for the Saginaw Valley Rail Trail, and has received recognition from the HUD for Design
Excellence. He is certified with MDOT for Access Management and has managed numerous
recreation plans and resulting grants totaling over $15 million. His planning expertise will ensure
the success of this project and make sure that the City of Vassar is satisfied with the results.

Alan R. Bean, AICP - Project Planner

Mr. Bean has a bachelor’s degree in natural resources and a master’s degree in
planning from the University of Michigan. He has served as project manager
and lead planner on a variety of complex planning projects that bring together
a wide variety of diverse stakeholders, including dozens of Master Plans for
communities across Michigan. Mr. Bean'’s strength is his use of mapping, digital
renderings, and online tools such as Google Earth, Facebook, and various
blogs. These tools help during community input and they help clients visualize
concepts and data for their projects. By using various methods to encourage
community participation, he helps clients understand the wishes and desires of citizens in order
to establish broad-based support for proposed initiatives. When conducting meetings, such as
presentations with local committees, he is thorough and organized, with a strong grasp of the
particular needs of the client and the project. He is MDOT pre-qualified for Access Management.
Mr. Bean is a member of the International Association of Public Participation (IAP2) and he values
public engagement strategies that are effective and inclusive.

Charter Township of Union
Proposal to Update the 2011 Master Plan (5 Year Review)




Experience

In recent years, Spicer Group has completed numerous planning documents for communities
similar to yours. A few of the communities we have completed planning documents for include
the following:

« Midland Township
« Homer Township
« Dundee Master Plan
« Mt. Pleasant Master Plan
« City of Saginaw
« Saginaw Charter Township
« City of Midland
Parks and Recreation
« Kochville Township
« Hampton Township
« Sebewaing Township
« Beaver Township
« Wise Township
« City of Bronson
« Carrollton Township
« City of Coleman
« Ingersoll Township
« Tobacco Township
« Mt. Haley Township
« Verona Township
« City of Sandusky
« Village of Capac
« Village of Akron
« Montrose Township
« City of Davison
« City of St. Louis
« Village of Breckenridge
« Spaulding Township
« Village of Elkton
« Village of Breckenridge
« Alabaster Township

« Oliver Township

Charter Township of Union
Proposal to Update the 2011 Master Plan (5 Year Review)




Experience

Mount Pleasant Master Plan

The City of Mt. Pleasant required a focused update to its Master Plan, which was last adopted

in 2006. The updated Master Plan was started late 2012 and was developed by Spicer Group

to incorporate a number of key features. New population, housing, and employment data
from the 2010 Census, including comparative analyses, was provided as part of the Community
Information section.

A redevelopment plan for Mission Street was included and appropriately integrated into the
Goals & Implementation section. Other major updates included the development of priorities for
the Downtown area, a new land use vision for the Mt. Pleasant Center property, and new goals
and action items that address non-motorized transportation in the City.

Along the way, significant input from the community has been gathered and shared with the
Planning Commission and City leaders. The diversity of Mt. Pleasant — inclusive of the Saginaw
Chippewa Indian Tribe, Central Michigan University, and other groups — necessitated an
innovative public input process that incorporated various outreach methods. Efforts included an
online survey, a social media campaign, a City-wide open house, and individualized “Meeting in a
Box”input sessions with 10 of the City’s community organizations and agencies.

Client Contact
William Mrdeza

Director of Community Services
320 West Broadway

%w g, i f Mt. Pleasant, M| 48858

- Email: wmrdeza@mt-pleasant.org
Phone: (989) 779-5311

si ice Figure 30:
. FUTURE LAND USE

City of Mt. Pleasant
Isabella County
Michigan

November 2014

nnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnn

Charter Township of Union
Proposal to Update the 2011 Master Plan (5 Year Review)




Experience

Homer Township Master Plan

Spicer Group worked with Homer Township in 2013-2014 to adopt a new Master Plan. Homer
Township had last completed a Master Plan in 1997. Realizing much had changed since that
time, the Township sought extensive analysis from Spicer Group in delineating current existing
land uses, gathering up-to-date demographics and analyzing important environmental features
such as the three major rivers which transverse the community. Extensive public input was
gathered for this Plan via an online community input survey, for which links were placed on the
Township’s webpage and Facebook page, and via a public input open house held on June 18th,
2013. Information about the community was regularly posted to the Township’s Facebook page
during the duration of the project, and the Facebook page also served as a way to gather further
public comments on the planning process. The Planning Commission developed new goals

and objectives for the Township based on new background information and community input.
A future land use map and zoning plan were concurrently developed, which helped guide the
Township toward simplifying their commercial future land use designations and zoning districts,
and helped to ensure a balance of residential, agricultural, and conservation lands to maintain
the character of the Township. An action program at the end of the Plan served as a means for the
Township to achieve realistic and meaningful goals in the future. The final hearing and adoption
of the Plan occurred in September 2014.

Client Contact

Sandra Simmons, Planning
Commission Chairperson
Homer Township

522 North Homer Road,
Midland, MI 48640

— (989) 631-4399

o = sandrasimmons403@att.net

Homver Township: Fufure Land Use
I cormcrcin

Charter Township of Union
Proposal to Update the 2011 Master Plan (5 Year Review)

10




Experience

Midland Township Master Plan

Spicer Group worked with Midland Township to complete a combined Master Plan and
Recreation Plan in 2014. Midland Township had never completed a Recreation Plan and
combining it with the Master Plan streamlined the process and was more cost-effective than
completing separate plans. The background portion of the plan provided demographic
information, natural features description and maps, and public infrastructure description and
maps. Public input was gathered via an online survey during the summer of 2014. The public
was notified of the survey on the Township’s web site and via a township newsletter mailing.

A link was placed on the Bullock Creek Schools web site and postcards were distributed at the
Creek Grill, a popular local gathering spot in the Township. All notifications included a QR code
so the survey could be taken via mobile device. Based upon the background information and
community input, the Planning Commission developed goals and objectives for the Township.
The future land use map was developed along with a zoning plan, which helps translate the
future land use into specific zoning designations. The plan concluded with and implementation
plan to guide the township’s planning efforts in the future. After completing the mandatory
public review process, the final public hearing and adoption for the plan will take place in early
February 2015.

Client Contact

Mark Radosa, Planning
Commission Chairperson
Midland Township

1030 S. Poseyville Road
Midland MI 48640

(989) 835-8866
radosa@aol.com

Charter Township of Union
Proposal to Update the 2011 Master Plan (5 Year Review)

11




Experience

= KOCHVILLE TWP.

CARROLLTON TW

' [ S
S Jheslee, Datpe
[ Sndwan
7
Future Land Use, 2014
Agricultural Medium Density Residential

Campus Business Distrit [N Mixed Use

Community Commerciol MM Neighborhood Commercial

CITY OF SAGINAW

Conservation & Open Space Office Business Commercial
General Commercial Il s ond Public Faciliies
High Densiy Residentiol I Urban Lot Residential

Industrial m State Street Overlay Corridor

=mem=m= Bay Road Overlay District

Low Density Residential

a1 101

i

o
DB
3

Jerome Township Master Plan

EDENVILLE TOWNSHIP #417 = Future Land Use Questions

August 31,2015

P Corresponding Zoning Districts
[ socuLTURAL sRURAL Re: Lo

] EieLE ALY AESBENTAL Sabcth- Restet. o oty

550 HUILTIPLE FAVY REIDENTIAL Gt Rl WPy & D - Commacl, usines

il sweine #1171 )
=

wirran be b Ny |

EIWATER na s

#1 Eliminate “Township Center’ and replace with something else? Area is already zoned
General Commercial (D), One-Family Residential (A), and Agricultural (E).
#2 Parcel on north side of Saginaw is zoned General Commercial (D). Change its FLU to
Commercial or keep as Agricultural?
#3 These parcels on south side of Saginaw are zoned Agricultural (E). Change its FLU to
Agricultural or keep as Industrial?
#4 This parcel on south side of Huckleberry is zoned Agricultural (E). Change its FLU to
Agricultural o keep as Industrial?
#5 This parcel is zoned Agricultural (E). Change ts FLU to Agricultural o keep as
Multple-Family Residential?
#6 Trisparce i zoned Agricuural €). Change s FLU o Agriculural o kep as
Commercial
#7 This area is zoned Agricultural (E). Many of the larger lots in this area have a FLU
designation of Muliple-Family Residential. Is this realistic?
#8 This parcel is zoned Agricultural (E). Change ts FLU to Agricultural o keep as
Commercial?

o #9 This parcel is zoned Agricultural (E). Change its FLU to Agricultural or keep as
oximns Industrial?
# T ST, #10 These parcels are already zoned General Commercial (D). Change their FLU

.
<

ceen,

: 17 12 fngoo

el ==

LINCOLN TOWNSHIP

ronear
TN
= designations to Commercial, or keep them as shown as already displayed on this map?

. = #11 These parcels are zoned General Commercial (D). The Manufactured Home Park is

GENEVA TOWNSHIP

allowed in the General Commercial (D) zoning district. Should the other parcels shown with
¥
o v _E A ﬁ s a FLU of Single-Family Residential be changed to Commercial?
it = = a— #12 These parcels are zoned Mult-Family Residential (B). Change its FLU to
¢ . g | ‘ ” ‘ ‘ ‘ b Multiple-Family Residential or keep as Single-Family Residential?
jisen fs = L R = o Ve #13 These parcels are zoned Mult-Family Residential (B). Change its FLU to
P gl s s s MulipleFamiy Residenta o keep as Single Famiy Residentals
E f===r #14 This parcel s zoned Business Commercial (C). Change its FLU to Commercial or keep
o T as Industrial?
‘ . ] #15 Thess parcels are zoned One-Family Residential (A). Change its FLU to Single-Family
=, E Residential or keep as Commercial?
s o — #16 This parcel is zoned Agricultural (E). Change its FLU to Agricultural or keep as
wm == B b Industrial?
- ’ #17 This parcel is zoned Mult-Family Residential (B). Change its FLU or keep as
il [ Commercial?
jj“ 4 Girerows #18 This parcel is zoned General Commercial (D). Change its FLU to Commercial or keep
g° sl L as Single-Family Residential?
l #19 Many parcels in this area are zoned General Commercial (D). Change its FLU to
e —] | . Commercial or keep as Single-Family Residential?
il heft i ™
R i = #20 Many parcals in this area are zoned Mult-Family Residential (B). Change its FLU to
( = - Voliple-Farmiy Residential o keep a5 SingleFamly Resdontal?
— — e E | #21This parcel is zoned General Commercial (D). Change its FLU to Commercial or keep
= | I L as Single-Family Residenial?
sageree bl ‘ < | ; #22 This parcel is zoned Business Commerdial (C). Change its FLU to Commercial or keep
LEE TOWNSHIP = as Single-Family Residential?

#23 Any other areas to consider?

Charter Township of Union
Proposal to Update the 2011 Master Plan (5 Year Review)

12




Spicer Group understands the Charter Township of Union would like to update its Future Land
Use map. The Township has grown at a rapid pace over the past 15 years, and now, five years after
the adoption of the 2011 Master Plan, it is time to review and update the Future Land Use map

to reflect anticipated trends. Such a project is very familiar to Spicer Group, and at a minimum,
involves the following steps:

1.

Begin the Master Plan update notification process by submitting letters to neighboring

jurisdictions, the County, and other entities, as required by the Michigan Planning

Enabling Act (PA 33 of 2008). Note, the revised Future Land Use map will be considered an

amendment to the Master Plan. As such, notification procedures and the required public

hearing must comply with the requirements of the Michigan Planning Enabling Act. Spicer

Group will assist the Township through this process.

Spicer will meet with Township staff to have a general discussion about how the Master Plan

and the Future Land Use map has been working for the Charter Township of Union and how

well it relates to the Zoning Map. At this meeting, Spicer Group will also receive from the

Charter Township of Union, any current GIS parcel data of the Township, including any input

from recent community engagement activities.

Meet with the Planning Commission to review the current Future Land Use map to learn

about issues and other concerns.

Based on the comments from the Planning Commission and staff, Spicer Group will analyze

the current Future Land Use map, mark it up, and develop a list of questions in preparation

of a work session with Planning Commission.

The second meeting with the Planning Commission will be work session to review the

Future Land Use map and to determine which areas need to be updated. Some topics of

discussion that are anticipated include:

Recent rezonings

Recent development

Anticipated development

Recent input from the community

Availability of water and sewer

Tribal lands and development

Location of DDA boundaries

Consideration of the Zoning Plan as described in Chapter 10 of the current Master

Plan

Consideration of other plans, e.g. non-motorized transportation, etc

j.  Consideration of the Township’s relationship to the City of Mt. Pleasant and to
Central Michigan University

S@ "o on o

Charter Township of Union
Proposal to Update the 2011 Master Plan (5 Year Review)

13



10.

11.

After the work session with the

Planning Commission, Spicer
Group will update the Future
Land Use map.

At a third meeting with the
Planning Commission, Spicer
Group will present the updated
Future Land Use map. Spicer
Group anticipates additional
discussion with the Planning
Commission on this version of
the map.

Next, Spicer Group will finalize
the Future Land Use map and
prepare it for a final meeting
with the Planning Commission.
Because this version of the
Future Land Use map is
intended to be the final version
before it goes to public hearing,
this fourth meeting should

be a joint meeting with the Planning Commission, the Board of Trustees, the Economic
Development Authority, and other relevant entities in order to establish buy-in on proposed
changes. At this fourth meeting, the Planning Commission should set the date for the
public hearing, as required by the Michigan Planning Enabling Act.

Prior to the public hearing, the Board of Trustees has to approve the draft of the revised
Future Land Use map. After Board approval, Spicer will submit the map to the neighboring
jurisdictions, the County, and other entities. This must take place 63 days prior to the public
hearing. In addition, Spicer Group will assist with the required public notice that must be
posted and published at least 15 days before the public hearing.

Spicer Group will attend the Public Hearing and assist with the overall adoption process, as
required by the Michigan Planning Enabling Act.

After adoption of the Future Land Use map by the Planning Commission, Spicer Group will
transmit fifteen (15) color 11”x 17" hard copies, as well as digital versions, of the map to the
Charter Township of Union. Spicer Group will also deliver a color 24" x 36" version of the
Future Land Use map.

Charter Township of Union
Proposal to Update the 2011 Master Plan (5 Year Review)

14



Our lump sum, not-to-exceed contract price for developing an updated Future Land Use map for
the Charter Township of Union as described in the eleven tasks under Work Plan, which includes
four meetings with the Planning Commission, one meeting with Township staff, assistance with
Michigan Planning Enabling Act compliance, attendance at the Public Hearing, and associated
deliverable, shall be: $7,500.

Optional Meeting Add-On - The cost for additional meetings with the Planning Commission shall
be: $900 per meeting.

Optional Zoning Plan Add-On - The cost for updating the Zoning Plan narrative, as described in
Chapter 10 of the current Master Plan, shall be: $1,200.

Charter Township of Union
Proposal to Update the 2011 Master Plan (5 Year Review)

15




	Agenda Board of Trustees 10-12-16
	minutes
	Check Register 10-12-16
	Check Register Detail 10-12-16
	Scanned from a Xerox Multifunction Printer
	2.5.10 Cash Flow Ratio
	Rev and Exp Report 206 248 250 591 591 8-31-16
	Revenue and Expenditures-101 Fund 8-31-16
	10-12-16 packetx
	RFBA Additional Path Way Funding Request MMCP October 2016
	Action Plan 2-25-16
	Grant Applications Memorandum 9-30-16
	10-12-16 packet
	UnionTwpProposal_LSLPlanning1
	ROWE Union Twp Master Plan Proposal3
	master plan COVER
	table of contents
	1 Qualifications
	2a Key Personnel
	01 Piggott
	02 Panduren
	03 Schultz
	04 Kree
	05 McGoldrick
	3 Work Plan and Schedule
	4 Fee Schedule
	1 Example - Zoning Plan-Implementation Plan
	2 SAMPLE-Future Land Use Plan

	SpicerUnionMasterPlanProposal2





